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This section and other parts of this Form 10-K eimtforward-looking statements” within the meaninfjSection 27A of the Securities
Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Bxghact of 1934, as amended (Exchange Act) thahievisks and uncertainties. The
statements relate to future events or our futurarfcial performance. In some cases, you can igefaifvard-looking statements by
terminology including “would,” “could,” “may,” “wil 1,” “should,” “expect,” “intend,” “plan,” “anticipa te,” “believe,” “estimate,”
“predict,” “potential,” or “continue,” the negative of these terms or other comparablaiteslogy. In evaluating these statements, you st
specifically consider various factors, includingethisks described under “Risk Factors” below andbiimer parts of this Form 10-K. These
factors may cause our actual results to differ matly from those anticipated or implied in the ¥aard-looking statements. We undertake no
obligation to publicly update or revise any forwdmbking statements, whether as a result of nearinétion, future events or otherwise. We

cannot guarantee future results, levels of actjygrformance or achievemen
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PART |

ITEM 1. Business
Overview

We design, develop, manufacture and sell applioaijmimized, high performance server solutions asean innovative, modular and
open-standard x86 architecture. Our solutions dela range of complete server systems as wellrapaents. We offer our clients a high
degree of flexibility and customization by providimhat we believe to be the industry’s broadestyaof server components, which are
interoperable and can be configured to create cet@glerver systems. Our server systems and comggsarenarchitected to provide high
levels of reliability, quality and scalability, treby enabling benefits in the areas of performatie@mal management, power efficiency and
total cost of ownership. We base our solutions penostandard components, such as processors ftehaid AMD and our solutions can 1
on the Linux and Windows operating systems.

We perform the majority of our research and devalept efforts in-house, which increases the comnatioic and collaboration
between design teams, streamlines the developmecegs and reduces time-to-market. We have dewelget of design principles which
allow us to aggregate individual industry standagaterials to develop proprietary components, sscbeaverboards, chassis and power
supplies. This building block approach allows upttovide a broad range of SKUs, and enables usitd &nd deliver customized solutions
based upon customers’ application requirementafAsine 30, 2007, we offered over 4,650 SKUs, iiclg SKUs for server systems,
serverboards, chassis and power supplies and $tham accessories.

We sell our server systems and components primiduibugh distributors, which include value addeskliers and system integrators,
and to a lesser extent to OEMs as well as throughlivect sales force. During fiscal year 2007, products were purchased by over 450
customers, most of which are distributors in appnaely 70 countries. We commenced operations #8kthd have been profitable every
year since inception. For fiscal years 2007, 20062005, our net sales were $420.4 million, $3025on and $211.8 million, respective
and our net income was $19.3 million, $16.9 millaord $7.1 million, respectively.

Industry Background
Increasing Demand for Computing Capaci

As businesses of all sizes process larger quantfidata to communicate, transact and collabotiagdr, business processes are
becoming more complex and their requirements fonpating capacity are growing rapidly. Businessesusing traditional networked
environments, such as local area networks, or LAdSgsyell as the Internet, to host a wide rangeppfieations including databases, Intranets
and email. Businesses are also using externaliums;tsuch as data centers, e-commerce storefradtextranets, to enable growth of their
operations. All of these factors are fueling thendad for increased computing power.

Evolution of Open Systems and Sc-out Computing

Computing architectures are continuing to evolveget this rapidly growing demand for computingazfy. As businesses
increasingly require solutions that provide flektpiand scalability in a cost effective mannemytare moving away from traditional
proprietary computing solutions toward open syssenvers with x86 based architectures using eitirard.or Windows operating systems.
Businesses are building upon this modular and sgstem concept to create what are commonly reféored scale-out computing
architectures. These scale-out architectures thpicansist of open standard components that esemabled into modular computing systems
and organized into clustered or rack mount serggafigurations. These systems are designed to cowifiya set of industry standard
specifications that are referred to as Server 8ystérastructure, or SSI. As there are not yet adrgpon SSI standards for blade servers, our
blade server systems are not designed to comply$#i. Scale-out computing enables businessegtoadputing capacity incrementally as
their needs arise without
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significantly disrupting existing systems, provigigreater flexibility and scalability and improvitatal cost of ownership over earlier
generations of server systems. IDC, an indeperrdsearch group, estimates that the worldwide volsemeer market will increase from
$29.7 billion in 2005 to $37.7 billion in 2011, regenting a compounded annual growth rate of ajipaizly 4.9%. IDC defines the volume
server market as the market for server systemststess than $25,000, which is the market waamily address. IDC also estimates that
worldwide end customer spending on blade servesgpscted to increase from $2.2 billion in 200%1d..2 billion in 2010, representing a
compounded annual growth rate of approximately %8.0

Increasing Need for Rapidly Deployable, Highly Optized Server Solution

Scale-out server architectures provide signifidsertefits for many businesses. However, there ang@range of circumstances in
which businesses need more than just the increimsmtgouting capacity that can be obtained by addiinge general purpose servers as part
of a scale-out deployment. In these circumstartbesnature of the underlying computing architectostributes meaningfully to the
competitive advantage of the business. We reftérgsolutions these businesses seek as “applicapiimized” solutions, as these businesses
typically need customized server configurationschitprovide optimal levels of processing, 1/0 or nogyn These situations include, among
others:

* Large scalable server farm Data centers of online service providers and Gl2B80 companies, as well as supercomputing
clusters of large research organizations, wanptomize industry standard components by architgciisystem platform that
enables higher performance through enhanced piagessl/O, more efficient memory bandwidth andages capacity

» Businesses that have complex computing requirerr Certain businesses, such as financial servicepanies, oil exploration
companies and entertainment production studiosiiregystems that have optimized processing andafabilities in order to
maximize information and image capture and proogs

 OEMSs: Certain OEMSs, including vendors of networking haade and medical imaging equipment, seek to diffiaee their end
products by requiring a broad selection of highfgrenance and rapidly deployable server solutioas tlan be optimized for
specific applications for their end custome

In all of these situations, server vendors arectedebased on several key criteria:

Rapidly deployable server solutionslany businesses desire the most advanced serberaiegy as soon as it becomes commercially
available. For instance, given the rapid produsettdoment cycles of new technologies in the netimaykhardware market, vendors of
networking equipment increasingly seek to partnecértain aspects of their solutions, such asesg¢echnology, because it enables them to
deliver a high performance solution to their custosrmore quickly. Similarly, online service provigenust continue to deploy the latest
server technology as soon as it becomes availaiie the ability to cost-effectively deliver a higegree of service is critical to their
business. Because traditional server vendors tpiase third party component suppliers, they nuesil with the time, complexity and
sometimes conflicting interests of coordinatinghwitultiple suppliers throughout the product desigd manufacturing process. This
lengthens the time required to incorporate newneldygy into next generation systems. As a restiembuilding or upgrading their
computing capability, businesses must either veaiteploy the latest products or accept solutioasdb not incorporate the benefits of the
latest technology.

Increased optimization for specific business ne@&tsvers are deployed to address widely differingieations with very different
system requirements. An online gaming companyin&tance, may require a server architecture thales optimal graphic processing, wl
a scientific research organization may requireraeserchitecture that maximizes computing poweeither case, the business will seek to
deploy server systems that are optimized to itsifipeieeds to maximize performance while minimgirosts. Traditional server vendors
typically offer only a limited number of standaloserver models. Given this lack of flexibility andoice, building an application optimized
server solution with traditional server componearas be
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challenging. In order to meet their performancaimegments, businesses must often purchase moreutmgpunctionality, including
potentially more memory, greater processing powenare efficient power supplies, than would be othge necessary had the system been
optimized for a specific business need. This irmesanot only the initial purchase price, but aleotbtal cost of ownership over the useful

of the servers. Alternatively, businesses that seelistomized server solution from traditional semendors face limited choices and often
must accept considerable delays.

Superior price-to-performance per wath addition to the need for rapidly available anghity optimized server solutions, businesses
with application optimized server needs face grgwgnalability challenges. Many application optintizeerver deployments constitute
increasingly larger server systems, particularlgdale-out configurations, and can involve hundm@dsven thousands of servers.
Deployments of this magnitude can present numegetf®rmance, space, energy and maintenance cheieRgst, the aggregation of large
numbers of computing systems leads to escalatiagggmequirements. As a result, businesses reqoale-out computing systems that not
only perform well but also minimize power consuroptiSecond, the increasing need for computing dgplaas resulted in the need for
higher density solutions to optimize the use ofighle floor space and to minimize operating cated, the high density of the equipment,
together with increasing power consumption per C#¥d creating a significant challenge for businesdéempting to manage heat dissipation
effectively to prevent system failure. IDC currgngstimates that power and cooling costs as a pege of spending for new servers will
increase from 48% in 2005 to 71% in 2010. IDC astimates that over 40% of large server farms teqmmling capacities have limited the
deployment of new systems.

The Super Micro Solution

We design, develop, manufacture and sell applinaijimized, high performance server solutions éag®n an innovative, modular
and open-standard x86 architecture. Our primarypatditive advantages arise from how we use our fated internal research and
development organization to develop the intellelgbwaperty used in our server solutions. These leabled us to develop a set of design
principles and performance specifications that @ferrto as Super SSI that meet industry standardeg8irements and also incorporate
advanced functionality and capabilities. Super [@8Vides us with greater flexibility to quickly ardficiently develop new server solutions
and that are optimized for our customers’ spedaifiplication requirements. Our modular architectapdroach has allowed us to offer our
customers interoperable designs across all of @mponents. This modular approach, in turn, enaldds provide what we believe to be the
industry’s largest array of server systems and anmapts.

Flexible and Customizable Server Solutions

We provide flexible and customizable server sohgito address the specific application needs otostomers. Our design principles
allow us to aggregate industry standard matematiet/elop proprietary components, such as servatbpehassis and power supplies to
deliver a broad range of products with superiotuiEss. Each component is built to be backward cdifspaWe believe this building block
approach allows us to provide a broad range of SKIdf June 30, 2007, we offered over 4,650 SKitduding SKUs for server systems,
serverboards, chassis and power supplies and $fhm accessories.

Rapid Time-to-Market

We are able to significantly reduce the designa@axkelopment time required to incorporate the latgtinologies and to deliver the n
generation application optimized server soluti@st in-house design competencies and control of the dedigrany of the components us
within our server systems enable us to rapidly tgyebuild and test server systems and componeithisunique configurations. As a result,
when new products are brought to market we arergby@ble to quickly design, integrate and assensigrver solutions with little need to re-
engineer other portions of our solution. Our eéffitidesign capabilities allow us to offer our custos server solutions incorporating the Iz
technology with a superior price-to-performancétat/e
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work closely with the leading microprocessor veisdorcoordinate the design of our new products Wigtir product release schedules,
thereby enhancing our ability to rapidly introdumy products incorporating the latest technology.

Improved Power Efficiency and Thermal Manageme

Our server solutions include many design innovatimnoptimize power consumption and manage hesipdison. We have designed
flexible power management systems which customizgdiminate components in an effort to reduce o@@ver consumption. We have
proprietary power supplies that can be integratedss a wide range of server system form factoiistwtan significantly enhance power
efficiency. We have also developed technologiesahaspecifically designed to reduce the effettseat dissipation from our servers. Our
thermal management technology allows our producéshieve a superior price-to-performance ratidevminimizing energy costs and
reducing the risk of server malfunction caused bgrbeating.

High Density Server:

Our servers and components are designed to enadtiencers to maximize computing power while minimigthe physical space
utilized. We offer server systems with twice thaslgy of conventional solutions, which allows oustomers to efficiently deploy our server
systems in scale-out configurations. Through ooppetary technology, we can offer significantly menemory and expansion slots than
traditional server systems with a comparable sdoren factor. For example, for a server with roam dne rack or shelf, or a 1U server, we
offer up to five expansion slots. In addition, wigeosystems in a 1U configuration with featuresd aapabilities generally offered by
competitors only in a server with room for two raak shelves, or a 2U server, configuration. Fangale, our “1U Twin™” system contains
two full feature DP motherboards in a 1U chassis.

Strategy

Our objective is to be the leading provider of &gtlon optimized, high performance server solwiamridwide. Key elements of our
strategy include:

Maintain Our Time-to-Market Advantage

We believe one of our major competitive advantagesir ability to rapidly incorporate the latestqouting innovations into our
products. We intend to maintain our time-to-mawetantage by continuing our investment in our neseand development efforts to rapidly
develop new proprietary server solutions baseddustry standard components. We plan to continweot& closely with Intel and AMD,
among others, to develop products that are conlpatiibh the latest generation of industry standaahnologies. We believe these efforts
allow us to continue to offer products that leagiite for performance as each generation of coimgininovations becomes available.

Expand Our Product Offerings

We plan to increase the number of products we éedf@ur customers. Our product portfolio will cante to include additional solutions
based on the latest Intel and AMD technologies.pléda to enhance our ability to deliver improved pownd thermal management
capabilities, as well as servers and components#maoperate in increasingly dense environmentsaldb plan to continue developing and
in the future offer additional management softwaapabilities that are integrated with our servedpicts and will further enable our
customers to simplify and automate the deploynmmontfiguration and monitoring of our servers.

Further Develop Existing Markets and Expand Into MeMarkets

We intend to strengthen our relationships with txisdistribution and OEM partners and add newrithistors. We will continue to
target specific industry segments that requireiagpbn optimized server solutions including dagater environments, financial services, oil
and gas exploration, biotechnology and entertainme plan to expand our reach geographically i@ddrly in the Asia Pacific region and
Europe.
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Strengthen Our Relationships with Suppliers and Mafiacturers

Our efficient supply chain and outsourced manufaatuallow us to build systems to order that arstemized, while minimizing costs.
We plan to continue leveraging our relationshipghwsuppliers and contract manufacturers in ordenamtain and improve our cost structure
as we benefit from economies of scale. We intermbtdinue to source non-core products from extesnppliers. We also believe that as our
solutions continue to gain greater market accegtame will generate growing and recurring busirfes®ur suppliers and contract
manufacturers. We believe this increased volumkemible us to receive better pricing and achieghdr margins. We believe that a highly
disciplined approach to cost control is criticabtaccess in our industry. For example, we plarxg@aed our warehousing capacity in Asia
through our relationship with Ablecom Technologyg.| one of our major contract manufacturers arelaed party, so that we may be able
to deliver products to our customers in Asia asg@where more quickly and in higher volumes.

Advanced Blade Server Technolo

To meet the emerging demand for blade serversawve developed and introduced a high-performanaetdarver solution, called
SuperBlade. Our SuperBlade server systems arendebtg share a common computing infrastructureethyesaving additional space and
power. Our SuperBlades are self-contained senasigded to achieve industry leading density anéisoapperformance per square foot at a
lower total cost of ownership. The SuperBlade sesystem enclosure provides power, cooling, netwgrkvarious interconnects and system-
level management and supports both Intel Xeon avi® Dpteron processors. By creating a range of wnigade server offerings, we
provide our customers with solutions that can betamized to fit their needs. We believe that oype8Blade server system provides industry
leading CPU density, memory expandability, religpihnd price-to-performance per square foot.

Products

We offer a broad range of application optimizedreesolutions, including complete server systents@mponents which customers
can use to build complete server systems. Theahadpelow depicts how end customers typically deogermicro servers within their
networks. Our servers are deployed in several gardtions within two areas of an enterprise network
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Headquarters Enterprises build large scalable server farnith@enterprise gateway to run many of the most deing applications
and to provide basic computational infrastructtmterprises typically deploy our rackeunted servers in order to save floor space aable
rapid deployment of additional server capacity@spguting demands increase. Enterprises may alsmsehto deploy our tower servers in a
clustered configuration, which combines the proogssapability of multiple standalone, or towensas such that they act like a single, le
computer in order to accomplish computationallgisive tasks in a more cost-effective manner.

Branch: Within branch office data rooms, servers are dgglan rack-mounted configurations, in order toifg the upgrade of
servers or to swap out faulty servers, minimiziegwork downtime and making the management of theesénfrastructure easier to maintain
for branch offices with less specialized IT stafftso, within branch office workgroups, enterprigggically deploy our tower servers to
accomplish basic office functions such as ceniraiprinting jobs, serving files and running loeamail and other messaging applications.

Server System

We sell server systems in rack-mounted, standammer and blade form factors. We currently off@omplete range of server options
with single, dual and quad CPU capability suppartimel Pentium 4, Pentium D and Xeon architectimedJ, 2U, 3U, 4U, tower and blade
form factors. We also offer complete server systtm&\MD dual and quad Opteron in 1U, 2U, 4U andda form factors. As of June 30,
2007, we offered over 650 different server systdfms.each system, we offer multiple chassis desagigspower supply options to best suit
customer requirements. We also offer multiple agunfations based on our latest generation systenthwave up to seven expansion slot
majority of our most common systems are also abkdlan minimum 1U or 1/2 depth form factors whiale approximately one half of the s
of standard sized rack-mounted servers.

The figure below depicts a typical rack-mounted/eeand the different components that we typicafiyimize for our customers. The
layout presented is for illustrative purposes @y does not represent the typical layout of allsauvers.

H

A. Chassis: Industry standard 1U ra-mounted chassis that permits server interopergbifitile efficiently housing key server compone
B. Power Supply: Cost effective, high efficiency AC/DC power sup
C. Memory: Scaleable 16 slot memory expansion capabilityvides up to 64GB memory capabil

6
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D. Supermicro Intelligent Management Card: Monitors onboard instrumentation for server heatlld allows remote management and
KVM over LAN for the entire network via a single#ard, monitor and mou

E. CPU: Programmable computer processing units that parédlr server instruction and logic processing. Sopero servers support up
to four Single, Dual Core or Quad Core processans footh Intel and AML

F. Expansion Modules: Allows increased functionality, 1/0O customizatiand flexibility. Super SSI features enable four &xgion 1/0
cards in a 1U server allowing 2U capability in a fbtm factor

G. Thermal Management: Counter rotating and redundant fans provide optincooling and dissipation of server component
H. Hard Disk Drives: Storage medium for operating system, applicateordsdata. We offe” powel-on” hot-swappable capabilit

Below is a table that summarizes the most commoreseonfigurations purchased by our customersalsfe design and build other
customized systems using these and other buildoakbé to meet specific customer requirements.

Server System Model CPU Memory Drive Bays Form Factor SKUs

5000 Serie! Pentium D, Pentium Unbuffered DDRII 1 to 4 drives 1U, Mid-tower 111 models

6000 Series Dual Xeon (Dual Core) FB-DIMM DDRII, ECC 1to 16 drives 11U, 2U, 3U 284 models
Registered DDRI

7000 Series Dual Xeon (Dual Core) FB-DIMM DDRII, ECC 1 to 8 drives 4U, Tower 91 models
Registered DDRI

8000 Series Quad Xeon (Quad Core) FB-DIMM DDRII, 1 to 6 drives 1U, 2U, 4U, Towe 19 models
ECC Registered DDR

1000 Serie! Dual/Quad Optero ECC Registered DDI 1to 4 drives 1U 66 models

2000 Serie! Dual Opteror ECC Registered DDI 1 to 6 drives 2U 16 models

4000 Series Dual/Quad Opteron ECC Registered DDR 1to 8 drives 4U, Tower, Mid- 31 models

tower
SuperBlade Dual Xeon (Dual/Quad Core), FB-DIMM DDRII, 1 to 6 drives Blade 5 models
Dual/Quad Opteron ECC Registered DDRII

(Dual/Quad Core

We offer a variety of server storage options dependpon the system, with disk drive alternativedtiding small computer system
interface, or SCSI, serial advanced technologychitent, or SATA, Intelligent Drive Electronics, I®¥E, and serial attached SCSI, or SAS.

In addition to our server systems, we also offgge®micro Intelligent Management, or SIM, card siolus. These are sold as part of our
server systems. Our SIM card implements the ingusémdard Intelligent Platform Management Integfaar IPMI, 2.0 to provide remote
access, system monitoring and administration fonetity for our server platforms. Our SIM card indés key capabilities such as remote
hardware status, failure notification, as welllas ability to power-cycle non-responsive serveid @ut of band keyboard, video and monitor,
or KVM, functionality over LAN. Our SIM solutionsmable server administrators to view a serv&ardware status remotely, receive an &
automatically when a failure occurs, and power &gckystem that is non-responsive. Our Intellijdamagement module monitors onboard
instrumentation such as temperature
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sensors, power status, voltages and fan speedhravidies remote power control capabilities to retaa reset the server. It also includes
remote access to the Basic Input/Output SysteB]@8, configuration and operating system consdigrimation. The monitoring and conti
functions work independently of the CPU becausesiih card is a completely separate processor. Batéer administrators can gain full
remote access to control the BIOS, utilities, ofiegasystems and software applications. In summauy SIM solutions include the following
key features:

embedded processor to provide out of band KVM citifab thereby extending the use of a single keydpmonitor and mouse
the entire network

enhanced authentication support to establish seeorete sessions and authenticate users

enhanced encryption support to allow secure reassword configuration and protect sensitive systata when it is transferred
over the network

Power management for the remote power or
Virtual Media for booting from Virtual C-ROM, floppy over LAN, etc

8
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Server Component

We believe we offer the largest array of modulaveecomponents or building blocks in the indushgt are sold off the shelf or built-
to-order to provide our customers with greaterifigity. These components are the foundation of gemver solutions and span product
offerings from the entry-level single and dual mssor server segment to the high-end multi-procesadket. The majority of the
components we sell individually are optimized tarkvtogether and are ultimately integrated into clatgserver systems.

Serverboards

We design our serverboards with the latest chigsdtnetworking technologies. Each serverboardsgyded and optimized to adhere to
specific physical, electrical and design requirets@morder to work with certain combinations o&shis and power supplies and achieve
maximum functionality. We not only adhere to SStdfications, but our Super SSI specifications pe\an advanced set of features that
increase the functionality and flexibility of ourqalucts. The following table displays our serverdoatferings for X7 (Intel's newest
generation of Dual and Quad Core Xeon 5000/510@%¢eiX6 (Intel's 800Mhz Front Side Bus generatidibual and Quad Xeon solutions),
X5 (Intel's 533Mhz Front Side Bus generation of D¥aon solutions), P-series (Intel’s single procesolutions) and H8 (AMD’s Dual and
Quad Core Opteron 200 and 800 series). As of Jan2@®7, we offered more than 450 SKUs for servaiis

Below is a table that summarizes the most commnporedgoard configurations purchased by our customers

Serverboard Model CPU System Bus Form Factor Memory SKUs
X7 Series Dual Xeon (Dual/Quad Core) 1333/1066/667 MHz  Advanced Technology Fully 68 models
Extended (ATX)/ Extended Buffered-
ATX (EATX) DIMM
DDRII
X6 Series Dual/Quad Xeon 800 MHz ATX/EATX ECC 79 models
Registered
DDRII
X5 Series Dual Xeon 533 MHz ATX/EATX DDR 52 models
PD, P8 & C2 Serie Pentium D (Dual/Quad Core) 1333/1066/800/533  ATX/ Micro Advanced Unbuffered 58 models
MHz Technology Extended (MAT> DDRII
H8 Series Dual/Quad Opteron Hypertransport ATX/EATX ECC 62 models
(Dual Core) Registered
DDR/
DDRII

Chassis and Power Supplies

Our chassis are designed to efficiently house enress while maintaining interoperability, adherbogndustry standards and increas
output efficiency through power supply design. Vééidve that our latest generation of power sup@iEseves the maximum power
efficiency available in the industry. In additiome have developed a remote management systemffibict the ability to stagger the start uj
systems and reduce the aggregate power draw atsystot to allow customers to increase the numbgystems attached to a power circuit.
We design DC power solutions to be compatible wita centers that have AC, DC or AC and DC baswea:pdistribution infrastructures.
We believe our unique power design technology regdlggower consumption by increasing power efficielocgpproximately 86%, which we
believe is among the most efficient available ia ifdustry. Our server chassis come with hot-phegvy-duty fans, fan speed control and an
advanced air shroud design to maximize airflow netduncy.
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The table below depicts some of our chassis proaffietings including the 500-series (front I/O apis and space constrained
environments), 800-series (most widely used foglsindual and quad processor servers and storatensy), 700-series (Tower, 4U rack-
mounted servers and workstations) and 900-segesidh-density storage applications) chassis prtsd(These chassis solutions offer
redundant power, cold swap power supply, reduncaoiing fan options and high efficiency AC and D@ygr combinations. As of June 30,
2007, we offered more than 1,200 SKUs for chassispmwer supplies.

Chassis Model CPU Support Expansions Drive Bays Power Supply Form Factor SKUs

SC500 Series Xeon, Pentium D, Pentium 4, 1FH 1 internal drive  200W-520W Mini-1U 66 models
Opteron

SC700 Series Xeon, Pentium D, Pentium 4, 7 FL 7 to 8 drives 300W 4U, Tower, 168 models
Opteron 800W~redundan Mid-tower

SC800 Series Xeon, Pentium D, Pentium 4, various 2 to 16 drives 260W-1200W 1U, 2U, 3U 761 models
Opteron configurations

SC900 Series Xeon, Pentium D, Pentium4 6to7 FL 15 drives 650W 3U, 4U, 47 models

760W-redundan Tower

Other System Accessories

As part of our server component offerings, we alfer other system accessories that our customaysreguire or that we use to build
our server solutions. These other products incladeng others, microprocessors, memory and disesland generally are third party
developed and manufactured products that we negblbut modification. As of June 30, 2007, we offémore than 2,350 SKUs for other
system accessories.

Technology

We are focused on providing leading edge, highgoerince products for our customers. We have degdlaglesign process to rapidly
deliver products with superior features. The tedbappincorporated in our products is designed tvate high levels of reliability, quality,
security and scalability. Our most advanced teabyls developed in-house, which allows us to &fidly implement advanced capabilities
into our server solutions. We work in collaboratigith our key customers and suppliers to constantjyrove upon our designs, reduce
complexity and improve reliability.

Our server solutions, excluding SuperBlade serystesns, are based on our Super SSI architectuiehwitorporates proprietary /0O
expansion, thermal and cooling design featuresedisas high-efficiency power supplies. For examplar, 1U servers now offer up to 5 1/O
expansion slots with up to 16 DIMM slots to accondai® up to 64GB of memory, which, prior to Supel, 8&s only possible in a 2U
chassis. We also achieved higher memory densiiekesigning customized serverboards to include éfary slots without sacrificing 1/0
expansion capability. The result is what we belivbe a superior serverboard design that provsdesustomers with increased flexibility
for their new and legacy add-on card support ardatility to keep up with the growing memory requiients needed to maintain system
performance requirements.

Our latest chassis designs include advanced coolaghanisms such as proprietary air shrouds todediper cool air directly to the
hottest components of the system resulting in imgadocooling efficiency and consequently increasipstem reliability. Our newest
generation of power supplies incorporates advadesign features that provide what we believe tthbehighest level of efficiency in the
industry and therefore reduces overall power comgiam. Our advanced power supply solutions incleethindant cooling mechanisms for
reliability and reduced failure rates.

Research and Development

We have over 14 years of research and developmpstience in server component design and in regars, have devoted additional
resources to the design of server systems. Ouneedng staff is responsible for

10



Table of Contents

the design, development, quality, documentationratehse of our products. We continuously seek wagptimize and improve the
performance of our existing product portfolio anttéduce new products to address market opporésnitVe perform the majority of our
research and development efforts in-house, inargakie communication and collaboration betweengetsiams to streamline the
development process and reducing time-to-marketaWaletermined to continue to reduce our desigmaamufacturing costs and improve
the performance, cost effectiveness and thermaspade efficiency of our solutions.

Over the years, our research and development taarfobused on the development of new and enhamoédgis that can support
emerging protocols while continuing to accommodeggcy technologies. Much of our research and deweént activity is focused on the
new product cycles of leading chipset vendors. Wekwlosely with Intel and AMD, among others, tordp products that are compatible
with the latest generation of industry standar¢hiedogies under development. Our collaborative aagin with the chipset vendors allows us
to coordinate the design of our new products wWitirtproduct release schedules, thereby enhancinghility to rapidly introduce new
products incorporating the latest technology. Wekwbosely with their development teams to optimibép performance and reduce system
level issues. We also work with companies suchadepfec on storage solutions. Similarly, we workyaosely with our customers to
identify their needs and develop our new produahglaccordingly.

We believe that the combination of our focus oerinal research and development activities, oueclasrking relationships with
chipset vendors and our modular design approaotvais to minimize time-to-market. Since January®0@ believe we were the first to
introduce the following new technologies to the kear

e amult-core Xeon architecture with 64 GB main memory céjtgb

« server solutions with a 1U configuration with higénsity I/O capability typically found in a 2U cagpfiration, as well as a 5 1/0
expansion card in a 1U configuration; ¢

» configuration server solutions with a serial atetI$CSI storage option capability with SCSI endleservices, or SES2, for
alerting users of drive temperature and fan fadL

As of June 30, 2007, we had 212 employees and mgiaeering consultant dedicated to research andldgment. Our total research
and development expenses were $21.2 million, $tlln and $10.6 million for fiscal years 2007,@and 2005, respectively.

Sales, Marketing and Customer Service

To execute our strategy, we have developed a aatbsnarketing program which is primarily focusedimfirect sales channels. As of
June 30, 2007, our sales and marketing organizatioristed of 84 employees and 10 independent ssgessentatives in 12 locations
worldwide.

We work with distributors, including resellers agybtem integrators, and OEMs to market and setbmiged solutions to their end
customers. We provide sales and marketing assestamd training to our distributors and OEMs, whauim provide service and support to
end customers. We intend to leverage our relatipashith key distributors and OEMSs to penetrateseindustry segments where our
products can provide a superior alternative totaxjssolutions. For a more limited group of custosneho do not normally purchase through
distributors or OEMs, we have implemented a disad¢s approach.

We maintain close contact with our distributors and customers. We often collaborate during thessatocess with our distributors
and the customer’s technical point of contact tip kdetermine the optimal system configuration fue tustomer’s needs. Our interaction with
distributors and end customers allows us to momstomer requirements and develop new produdistter meet end customer needs.
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International Sale:

Product fulfillment and first level support for oimternational customers are provided by our distors and OEMs. Our international
sales efforts are supported both by our internatioffices in the Netherlands and Taiwan as webyasur U.S. sales organization. Sales
outside of the U.S. represented 40.8%, 41.5% arkP48f net sales in fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2@pectively.

Marketing

Our marketing programs are designed to inform egsind potential customers, the trade press,loligstrs and OEMs about the
capabilities and benefits of using our products swidtions. Our marketing efforts support the sadd distribution of our products through
our distribution channels. We rely on a varietyradrketing vehicles, including advertising, pubktations, participation in industry trade
shows and conferences to help gain market acceptsve also provide funds for cooperative marketingur distributors. These funds
reimburse our distributors for promotional spendimgy may do on behalf of promoting Supermicro pisid. Promotional spending by
distributors is subject to our pre-approval andude items such as film or video for television,gaaine or newspaper advertisements, trade
show promotions and sales force promotions. Theuatravailable to each distributor is based onnteant of purchases. We also work
closely with leading microprocessor vendors in @afive marketing programs and benefit from madestelopment funds that they make
available. These programs are similar to the pragra'e make available to our distributors in thatanereimbursed for expenses incurred
related to promoting the vendor’s product.

Customer Service

We provide customer support for our server systimmigh our website and 24-hour continuous dirécing based support. For
strategic direct and OEM customers, we also haglkdmilevels of customer service available, inclgdin some cases, on site service and
support.

Customers

For fiscal year 2007, our products were purchageoMer 450 customers, most of which are distritaitorapproximately 70 countries.
None of our customers accounted for 10% or morohet sales in fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2BA#.users of our products span a br
range of industries.

Case studies of ongoing and successfully comphitptbyments of Supermicro server solutions inclingefollowing:

Lawrence Livermore National Laboratory (LLNL) Sdifo Research Center (USA)arge scientific research organizations require
highly optimized CPU and memory performance cajtaslarchitected as supercomputing server clustergomplete the highly complex
scientific research conducted at LLNL, the labonatequired cost-effective computing power to bivaeed to their scientific community.
Supermicro server building blocks (serverboardassts, power supplies) were selected for LLNL'dhipgrformance computing clusters
because of their feature optimization, reliabilityd efficiency and price-to-performance advantages.

Strato AG Web Hosting (Germanys one of the top three web hosting companies o) Strato AG needs to deploy very large
numbers of server nodes in multiple hosting locetidVith the high cost of power in Germany and tlgiwut Europe, Strato AG needed the
highest available performance per watt capabilitegduce total cost of ownership and to delivesteffective products to their millions of
customers. With the help of a local system intemgrédtrato AG deployed our single processor sesgkrtions with superior performance per
watt and price-to-performance features and wastaldentinue growing their web hosting capacitgéovice millions of customers and
domain names.

Juniper Networks (USAJluniper Networks, an OEM customer, operates ithitjely competitive and dynamic telecom industry and
seeks differentiation in their end products. Junigetworks required a turnkey
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appliance solution from an original server desigmpany with a broad selection of rapidly deployadnd flexible server modules that can be
optimized for specific applications and marketseyhalso needed local service and post sales sujgpantaximum agility. We provided
Juniper Networks with highly customizable serveitding blocks and highly integrated turnkey solusao meet their customer requirements
and achieve Juniper’s business objectives.

Dawning (China) One of the largest local China server OEMs, Dagymieeded stable and highly efficient (from perfance and
power consumption standpoints) server building blemlutions to address the growing market in Chwith competitive server products.
Dawning deployed our dual processor server solatiith the highly efficient power supplies coupleith best price-to-performance to
differentiate their product offerings for the Cheeemarket and were able to win large server pmjedChina’s rapidly growing telecom
industry.

Siemens (USA/Germanyin order to achieve competitive advantage, Siesheredical imaging systems division needed a server
solution that minimized the amount of time betweaage capture and transmission for CT, MRI and B&an systems. We implemented a
custom serverboard architecture for Siemens whietbled the highest available 1/0 expansion andesystandwidth capabilities for dual
processor systems. This enabled Siemens to acimaxienum communications throughput for their medinzging products.

Intellectual Property

We seek to protect our intellectual property righith a combination of trademark, copyright, trageret laws and disclosure
restrictions. We rely primarily on trade secre¢ghnical know-how and other unpatented proprietafgrmation relating to our design and
product development activities. We have issuednpai@nd pending patent applications in the U.S al¥e enter into confidentiality and
proprietary rights agreements with our employeensultants and other third parties and control s&te our designs, documentation and
other proprietary information. Our registered tradeks include Supermicro, our company logo, SeBegiding Block Solution, Building
Block Solutions, SuperO, Superboard, SuperdoctdrianMotherboard. Our pending trademark applicaioclude S-Server, SuperBlade,
X-Blade, X-Blade Server, PERSONALBLADE and OFFICEBLADE. Iflaim is asserted that we have infringed the intélial property of
third party, we may be required to seek licensdbdabtechnology. In addition, we license thirdtpaechnologies that are incorporated into
some elements of our services. Third parties mfinge or misappropriate our proprietary rights.

Manufacturing and Quality Control

We use several third party suppliers and contraatufacturers for materials and sub-assemblies, asislerverboards, chassis, disk
drives, power supplies, fans and computer proces¥de believe that selectively using outsourcedufeturing services allows us to focus
on our core competencies in product design andldevent and increases our operational flexibildur manufacturing strategy allows us to
quickly adjust manufacturing capacity in resporsettanges in customer demand and to rapidly inteadew products to the market. We
Ablecom, a related party, for contract design amehafiacturing coordination support. We work with &&dm to optimize modular designs
our chassis and certain of our other componentiecdin coordinates the manufacturing of chassisisoe plan to expand our warehous
capacity and our manufacturing relationship witHeslom in China. Ablecom is transferring operatitnasn Taiwan to a larger facility in
China. In addition to providing a larger volumecohtract manufacturing services for us, Ableconm wérehouse for us an increasing nun
of components and subassemblies manufactured kiptaiduppliers prior to shipment to our facilitiesthe U.S. and Europe.

For server systems, assembly, test and quality@cente completed at our wholly-owned manufactufaglity in San Jose, California
which has been ISO-9001 certified since 2001. Tdggity has been certified ISO-9001:2000 compligimice August 2003. We intend to
expand our manufacturing, assembly and test cafiedbin Asia and Europe to be closer to our kdgrmational customers and to reduce ¢
of shipping our products to our customers. In adance with ISO-9001 requirements, quality contral aventory
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management is extended through our suppliers amtiacd manufacturers with continuous reporting andoing qualification programs. The
assembly of our server system products involvesgiatting supplied materials and manufactured sabrallies into final products, which are
configured and tested before being delivered tocostomers.

We maintain sufficient inventory such that mosbaf orders can be filled within 14 days. We mondar inventory on a continuous
basis in order to be able to meet customer ordett@avoid inventory obsolescence. Due to our rfaydiesigns, our inventory can generally
be used with multiple different products, furtheducing the risk of inventory write-downs.

Competition

The market for our products is highly competitikagidly evolving and subject to new technologicedvelopments, changing customer
needs and new product introductions. We competagriiy with large vendors of x86 general purposweaes and components. In addition,
we also compete with a number of smaller vendors syrecialize in the sale of server components gstgms. We believe our principal
competitors include:

» Global technology vendors such as Dell Inc., Het-Packard Company, International Business Machinepd@ation and Intel
» Specialized server vendors, such as Rackable System; anc
« Original Design Manufacturers, or ODMs, such asm@a&omputer, Inc

The principal competitive factors in our marketlirde the following:
» first to market with new emerging technologi
» flexible and customizable products to fit custor’ objectives;
» high product performance and reliabili
» early identification of emerging opportunitie
» cos-effectiveness
* interoperability of products
» scalability; anc
» localized and responsive customer support on adwide basis
We believe that we compete favorably with respeehost of these factors. However, most of our cditgre have longer operating
histories, significantly greater resources and tgre@ame recognition. They may be able to devatatgr resources to the development,

promotion and sale of their products than we cdmnclvcould allow them to respond more quickly teviiechnologies and changes in
customer needs.

Employees

As of June 30, 2007, we employed 613 full time eaypés and 11 consultants, consisting of 212 empbyeresearch and
development, 84 employees in sales and marketthgntloyees in general and administrative and 25d@yees in manufacturing. Of these
employees, 510 are based in our San Jose fadigyconsider our highly qualified and motivated emyples to be a key factor in our business
success. Our employees are not represented byo#lagtive bargaining organization and we have nexgrerienced a work stoppage. We
believe that our relations with our employees aredy
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Executive Officers and Directors
Our executive officers and their ages and theiitjpos as of July 31, 2007, are as follows:

Name Age  Position(s)

Charles Liang 49 Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Exeeufificer
Howard Hideshim: 48 Chief Financial Office!

Alex Hsu 58 Chief Sales and Marketing Offic

Chiu-Chu (Sara) Liu Liang 45 Vice President of Operations, Treasurer and Dire
Yih-Shyan (Wally) Liaw 52 Vice President of International Sales, Secretad/@inector
Bruce Alexander(1)(2)(z 63 Director

Hwei-Ming (Fred) Tsai(1)(2)(3 51 Director

Edward J. Hayes, Jr.( 52 Director

Sherman Tua 53 Director

(1) Member of the Audit Committe:
(2) Member of the Compensation Committ
(3) Member of the Nominating and Corporate Governarnma@ittee.

Executive Officers

Charles Liangounded Super Micro and has served as our Presidaidf Executive Officer and Chairman of the Bosirite our
inception in September 1993. Mr. Liang has beereldging server system architectures and technadgiethe past two decades. From July
1991 to August 1993, Mr. Liang was President angfdbesign Engineer of Micro Center Computer Iachigh-end motherboard design and
manufacturing company. From January 1988 to Af@¥11, Mr. Liang was Senior Design Engineer and Rtdjeader for Chips &
Technologies, Inc., a chipset technology compang,Suntek Information International Group, a sysserd software development company.
Mr. Liang has been granted many server technolaggmps. Mr. Liang holds an M.S. in Electrical Erggring from the University of Texas
Arlington and a B.S. in Electrical Engineering frdvational Taiwan University of Science & TechnoldgyTaiwan.

Howard Hideshimdas served as our Chief Financial Officer since i@§6. From November 2005 to May 2006, Mr. Hideshimas
Vice President of Finance at Forcel0 Networks, lmaietwork equipment company, and from July 2@0Kdvember 2005, he served as
Director of Finance for that company. From Aprilb20to June 2004, Mr. Hideshima was Chief Finan®idicer and Vice President of
Finance and Administration at Virtual Silicon Teokwgy, Inc., a semiconductor intellectual propartynpany. From January 2000 to March
2001, he served as Chief Financial Officer at md€Corporation, an Internet services company. Rranuary 1999 to December 1999, he
was Vice President of Finance and from July 1993doember 1999 Chief Accounting Officer at ESS Tatbgy, Inc., a fabless
semiconductor company. Mr. Hideshima holds an M.Brdm San Francisco State University and a B.&uginess Administration from the
University of California at Berkeley.

Alex Hsuhas served as our Chief Sales and Marketing Officere July 2006 and President of our subsidianpe8Micro Computer
B.V. since October 2003. Prior to becoming our €Bi@es and Marketing Officer, Mr. Hsu had serveaar Senior Vice President of Sales
since October 2004. From January 2002 to Septeg@i¥, Mr. Hsu was President and Chief Operatingc@ffof Bizlink Group, an IT
solutions company. From January 2001 to Januar®,2@®was a private investor and consultant worlgith startup companies in Silicon
Valley. From August 1999 to December 2000, he wasiBlent and Chief Operating Officer at Oplink Coumications, Inc., a networking
solutions company. Mr. Hsu has over 25 years e&pee in the IT industry and served in various manafjand executive positions at
Philips, Acer, Hewlett-Packard and Umax. Mr. Hsldsa@an M.B.A. and a B.S. in Electrical Engineerfrmm National Chao-Tung University
in Taiwan.

Chiu-Chu (Sara) Liu Liango-founded Super Micro and has served as Vice ddesdf Operations, Treasurer and a member of our
board of directors since our inception in Septeni®93. From 1985 to 1993,
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Ms. Liang held finance and operational positionssiveral companies, including Micro Center Complrte. Ms. Liang holds a B.S. in
Accounting from Providence University in Taiwan. Msang is married to Mr. Charles Liang.

Yih-Shyan (Wally) Liawo-founded Super Micro and has served as Vice d¥etdf International Sales, Corporate Secretadyaan
member of our board of directors since our inceptinSeptember 1993. From 1988 to 1991, Mr. Liave W&te President of Engineering at
Great Tek, a computer company. Mr. Liaw holds a8 .Nn Computer Engineering from University of Aneg an M.S. in Electrical
Engineering from Tatung Institute of Technologylmiwan, and a B.S. degree from Taiwan Provincidlege of Marine and Oceanic
Technology.

Non-Management Directors

Bruce Alexandehas been a member of our board of directors singgugt 2006. Since April 2006, Mr. Alexander hasrbae
independent financial consultant. Mr. Alexander wadanaging Director at Needham & Company, an itment banking firm, from April
1999 to April 2006. From 1997 to 1999, he was Riessd, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of treaRl for Black & Company, a
regional investment bank which was acquired by 8Vedrgo in 1999. Mr. Alexander holds an M.S. in Bigement from Stanford University
Graduate School of Business where he was a Sldlowi-éle earned a B.A. from Duke University.

Hwei-Ming (Fred) Tsahas been a member of our board of directors sinmpigt 2006. Mr. Tsai has served as Executive Viesiéent
of SinoPac Bancorp, a financial holding companyeldda Los Angeles, California, since February 2@01d Chief Financial Officer of
SinoPac Bancorp since August 2005. Since DecenilfiZ, he has also served as Senior Executive Viesidemt of Far East National Bank,
a commercial bank that is held by SinoPac BanddrpTsai received an M.A. in Professional Accougtinom the University of Texas at
Austin and a B.A. in Accounting from National Tambniversity in Taiwan.

Edward J. Hayes, Jhas been a member of our board of directors siebeuary 2007. Mr. Hayes has served as Chief Finh@dficer
of Pillar Data Systems, Inc., a privately-held dattrage company, since August 2006. From July 20@ugust 2006, he served as
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial OffiecEQuantum Corporation, a data storage compablighy traded on NYSE. From March
2003 to July 2004, Mr. Hayes was an independergudtant and private investor. From April 2001 torta2003, he was President and C
Executive Officer of DirecTV Broadband, Inc., amemet service provider. From January 2000 to A2001, he served as Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of Telocityc., an internet service provider which the mamaget team took public in March 2000.
Mr. Hayes is a director and member of the Audit @Guttee of publicly-traded Alaska Communications t8yss Group, Inc., a
telecommunications provider, and a director andi@fen of the Audit Committee of privately-held NéMave Research, Inc., a provider of
laser-based systems and modules. Mr. Hayes hd@d&.alegree from Colgate University and conductisdgnaduate studies in Accounting
and Finance at the New York University Graduateo®tbf Business.

Sherman Tuahas been a member of our board of directors sierbeuary 2007. Mr. Tuan is founder of PurpleComna, (doing
business as TelTel), a provider of internet teleghand digital home services, where he has sers&hi@&f Executive Officer since January
2005 and Chairman of the Board since June 2003ddeserved as Chief Executive Officer of Purple @aomications Limited, an investment
holding company since April 2002. From Septemb&91® May 2002, he was director of Metromedia Fiketwork, Inc., a fiber optical
networking infrastructure provider. Mr. Tuan wasfoander of AboveNet Communications, Inc., an inggrconnectivity solutions provider,
where he served as President from March 1996 toadari998, Chief Executive Officer from March 193®6Vlay 2002 and director from
March 1996 to September 1999. Mr. Tuan receivedsa @egree in Electrical Engineering from Feng-Qhidversity in Taiwan.
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Available Information

Our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly ReporidForm 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and amemdsto reports filed or
furnished pursuant to Sections 13(a) and 15(dy@fecurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendedvaitable free of charge, on or though
our website atvww.supermicro.comas soon as reasonably practicable after SupaoMlectronically files such reports with, or fushes
those reports to, the Securities and Exchange Cesioni. Information contained on our website isinocbrporated by reference in, or made
part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K or our atfitngs with or reports furnished to the Secw#tiand Exchange Commission.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Risks Related to Our Business and Industry

Our recent significant growth makes it difficult to evaluate our current business and future prospectand may increase the risk of
your investment.

Although we have been operating since 1993, owrmess have grown substantially in recent periotig;lwmakes it difficult to
evaluate our current business and future prosp¥otsmust consider our business and prospectglim dif the risks and difficulties we
encounter as a rapidly growing technology comparg very competitive market. These risks and diffies include, but are not limited to,
the risks identified in this section and in partigithe following factors:

» our focus on a single market, the market for apfitiey optimized server systems and compont
e ourincreasing focus on the sales of server systsnt®@mpared to componer

» the difficulties we face in managing rapid growthpiersonnel and operatior

» the timing and success of new products and newntdopies introduced by us and our competit
» our ability to build brand awareness in a highlynpetitive market; an

» our ability to market new and existing productsoom own and with our partnet

We may not be able to successfully address anyesktrisks or others. Failure to do so adequatelideseriously harm our business
and cause our operating results to suffer.

Our quarterly operating results will likely fluctua te in the future, which could cause rapid declines our stock price.

As our business continues to grow, we believedbaiguarterly operating results will be subjecgteater fluctuation due to various
factors, many of which are beyond our control. Becthat may affect quarterly operating resulthanfuture include:

» our ability to attract new customers, retain erigttustomers and increase sales to such custa

» unpredictability of the timing and size of custoroeders, since most of our customers purchaserogiupts on a purchase order
basis rather than pursuant to a long term cont

» fluctuations in availability and costs associatéthwnaterials needed to satisfy customer requirds

» variability of our margins based on the mix of ggrsystems and components we ¢

» variability of operating expenses as a percentagetosales

» the timing of the introduction of new products pding microprocessor vendors and other supp

» our ability to introduce new and innovative serselutions that appeal to our custom

e our ability to address technology issues as thisg aimprove our produc functionality and expand our product offerin
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» changes in our product pricing policies, includihgse made in response to new product announceiaeahisricing changes of
our competitors

» mix of whether customer purchases are of full syster components and whether made directly or tirdndirect sales channe
» fluctuations based upon seasonal

» the rate of expansion, domestically and internatign

» the effectiveness of our sales force and the affwirbur distributors

» the effect of mergers and acquisitions among ouarpagitors, suppliers or partne

* general economic conditions in our geographic ntarlend

» impact of regulatory changes on our cost of doingjiess

Accordingly, it is difficult for us to accuratelpfecast our growth and results of operations onaatgrly basis. If we fail to meet
expectations of investors or analysts, our stoatepnay fall rapidly and without notice. Furtherrapthe fluctuation of quarterly operating
results may render less meaningful period-to-pecimuparisons of our operating results, and you lshoot rely upon them as an indication
of future performance.

If the demand for application optimized server soltions does not continue to develop as we anticipatégemand for our server solution:
may not grow as we expect.

The success of our business depends on the codtatlogption of application optimized server solusitny businesses for running their
critical business applications. The market for aaion optimized server solutions has begun tetigvin recent years. As the market for
general purpose servers has grown and maturedndegeneral purpose server vendors have focusgdawiding a limited range of models
that could be mass produced, thereby creating paramity for the development of a market focusadre application optimized servers.
This new market has been marked by frequent intitbalus of new technologies and products. Many eééhtechnologies and products have
not yet gained, and may not gain, significant corgtoacceptance. We expect to devote significaouress to identifying new market trends
and developing products to meet anticipated custaimmand for application optimized server solutidgiéimately, however, customers may
not purchase application optimized server solutanmd instead select general purpose lower-cos¢seand components. We are also part of
a broader market for server solutions and demanthése server solutions may decline or fail tongas we expect. Accordingly, we can not
assure you that demand for the type of serverisolsitve offer and plan to offer will continue tovééop as we anticipate, or at all.

Our future financial performance will depend on thetimely introduction and widespread acceptance of ew server solutions and
increased functionality of our existing server soltions.

Our future financial performance will depend on ability to meet customer specifications and regmients by enhancing our current
server solutions and developing server solutiorte méw and better functionality. The success of features and new server solutions
depends on several factors, including their timiefgoduction and market acceptance. We may notibeessful in developing enhancements
or new server solutions, or in timely bringing thearmarket. Customers may also defer purchasesraéxsting products pending the
introduction of anticipated new products. If oumwngerver solutions are not competitive with solnsi@ffered by other vendors, we may not
be perceived as a technology leader and could mmésket opportunities. If we are unable to enhahedunctionality of our server solutions
or introduce new server solutions which achieveespitead market acceptance, our reputation willdmeadjed, the value of our brand will
diminish, and our business will suffer. In additiomcertainties about the timing and nature of features and products could result in
increases in our research and development expwiitkeso assurance of future sales.
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We may not be able to successfully manage our plaad growth and expansion.

We are pursuing new customers and expanding odupt@fferings to grow our business rapidly. In mection with this growth, we
expect that our annual operating expenses wilk@se significantly during the foreseeable futurer@asnvest in sales and marketing, research
and development, manufacturing and production stfeeture, and strengthen customer service andosuggsources for our customers. Our
failure to expand operational and financial systéimsly or efficiently could result in additionaperating inefficiencies, which could incre:
our costs and expenses more than we had planngoteveht us from successfully executing our busimpdan. We may not be able to offset
the costs of operation expansion by leveragingtmmomies of scale from our growth in negotiatiath our suppliers and contract
manufacturers. Additionally, if we do increase operating expenses in anticipation of the growtbwfbusiness and this growth does not
meet our expectations, our financial results wéllfegatively impacted.

If our business grows, we will have to manage @oltlitt product design projects, materials procurdrpercesses, and sales efforts and
marketing for an increasing number of SKUs, as agléxpand the number and scope of our relatiogstith suppliers, distributors and end
customers. If we fail to manage these additionspoasibilities and relationships successfully, wayimcur significant costs, which may
negatively impact our operating results.

Additionally, in our efforts to be first to markeith new products with innovative functionality afehtures, we may devote significant
research and development resources to productsraddct features for which a market does not dgvglgckly, or at all. If we are not able
to predict market trends accurately, we may notbefrom such research and development actividesl, our results of operations may su

The market in which we participate is highly compeitive, and if we do not compete effectively, we mayot be able to increase our
market penetration, grow our net sales or improve or gross margins.

The market for server solutions is intensely coritipetand rapidly changing. Barriers to entry irr ooarket are relatively low and we
expect increased challenges from existing as vgalleav competitors. Some of our principal compeditffer server solutions at a lower pri
which has resulted in pricing pressures on sal@sioserver solutions. We expect further downwaiciqg pressure from our competitors ¢
expect that we will have to price some of our sesgdutions aggressively to increase our marketestvth respect to those products. If we
unable to maintain the margins on our server smhgtiour operating results could be negatively ictgzh In addition, if we do not develop
new innovative server solutions, or enhance thabiity, performance, efficiency and other featuod our existing server solutions, our
customers may turn to our competitors for altemesti In addition, pricing pressures and increasadpetition generally may also result in
reduced sales, lower margins or the failure ofmoducts to achieve or maintain widespread market@tance, any of which could have a
material adverse effect on our business, resultgefations and financial condition.

Our principal competitors include global technolagympanies such as Dell, Inc., Hewlett-Packard Gompinternational Business
Machines Corporation and Intel. In addition, weoaiempete with a number of smaller vendors who sddloapplication optimized servers,
such as Rackable Systems, Inc., and original desemufacturers, or ODMs, such as Quanta Computerporated. ODMs sell server
solutions marketed or sold under a third party Bran

Many of our competitors enjoy substantial compegithdvantages, such as:
e greater name recognition and deeper market peioety
» longer operating historie
» larger sales and marketing organizations and relseard development teams and budc

» more established relationships with customers,rachimanufacturers and suppliers and better chanoeeach larger customer
bases

» larger customer service and support organizatigtisgreater geographic scog
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» abroader and more diversified array of productssarvices; an
» substantially greater financial, technical and otiesources

As a result, our competitors may be able to respoare quickly and effectively than we can to neveloanging opportunities,
technologies, standards or customer requirementthérmore, because of these advantages, evendipplication optimized server solutic
are more effective than the products that our caitgpe offer, potential customers might accept cetitjwe products in lieu of purchasing our
products. The challenges we face from larger coitgpetwill become even greater if consolidatiorcolaboration between or among our
competitors occurs in our industry. For all of thesasons, we may not be able to compete sucdgsafainst our current or future
competitors, and if we do not compete effectively;, ability to increase our net sales may be ingohir

Our sales cycle is lengthy and expensive, and cowddversely affect the amount, timing and predictaBity of future net sales.

Our end customers generally need three to six nsaaftier an initial contact to make a final purchdseision with respect to our
products. As customers weigh their purchase optiwrsmay expend significant resources in pursuét séle that may ultimately fail to close.
We have little control over our customers’ budgetles and approval processes, or the strengthropetitors’relationships with our potent
customers, all of which could adversely affect sales efforts. The introduction of new products pratiuct enhancements may lengthen our
sales cycle as customers defer a decision on mirghaxisting products and evaluate our new praduttve are unsuccessful in closing si
after expending significant resources, our netssalel operating expenses will be adversely affected

As we increasingly target larger customers, our cusmer base may become less diversified, our costsdles may increase, and our
sales may be less predictable.

We expect that selling our server solutions toda@istomers will create new challenges. No ontoousr represented 10% or more of
our revenues for fiscal years 2005, 2006 and 20@Wever, if certain customers buy our productsregmager volumes, and their business
becomes a larger percentage of our net sales, werow increasingly dependent on those customenmsaiatain our growth. If our largest
customers do not purchase our products at thesl@reh the timeframes that we expect, our abibitynaintain or grow our net sales will be
adversely affected.

Additionally, as we and our distribution partnessus increasingly on selling to larger customexs atiracting larger orders, we expect
greater costs of sales. Our sales cycle may betamger and more expensive, as larger customersalpispend more time negotiating
contracts than smaller customers. In addition.daogistomers often seek to gain greater pricingessions, as well as greater levels of
support in the implementation and use of our sesekrtions. These factors can result in lower mer@or our products.

Increased sales to larger companies may also dasgations in results of operations. A largertonser may seek to fulfill all or
substantially all of its requirements in a singtdey, and not make another purchase for a signiffigariod of time. Accordingly, a significant
increase in revenue during the period in which e@gnize the revenue from the sale may be folldwed period of time during which the
customer purchases none or few of our productsgrifecant decline in net sales in periods follogia significant order could adversely
affect our stock price.

We must work closely with our suppliers to make tinely new product introductions.

We rely on our close working relationships with suppliers, including Intel and AMD, to anticipated deliver new products on a
timely basis when new generation materials and congponents are made available. Intel and AMD laeeotly suppliers of the
microprocessors we use in our server systems. Hre@ot able to
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maintain our relationships with our suppliers ontioue to leverage their research and developnagdhilities to develop new technologies
desired by our customers, our ability to quicklfeofadvanced technology and product innovatiorsutocustomers would be impaired. We
have no long term agreements that obligate ourlguppo continue to work with us or to supply ushaproducts.

Our suppliers’ failure to improve the functionality and performance of materials and core components for our productmay impair or
delay our ability to deliver innovative products toour customers.

We need our material and core component suppsect) as Intel and AMD, to provide us with core comgnts that are innovative,
reliable and attractive to our customers. Due gogaice of innovation in our industry, many of oustomers may delay or reduce purchase
decisions until they believe that they are recej\iest of breed products that will not be rendedesblete by an impending technological
development. Accordingly, demand for new servetesys that incorporate new products and featursigisficantly impacted by our
suppliers’ new product introduction schedules ddftinctionality, performance and reliability ob® new products. If our materials and
core component suppliers fail to deliver new angrisved materials and core components for our prisgdue may not be able to satisfy
customer demand for our products in a timely manmeat all. If our suppliers’ components do natdtion properly, we may incur additional
costs and our relationships with our customers begdversely affected.

Our time to market advantage is dependent upon ousuppliers’ ability to continue to introduce improved components for our
products.

We are dependent upon our material and core compsnepliers, such as Intel and AMD, to continuentooduce improved products
with additional features that our customers willdfiattractive. If the pace of innovation from ouppliers slows, our products may face
increased competition if our competitors are ablmtroduce products that use the latest technobdfgyed by other suppliers in the industry.
This price competition could lead to reduced ma@nd could adversely affect our results of openati

As our business grows, we expect that we may be esed to greater customer credit risks.

Historically, we have offered limited credit tertasour customers. As our customer base expandsjrazrders increase in size, and as
we obtain more direct customers, we expect to dffeneased credit terms and flexible payment progréo our customers. Doing so may
subject us to increased credit risk, higher accotetteivable with longer days outstanding, andeiases in charges or reserves, which could
have a material adverse effect on our businessitsesf operations and financial condition.

Our ability to develop our brand is critical to our ability to grow.

We believe that acceptance of our server solutigren expanding customer base depends in larg@pancreasing awareness of the
Supermicro brand and that brand recognition wilelsen more important as competition in our marletedbps. In particular, we expect an
increasing proportion of our sales to come fronesalf server systems, the sales of which we betiewebe particularly impacted by brand
strength. Successful promotion of our brand wifpeled largely on the effectiveness of our markegfigrts and on our ability to develop
reliable and useful products at competitive pridesdate, we have not devoted significant resoueésiilding our brand, and have limited
experience in increasing customer awareness dframd. Our future brand promotion activities, irthg any expansion of our cooperative
marketing programs with strategic partners, maplve significant expense and may not generate etb$ivels of increased revenue, and
even if such activities generate some increaseshiey, such increased revenue may not offset thenegp we incurred in endeavoring to
build our brand. If we fail to successfully promated maintain our brand, or incur substantial ezspern our attempts to promote and
maintain our brand, we may fail to attract enougtvcustomers or retain our existing customersecettient necessary to realize a sufficient
return on our brand-building efforts, and as altesur operating results and financial conditiomulcbsuffer.
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We principally rely on indirect sales channels fothe sale and distribution of our products and any éruption in these channels could
adversely affect our sales.

Historically, a substantial majority of our revesu®ave resulted from sales of our server solutilbrmigh third party distributors and
resellers. For fiscal year 2007, approximately 6¥%ur net sales were derived from sales to thandypresellers and distributors. We depend
on our distributors to assist us in promoting magaeeptance of our products and anticipate tinadjarity of our revenues will continue to
result from sales through indirect channels. Tonta@nh and potentially increase our revenue anditatafity, we will have to successfully
preserve and expand our existing distribution i@feships as well as develop new distribution relahips. Our distributors also sell products
offered by our competitors and may elect to fodwesrtefforts on these sales. If our competitorgioffur distributors more favorable terms or
have more products available to meet the needweaftustomers, or utilize the leverage of brogeduct lines sold through the distributors,
those distributors may de-emphasize or declinat/our products. In addition, our distributorsder decision-making process is complex
and involves several factors, including end custodeenand, warehouse allocation and marketing ressuwhich can make it difficult to
accurately predict total sales for the quarterl dati in the quarter. We also do not control theipg or discounts offered by distributors to
end customers. To maintain our participation itriistors’ marketing programs, in the past we hpravided promotional goods or made
short-term pricing concessions. The discontinuatibpromotional goods or pricing concessions cduflde a negative effect on our business.
Our distributors could also modify their businesagtices, such as payment terms, inventory levetsder patterns. If we are unable to
maintain successful relationships with distributorgxpand our distribution channels or we expegaimexpected changes in payment terms,
inventory levels or other practices by our disttdrg, our business will suffer.

We may be unable to accurately predict future salethrough our distributors, which could harm our ability to efficiently manage our
resources to match market demand.

Since a significant portion of our sales are médeugh domestic and international distributors, fmancial results, quarterly product
sales, trends and comparisons are affected byfitions in the buying patterns of end customerscamdlistributors, and by the changes in
inventory levels of our products held by theserifistors. We generally record revenue based ugsel&in” model which means that we
generally record revenue upon shipment to ouridigrs. For more information regarding our reveneeognition policies, see
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations—Critical Accug Policies.” While we attempt
to assist our distributors in maintaining targesemtking level of our products, we may not consigyebe accurate or successful. This process
involves the exercise of judgment and use of astiormgpas to future uncertainties including end eor demand. Our distributors also have
various rights to return products which could, agother things, result in our having to repurchiasentory which has declined in value ¢
obsolete. Consequently, actual results could diffan our estimates. Inventory levels of our pradueeld by our distributors may exceed or
fall below the levels we consider desirable on mgidorward basis. This could adversely affect distributors or our ability to efficiently
manage or invest in internal resources, such asifaeturing and shipping capacity, to meet the daefrfanour products.

If we are required to change the timing of our revaue recognition, our net sales and net income couttecrease.

We currently record revenue based upon a “sellrintiel with revenues generally recorded upon shipmieproducts to our
distributors. This is in contrast to a “sell-thrdxignodel pursuant to which revenues are generattpgnized upon sale of products by
distributors to their customers. This requires thatmaintain a reserve to cover the estimated abstay returns or exercises of stock rota
rights, which we estimate primarily based on ostdrical experience. If facts and circumstancesghauch that the rate of returns of our
products exceeds our historical experience, we maag to increase our reserve, which, in turn, weoaldse our revenue to decline. Similarly,
if facts and circumstances change such that waatenger able to determine reasonable estimatesarafales returns, we would be required
to defer our revenue recognition until the poinsale from the distributors to their customers. Aogh change may negatively impact our net
sales or net income
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for particular periods and cause a decline in tatksprice. For additional information regarding oevenue recognition policies, see
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations—Critical Accug Policies.”

The average selling prices for our existing servesolutions are subject to decline if customers do hgontinue to purchase our latest
generation products, which could harm our results boperations.

As with most electronics based products, averalljeg@rices of servers typically are highest a thme of introduction of new
products, which utilize the latest technology, ertl to decrease over time as such products becommoditized and are ultimately
replaced by even newer generation products. We aivbeen impacted by this phenomenon to any naa&xient to date because most of
our sales are generated from our most recentlgdotred products which have not yet become commnzeditand therefore are not yet subject
to the pressure of rapidly declining average sgliirices. However, as our business continues tw,gi@ may increasingly be subject to this
industry risk. We cannot predict the timing or ambof any decline in the average selling priceswfserver solutions that we may
experience in the future. In some instances, otgeagents with our distributors limit our ability teduce prices unless we make such price
reductions available to them, or price protectrth@ientory. If we are unable to decrease per maibhufacturing costs faster than the rate at
which average selling prices continue to decling,lusiness, financial condition and results ofrapens will be harmed.

Our cost structure and ability to deliver server sdutions to customers in a timely manner may be advsely affected by volatility of the
market for core components and materials for our poducts.

Prices of materials and core components utilizetiénmanufacture of our server solutions, sucteagesboards, chassis, central
processing units, or CPUs, memory and hard driepsesent a significant portion of our cost of salée generally do not enter into lotgrm
supply contracts for these materials and core commis, but instead purchase these materials andarmmts on a purchase order basis.
Prices of these core components and materialsadaiéleg, and, as a result, it is difficult to pretexpense levels and operating results. In
addition, if our business growth renders it necgssaappropriate to transition to longer term caots with materials and core component
suppliers, our costs may increase and our grosginsacould correspondingly decrease.

Because we often acquire materials and core conmp@pe an as needed basis, we may be limited iatlity to effectively and
efficiently respond to customer orders becausé@ethen-current availability or the terms and migcof materials and core components. Our
industry has experienced materials shortages divededelays in the past, and we may experiencetabes or delays of critical materials in
the future. From time to time, we have been foricedelay the introduction of certain of our produot the fulfillment of customer orders a
result of shortages of materials and core companérghortages or delays arise, the prices ofetinegterials and core components may
increase or the materials and core components wiayenavailable at all. In addition, in the evehsloortages, some of our larger competitors
may have greater abilities to obtain materials @@ components due to their larger purchasing pdWe may not be able to secure enough
core components or materials at reasonable priceSazceptable quality to build new products teet@istomer demand, which could
adversely affect our business and financial results

We may lose sales or incur unexpected expenses tilg to insufficient, excess or obsolete inventory.

As a result of our strategy to provide greater ch@ind customization of our products to our custepwee are required to maintain a
high level of inventory. If we fail to maintain digient inventory, we may not be able to meet dednfam our products on a timely basis, and
our sales may suffer. If we overestimate custoreemahd for our products, we could experience exoesstory of our products and be
unable to sell those products at a reasonable, pmica all. Additionally, the rapid pace of inndea in our industry could render significant
portions of our existing inventory obsolete. Certaf our distributors and OEMs have rights to netproducts, limited to purchases over a
specified period of time, generally within 60 to &ys of the purchase, or
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to products in the distributor’'s or OEM’s inventaicertain times, such as termination of the agese or product obsolescence. Any returns
under these arrangements could result in additiolpsblete inventory. In addition, server systent @mponents that have been customized
and later returned by those of our customers arntdgra who have return rights or stock rotatiomtsgmay be unusable for other purposes or
may require reformation at additional cost to beleneeady for sale to other customers. Excess mietiesinventory levels for these or other
reasons could result in unexpected expenses @ases in our reserves against potential futuregeBaxhich would adversely affect our
business and financial results. During fiscal y&f@7, 2006 and 2005, we recorded inventory writests charged to cost of sales of

$5.6 million, $2.9 million, $1.4 million, respecély, for excess and obsolete inventory. For adationformation regarding customer return
rights, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysismancial Condition and Results of Operations—ti€al Accounting Policies-Revenur
Recognition.”

Our focus on internal development and customizablserver solutions could delay our introduction of nes products and result in
increased costs.

Our strategy is to rely to a significant degreardarnally developed components, even when thirtygmponents may be available.
We believe this allows us to develop products witireater range of features and functionality diodva us to develop solutions that are
more customized to customer needs. However, iprapierly managed, this reliance on internally depetl components may be more costly
than use of third party components, thereby makimgproducts less price competitive or reducingroargins. In addition, our reliance on
internal development may lead to delays in theothiction of new products and impair our abilityiitroduce products rapidly to market. We
may also experience increases in our inventorysanstl obsolete inventory, thereby reducing our marg

Our research and development expenditures, as a pagntage of our net sales, are considerably highdran many of our competitors
and our earnings will depend upon maintaining revenes and margins that offset these expenditures.

Our strategy is to focus on being consistentlyddpimarket with flexible and customizable serwestems that take advantage of our
own internal development and the latest technofogftered by microprocessor manufacturers and abeponent vendors. Consistent with
this strategy, we spend higher amounts, as a pagenf revenues, on research and developmenttbasisnany of our competitors. If we
can not sell our products in sufficient volume avith adequate gross margins to compensate foriswelstment in research and
development, our earnings may be materially ane sy affected.

If our limited number of contract manufacturers or suppliers of materials and core components fail tmeet our requirements, we may
be unable to meet customer demand for our productsyhich could decrease our revenues and earnings.

We purchase many sophisticated materials and conpanents from one or a limited number of qualiegpliers and rely on a limite
number of contract manufacturers to provide vallded design, manufacturing, assembly and testcgsrwVe generally do not have long-
term agreements with these vendors, and insteadhdkgy materials and services through purchaser @dangements. We have no
contractual assurances from any contract manufarctioat adequate capacity will be available toousiget future demand for our products.

Consequently, we are vulnerable to any disruptinrssipply with respect to the materials and comaponents provided by limited-
source suppliers, and we are at risk of being hdroyediscontinuations of design, manufacturingeadsly or testing services from our
contract manufacturers. We have occasionally egpeed delivery delays from our suppliers and cahtraanufacturers because of high
industry demand or because of inability to meetquality or delivery requirements. For examplethia quarter ended September 30, 2006,
we experienced delays in the delivery of printeduwit board material as a result of the loss of tfour five printer circuit board vendors.
One of the vendors filed for bankruptcy and theeotthanged its business model and ceased suppiyiriche delays in delivery of the
materials resulted in a reduction of net
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sales for the quarter of approximately two to threion dollars. If our relationships with our spiers and contract manufactures are
negatively impacted by late payments or other sswe may not receive timely delivery of materitsl core components. If we were to lose
any of our current supply or contract manufacturgigtionships, the process of identifying and tyialg a new supplier or contract
manufacturer who will meet our quality and deliveeguirements, and who will appropriately safeguardintellectual property, may require
a significant investment of time and resourcesgasbly affecting our ability to satisfy customerghase orders and delaying our ability to
rapidly introduce new products to market. Similaifyany of our suppliers were to cancel or matsriehange contracts or commitments tc

or fail to meet the quality or delivery requiremeneeded to satisfy customer demand for our predaat reputation and relationships with
customers could be damaged. We could lose ordensnable to develop or sell some products cost#ftdy or on a timely basis, if at all,
and have significantly decreased revenues, magagidsearnings, which would have a material advdifseteon our business.

Our failure to deliver high quality server solutions could damage our reputation and diminish demanddr our products.

Our server solutions are critical to our custombersiness operations. Our customers require ouessolutions to perform at a high
level, contain valuable features and be extrenlghile. The design of our server solutions is sifated and complex, and the process for
manufacturing, assembling and testing our servettieas is challenging. Occasionally, our desigmmamufacturing processes may fail to
deliver products of the quality that our custonrexguire. For example, in 2000, a vendor providedits a defective capacitor that failed
under certain heavy use applications. As a resuitproduct needed to be repaired. Though the vesgteed to pay for a large percentage of
the costs of the repairs, we incurred costs in eotion with the recall and diverted resources faiher projects.

New flaws or limitations in our server solutionsyrize detected in the future. Part of our strategyp ibring new products to market
quickly, and first-generation products may haveghér likelihood of containing undetected flawsoifr customers discover defects or other
performance problems with our products, our custshirisinesses, and our reputation, may be dam&yesdomers may elect to delay or
withhold payment for defective or underperformimgver solutions, request remedial action, termicatgracts for untimely delivery, or ele
not to order additional server solutions. Additityyacustomers may make warranty claims againstiéch could result in an increase in our
provision for doubtful accounts, an increase idemlon cycles for accounts receivable or subjediouthe expense and risk of litigation. We
may incur expense in recalling, refurbishing oraiepg defective server solutions. If we do notgedy address customer concerns about our
products, our reputation and relationships with@wstomers may be harmed. For all of these reasaegymer dissatisfaction with the qua
of our products could substantially impair our &pito grow our business.

Conflicts of interest may arise between us and Abt®m Technology Inc., Adaptec, Inc. or Tatung Compay, three of our major
contract manufacturers, and those conflicts may adsrsely affect our operations.

We use Ablecom Technology, a related party, fortreat design and manufacturing coordination suppet work with Ablecom to
optimize modular designs for our chassis and aedhother components. For fiscal years 2007, 20662005, our purchases from Ablecom
represented approximately 27.7%, 31.3% and 32.26ti0€ost of sales, respectively. Ablecarsales to us constitute a substantial majori
Ablecom’s net sales. Ablecom is a privately-heldsean-based company.

Steve Liang, Ablecom’s Chief Executive Officer dadyest shareholder, is the brother of Charlesd,ianr President, Chief Executive
Officer and Chairman of the Board. Charles Liang] his spouse, ChiGhu (Sara) Liu Liang, our Vice President of Openasi Treasurer ai
director, jointly own approximately 30.7% of Ablents outstanding common stock. Charles Liang serveddiasector of Ablecom during ol
fiscal 2006, but is not currently serving in suelpacity. In addition, Yih-Shyan (Wally) Liaw, ouiidé President of International Sales and
Secretary, and a director, and his wife jointly capproximately 5.2% of Ablecom’s
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outstanding common stock, and collectively, Mr. @dmLiang, Ms. Liang, Mr. Liaw, Mr. Steve Liangdrelatives of these individuals own
over 80% of Ablecom’s outstanding common stock. &frd Mrs. Charles Liang, as directors, officers sigdificant stockholders, and

Mr. Liaw, as an officer, director and significatdskholder, of the Company, have considerable @rfae over the management of our
business relationships. Accordingly, we may bedliaataged by their economic interests as stockholafeAblecom and their personal
relationship with Ablecom’s Chief Executive Officé/e may not negotiate or enforce contractual teasnaggressively with Ablecom as we
might with an unrelated party, and the commeragahts of our agreements may be less favorable tleamigtht obtain in negotiations with
third parties. If our business dealings with Ablecare not as favorable to us as arms-length tréinsacour results of operations may be
harmed. Historically, transactions with Ablecom @@t approved by an independent committee of oardof directors as we had no
independent directors.

We use Tatung Company for contract manufacturimgiees. Tatung also purchases our server systeths@nponents. Similarly, we
purchase Adaptec drivers that are developed arfibcoed for us, and concurrently sell our produoté\daptec. In fiscal year 2007 we
purchased contract manufacturing services and ptediespectively, from Tatung and Adaptec in thgragate amount of approximately
$23.3 million and $6.6 million, respectively, armldsproducts to Tatung and Adaptec in the aggregieteunt of approximately $5.7 million
and $5.7 million, respectively. Since Tatung andptec are both customers and vendors, the termscanttitions of our business agreements
with them may not be as favorable, individuallyimaggregate, as we may be able to receive fromlated third parties, and we may not be
as strongly enforce our rights under these agretankmaddition, if a dispute were to arise undaragreement to sell our products to Tatung
or Adaptec, the dispute could lead to disruptioteomination of the provision of services or prougy them to us. This could compromise
our ability to satisfy customer orders on a timedsis, if at all, or we may incur significant costestablishing an agreement with a new
vendor, the terms of which may not be as favorablthose in our agreements with Tatung and Adaptdhat event, our net sales, margins
and earnings could suffer. At the same time, ifspuate were to arise under our agreement to puect@stract manufacturing services or
products from Tatung or Adaptec, the dispute mayseahem to reduce or terminate their purchasesmbroducts, thereby reducing our
revenues.

In addition, our relationships with Ablecom and Ureg, who are stockholders as well as providerofract manufacturing services,
could be adversely affected by declines in ourksfwce or divestments by Ablecom or Tatung of thebiares of our common stock. Steve
Liang, Ablecom’s Chief Executive Officer, and Taguineld approximately 2.6% and 2.0%, respectivelpus outstanding common stock as
of June 30, 2007. If the value of the shares thateSLiang or Tatung holds should decline, by dasean our stock price or by disposition of
the shares, Ablecom, because Steve Liang has evabld influence over Ablecomtommercial agreements, or Tatung may not bengitio
give us terms and conditions for contract manufamguservices that are as favorable as those iexisting contracts. Likewise, if Steve
Liang ceases to have significant influence overe&bin, or if those of our stockholders who hold skaf Ablecom cease to hold a majority
of the outstanding shares of Ablecom, the termscandiitions of our agreements with Ablecom mayb®was favorable as those in our
existing contracts. As a result, our costs coutdeéase and adversely affect our margins and resfutigerations.

Our relationship with Ablecom may allow us to benet from favorable pricing which may result in reported results more favorable
than we might report in the absence of our relatioship.

Although we generally reegotiate the price of products that we purchas®m fAblecom on a quarterly basis, pursuant to oteegent
with Ablecom either party may neegotiate the price of products for each orderassult of our relationship with Ablecom, it isgsible tha
Ablecom may in the future sell products to us ptiee lower than we could obtain from an unrelatedd party supplier. This may result in
our reporting for one or more periods gross pdit percentage of net sales in excess of whatigig hrave obtained absent our relationship
with Ablecom.
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We are increasing our reliance on Ablecom and coulde subject to risks associated with greater reliase on a limited source of
contract manufacturing services and inventory warebusing.

We plan to expand our warehousing capacity andrmmnufacturing relationship with Ablecom in Chinabl&com is transferring
operations from Taiwan to a larger facility in Chirin addition to providing a larger volume of aatt manufacturing services for us,
Ablecom will warehouse for us an increasing nundderomponents and subassemblies manufactured kyprawduppliers prior to shipment
to our facilities in the U.S. and Europe. We alsticpate that we will continue to lease office spdrom Ablecom in Taiwan to support the
research and development efforts we are undertaking

If we or Ablecom fail to manage the transition ohtract manufacturing services and warehouse dpasaio China, we may experier
delays in our ability to fulfill customer ordersin8larly, if Ablecom’s facility in China is subjedb damage, destruction or other disruptions,
our inventory may be damaged or destroyed, and syeba unable to find adequate alternative providécontract manufacturing services
the time that we or our customers require. We ctogd orders and be unable to develop or sell gmoructs cost-effectively or on a timely
basis, if at all.

Currently, we purchase contract manufacturing sessprimarily for our chassis and power supply potsl from Ablecom. If our
commercial relationship with Ablecom were to deieate or terminate, establishing direct relatiopshiith those entities supplying Ablecom
with key materials for our products or identifyingd negotiating agreements with alternative pragiddé warehouse and contract
manufacturing services might take a considerableusitnof time and require a significant investmemesources. Pursuant to our agreements
with Ablecom and subject to certain exceptions,e&bim has the exclusive right to be our supplighefspecific products developed under
such agreements. As a result, if we are unablétmiosuch products from Ablecom on terms acceptabus, we may need to identify a new
supplier, change our design and acquire new tootih@f which could result in delays in our protdagailability and increased costs. If we
need to use other suppliers, we may not be al#sttblish business arrangements that are, indilydorain the aggregate, as favorable as the
terms and conditions we have established with Adstedf any of these things should occur, our négssanargins and earnings could
significantly decrease, which would have a matexihlerse effect on our business.

We are increasing our operations in Taiwan and Chia and could be subject to risks of doing business the region.

We intend to increase our business operations i, Asd particularly in Taiwan and China. As a tesur exposure to the business
risks presented by the economies and regulatoriy@maents of Asia will increase. For example, tldidity, enforceability and scope of
protection of intellectual property is uncertairdavolving in Taiwan and China, and our intelletfuaperty rights may not be protected
under the laws of Taiwan and China to the samenéseunder laws of the United States. If our latdlial property is misappropriated, we
may experience unfair competition and decliningsalr be forced to incur increased costs of enfgrour intellectual property rights, both
which would adversely affect our net sales, groasgins and results of operations.

Our growth into markets outside the United Statesxposes us to risks inherent in international busings operations.

We market and sell our systems and componentsdaotfestically and outside the United States. Wenihte expand our international
sales efforts, especially into Asia, but our inggional expansion efforts may not be successfut.i@iarnational operations expose us to risks
and challenges that we would otherwise not fageeitonducted our business only in the United Statezh as:

» heightened price sensitivity from customers in egimgr markets

e our ability to establish local manufacturing, sugind service functions, and to form channel reteships with resellers in non-
U.S. markets
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» localization of our systems and components, indgdianslation into foreign languages and the astat expense:

» compliance with multiple, conflicting and changiggvernmental laws and regulatiol

« foreign currency fluctuation:

« limited visibility into sales of our products by odistributors;

» laws favoring local competitor

» weaker legal protections of intellectual propeights and mechanisms for enforcing those rig

» market disruptions created by public health crisaggions outside the U.S., such as Avian flu, SAddd other disease

» difficulties in staffing and managing foreign opioas, including challenges presented by relatigpsstvith workers’ councils and
labor unions; an

» changing regional economic and political conditic

These factors could limit our future internatiorales or otherwise adversely impact our operations.

We have in the past entered into plea and settlemeagreements with the government relating to violabns of export control and
economic sanctions laws that occurred during the 20 to 2003 timeframe; if we fail to comply with lavg and regulations restricting
dealings with sanctioned countries, we may be sulgeto future civil or criminal penalties, which may have a material adverse effect o
our business or ability to do business outside the.S.

In 2004, we received subpoenas from the Bureandfdtry and Security of the Department of Commesc®|S, with respect to our
relationship with a distributor and transactiongoiing the sale and resale of products to Irah ¢lcaurred prior to 2004. After receiving the
first subpoena, we retained special export comwahsel, conducted an internal investigation inese matters and terminated our relatior
with the distributor in question. We also institdii@ new export compliance program, which prograntaminue to develop and implement.
The U.S. Department of Justice and Office of Faréigsets Control of the Department of TreasuryQBAC, also initiated investigations
regarding these matters.

In September 2006, we entered into an agreemehttiagtU.S. Department of Justice pursuant to whielagreed to plead guilty to one
count of violating federal export regulations bypgling 300 motherboards to Dubai, UAE, with knovgedhat they would be transshipped to
Iran. We agreed to pay a $150,000 fine. The pleeemgent has been approved by the U.S. DistricttC@le have also entered into a
settlement agreement with BIS with respect to alfbgolations of the Export Administration Regubeits pursuant to which we agreed to pay
a fine of approximately $125,000. We were charge8Is with twelve violations of the Export Adminiation Regulations. Six of these
violations involved the shipment of server systemd components without required government autatoz through a distributor to end
customers in Iran. Three of these violations inedhallegations that shipments took place when vesvkor had reason to know that the
transactions would constitute a violation of thelayable regulations. Three involved claims thatmeade false declarations on shipping
documents, stating that no license was requirethidexport of the products when in fact a govemirtieense was required. BIS has also
issued a proposed charging letter to one of oud@reps who served as an international sales teadetet the time of the transactions in
guestion. This individual continues to be emplobgdis; however, the individual no longer works miaternational sales function. Finally,
we have entered into a settlement agreement withG€lating to 21 alleged violations of U.S. saaot laws. Pursuant to this agreement,
we have paid a fine of $179,000. We believe thasalies with respect to the matters under invag8tig have been resolved as to the
Company.

We believe we are currently in compliance in alkenial respects with applicable export related lawd regulations. However, if our
export compliance program is not effective, or & are subject to any future claims
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regarding violation of export control and econosanctions laws, we could be subject to civil ominial penalties, which could lead to a
material fine or other sanctions, including los&xgport privileges, that may have a material adveféect on our business, financial condit
results of operation and future prospects. In amtithese plea and settlement agreements anduaumg fviolations could have an adverse
impact on our ability to sell our products to Uf&leral, state and local government and relateitiesnt

Any failure to protect our intellectual property ri ghts, trade secrets and technical know-how could ipair our brand and our
competitiveness.

Our ability to prevent competitors from gaining @ss to our technology is essential to our sucties® fail to protect our intellectual
property rights adequately, we may lose an impoddmantage in the markets in which we competeddmaark, patent, copyright and trade
secret laws in the United States and other juriixtis as well as our internal confidentiality prduees and contractual provisions are the core
of our efforts to protect our proprietary technol@nd our brand. Our patents and other intellegitgberty rights may be challenged by
others or invalidated through administrative preoslitigation, and we may initiate claims ordgition against third parties for infringement
of our proprietary rights. Such administrative predings and litigation are inherently uncertain divért resources that could be put towards
other business priorities. We may not be able tainta favorable outcome and may spend considerabtrirces in our efforts to defend and
protect our intellectual property.

Furthermore, legal standards relating to the \glidinforceability and scope of protection of iteetual property rights are uncertain.
Effective patent, trademark, copyright and trad@eteprotection may not be available to us in exeyntry in which our products are
available. The laws of some foreign countries matylre as protective of intellectual property righssthose in the United States, and
mechanisms for enforcement of intellectual propégkits may be inadequate.

Accordingly, despite our efforts, we may be undblprevent third parties from infringing upon orsappropriating our intellectual
property and using our technology for their contpetiadvantage. Any such infringement or misapgedjgm could have a material adverse
effect on our business, results of operations arah€ial condition.

Resolution of claims that we have violated or mayiw@late the intellectual property rights of others ould require us to indemnify our
customers, resellers or vendors, redesign our prodts, or pay significant royalties to third parties,and materially harm our business.

Our industry is marked by a large number of paterdpyrights, trade secrets and trademarks andelyént litigation based on
allegations of infringement or other violation afellectual property rights. Third-parties havehie past sent us correspondence regarding
their intellectual property and in the future weymeaceive claims that our products infringe or atelthird partiesintellectual property rights
For example, we were subject to a lawsuit fileds@ptember 2, 2005 by Rackable Systems, Inc. On3y1a@07, we settled the claims on
terms which had no adverse effect on our busitiess)cial condition and result of operations. Ssstel intellectual property claims against
us from others could result in significant finaridiability or prevent us from operating our busiseor portions of our business as we curr¢
conduct it or as we may later conduct it. In additiresolution of claims may require us to redesigntechnology, to obtain licenses to use
intellectual property belonging to third partie)ieh we may not be able to obtain on reasonabiheggtio cease using the technology covered
by those rights, and to indemnify our customerselters or vendors. Any claim, regardless of itsiteecould be expensive and time
consuming to defend against, and divert the atiardf our technical and management resources.
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If we lose Charles Liang, our President, Chief Exagive Officer and Chairman, or any other key employe or are unable to attract
additional key employees, we may not be able to ingment our business strategy in a timely manner.

Our future success depends in large part uponahéneied service of our executive management teadrother key employees. In
particular, Charles Liang, our President, Chiefdttive Officer and Chairman of the Board, is ctito the overall management of our
company as well as to the development of our cailtund our strategic direction. Mr. Liang co-founded company and has been our Chief
Executive Officer since our inception. His expedern running our business and his personal invobrg in key relationships with suppliers,
customers and strategic partners are extremehalbduo our company. Additionally, we are particlyl@ependent on the continued service
of our existing research and development persdeeduse of the complexity of our products and teldgies. Our employment
arrangements with our executives and employee®trequire them to provide services to us for gmgctfic length of time, and they can
terminate their employment with us at any time hvait without notice, without penalty. The loss ef\dces of any of these executives or of
one or more other key members of our team couldwss®y harm our business.

To execute our growth plan, we must attract additidighly qualified personnel, including additibeagineers and executive staff.
Competition for qualified personnel is intense,exsally in San Jose, where we are headquarterechale experienced in the past and may
continue to experience difficulty in hiring andagting highly skilled employees with appropriatealifications. In particular, we are curren
working to add personnel in our finance, accounting general administration departments, which hésterically had limited budgets and
staffing. If we are unable to attract and integeadditional key employees in a manner that enaldds scale our business and operations
effectively, or if we do not maintain competitiverapensation policies to retain our employees, bilityato operate effectively and
efficiently could be limited.

Our board and management team have a limited histgrof working together and may not be able to execatour business plan.

Two members of our Board joined our Board in Augt@26 and two others joined in February 2007. Howdideshima, our Chief
Financial Officer, joined the Company in May 2008 have also recently filled a number of positioneur finance and accounting staff.
Accordingly, key personnel in our finance and acdimg team have only recently assumed the dutidgesponsibilities they are now
performing. Our Board members and key employees harked together for only a limited period of tiswed have a limited track record of
executing our business plan as a team. In additienexecutives have limited experience condudiingjiness as a public company and
fulfilling the increased legal, administrative aacktounting obligations associated with being aipuddmpany. Accordingly, it is difficult to
predict whether our directors and senior executiveBvidually and collectively, will be effectivia managing our operations.

Any failure to adequately expand our sales force Wiimpede our growth.

Though we expect to continue to rely primarily bird party distributors to sell our server solugpwe expect that, over time, our dir
sales force will grow. Competition for direct safgEysonnel with the advanced sales skills and teahknowledge we need is intense. Our
ability to grow our revenue in the future will dek in large part, on our success in recruitingining, retaining and successfully managing
sufficient qualified direct sales personnel. Newehirequire significant training and may take sonihs or longer before they reach full
productivity. Our recent hires and planned hirey mat become as productive as we would like, ananag be unable to hire sufficient
numbers of qualified individuals in the future fretmarkets where we do business. If we are unatiie¢ and develop sufficient numbers of
productive sales personnel, sales of our servetisnk will suffer.
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Our direct sales efforts may create confusion forur end customers and harm our relationships with oudistributors and OEMs.

Though our direct sales efforts have historicagt limited and focused on customers who typiaidiyrot buy from distributors or
OEMs, we expect our direct sales force to growwashasiness grows. As our direct sales force besdarger, our direct sales efforts may
lead to conflicts with our distributors and OEMdyavmay view our direct sales efforts as underminiragr efforts to sell our products. If a
distributor or OEM deems our direct sales effantbé inappropriate, the distributor or OEM may efféctively market our products, may
emphasize alternative products from competitorsnay seek to terminate our business relationshigruptions in our distribution channels
could cause our revenues to decrease or fail ww geoexpected. Our failure to implement an effectlirect sales strategy that maintains and
expands our relationships with our distributors @&Ms could lead to a decline in sales and adweedétct our results of operations.

Backlog does not provide a substantial portion of ar net sales in any quarter.

Our net sales are difficult to forecast because@aaot have sufficient backlog of unfilled ordesstieet our quarterly net sales targe
the beginning of a quarter. Rather, a majority wf met sales in any quarter depend upon custorder®that we receive and fulfill in that
quarter. Because our expense levels are basedtiomaur expectations as to future net sales ardarge extent are fixed in the short term,
we might be unable to adjust spending in time tmpensate for any shortfall in net sales. Accordinpghy significant shortfall of revenues in
relation to our expectations would harm our opacatesults.

If the market for modular, open standard-based prodicts does not continue to grow, opportunities to #eur products will be scarcer
and our ability to grow would suffer.

The success of our business requires companiesnmit to a modular, open standard-based serveitectlre instead of traditional
proprietary and RISC/UNIX based servers. If entegs do not adopt this open standard-based appritecharket for our products may not
grow as we anticipate and our revenues would beradly affected. Many prospective customers havested significant financial and
human resources in their existing systems, manyhi¢h are critical to their operations, and theyyrha reticent to overhaul their systems.
Moreover, many of the server systems that we seteatly run on the Linux operating system, andsatgiect to the GNU General Public
License. Pending litigation involving Linux and t&&U General Public License could be resolved imaamner that adversely affects Linux
adoption in our industry and could materially hayur ability to sell our products based on the Liyperating system and the GNU General
Public License. If the market for open standardedasodular technologies does not continue to devielioany reason, our ability to grow
our business will be adversely affected.

Market demand for our products may decrease as a seilt of changes in general economic conditions, a®ll as incidents of terrorism,
war and other social and political instability.

Our net sales and gross profit depend largely oeigd economic conditions and, in particular, ttiergyth of demand for our server
solutions in the markets in which we are doing bess. From time to time, customers and potentistoooers have elected not to make
purchases of our products due to reduced budgdtararertainty about the future, and, in the cagdisifibutors, declining demand from their
customers for their solutions in which they intégraur products. Similarly, from time to time, aofderrorism, in particular in the United
States, have had a negative impact on informagohnology spending. High fuel prices and turmoihie Middle East and elsewhere have
increased uncertainty in the United States andther markets. Should the current conflicts inMiddle East and in other parts of the world
suppress economic activity in the United Stateglaloally, our customers may delay or reduce theicpases on information technology,
which would result in lower demand for our produatsl adversely affect our results of operations.
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If we acquire any companies or technologies in thieiture, they could prove difficult to integrate, disrupt our business, dilute
stockholder value and adversely affect our operatig results.

In the future, we may acquire or make investmantompanies, assets or technologies that we bedieveomplementary or strategic.
We have not made any acquisitions or investmentsite, and therefore our ability as an organizatomake acquisitions or investments is
unproven. If we decide to make an acquisition gegtment, we face numerous risks, including:

« difficulties in integrating operations, technolagjigroducts and personn
« diversion of financial and managerial resourcemfaxisting operations
» risk of overpaying for or misjudging the strateffiof an acquired company, asset or technol

» problems or liabilities stemming from defects ofaquired product or intellectual property litigatithat may result from offering
the acquired product in our marke

» challenges in retaining employees key to maximizevialue of the acquisition or investme
« inability to generate sufficient return on investe

* incurrence of significant o-time write-offs; and

e delays in customer purchases due to uncerte

If we proceed with an acquisition or investment,may be required to use a considerable amountratash, including proceeds from
this offering, or to finance the transaction thrbutebt or equity securities offerings, which magréase our financial liquidity or dilute our
stockholders and affect the market price of ouclstds a result, if we fail to properly evaluatedagxecute acquisitions or investments, our
business and prospects may be harmed.

Maintaining and improving our financial controls and complying with rules and regulations applicable & public companies may be a
significant burden on our management team and requé considerable expenditures of our resources.

As a public company, we incur additional legal,aatting and other expenses that we did not incar @$vate company. The Securit
Exchange Act of 1934, or the Exchange Act, the &aab-Oxley Act of 2002, or the Sarbanes-Oxley &etl The Nasdaq Marketplace Rules,
or Nasdagq rules, apply to us as a public compaoyliance with these rules and regulations havesstated significant increases in our
legal and financial budgets and may also strairpeusonnel, systems and resources.

The Exchange Act requires, among other things\ditf annual, quarterly and current reports wigpeet to our business and financial
condition. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires, amahgrahings, that we maintain effective disclostwatrols and procedures and internal
control over financial reporting. Satisfying thesguirements involves a commitment of significaagaurces and management oversight.
result of management’s efforts to comply with suefjuirements, other important business concernsret@ve insufficient attention, which
could have a material adverse effect on our busjf#sncial condition and results of operatiorallfe to meet certain of these regulatory
requirements may also cause us to be delistedthierflasdaq Global Market.

In addition, we are hiring and will continue toédmdditional legal, accounting and financial steth appropriate public company
experience and technical accounting knowledge, whidl increase our operating expenses in futumgopis.

We also expect these rules and regulations to makere difficult and more expensive for us to abtdirector and officer liability
insurance and we may be required to accept redtmeztage or incur substantially higher costs tontad coverage. If we are unable to
maintain adequate directors’ and officers’ insuggricmay be more difficult for us to attract amdain qualified persons to serve on our board
of directors or as executive officers.
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Our operations involve the use of hazardous and téx materials, and we must comply with environmentalaws and regulations, which
can be expensive, and may affect our business angerating results.

We are subject to federal, state and local reguriatielating to the use, handling, storage, didmoshhuman exposure to hazardous and
toxic materials. If we were to violate or beconable under environmental laws in the future assalt®f our inability to obtain permits,
human error, accident, equipment failure or otlaerses, we could be subject to fines, costs, draidriminal sanctions, face third party
property damage or personal injury claims or baiireg to incur substantial investigation or remédiacosts, which could be material, or
experience disruptions in our operations, any attvicould have a material adverse effect on ouinless. In addition, environmental laws
could become more stringent over time imposingtgreaompliance costs and increasing risks and pesassociated with violations, which
could harm our business.

We also face increasing complexity in our prodwedign as we adjust to new and future requiremetdsimg to the materials
composition of our products, including the restoics on lead and other hazardous substances dppliwaspecified electronic products
placed on the market in the European Union (Reigrion the Use of Hazardous Substances Direc@2/®5/EC, also known as the RoHS
Directive). We are also subject to laws and regaiatsuch as California’s “Proposition 65” whiclyuéres that clear and reasonable warnings
be given to consumers who are exposed to cert@midlals deemed by the State of California to beydeous, such as lead. In June 2007, we
entered into a settlement agreement regarding i, and the claims on terms had no adversetafeour business, financial condition ¢
result of operations. We expect that our operatwitide affected by other new environmental lawsl aegulations on an ongoing basis.
Although we cannot predict the ultimate impact of auch new laws and regulations, they will likedgult in additional costs, and could
require that we change the design and/or manufagtof our products, any of which could have a matedverse effect on our business.

Risks Related to Owning Our Stock
The trading price of our common stock is likely tobe volatile, and you might not be able to sell youshares at or above the price at
which you purchased the shares.

Our stock has been publicly traded for a relativaigrt period of time, having first begun tradingMarch 2007. The trading prices of
technology company securities in general have béghly volatile. Accordingly, the trading price ofir common stock is likely to be subject
to wide fluctuations. Factors, in addition to thasglined elsewhere in this prospectus, that méscathe trading price of our common stock
include:

e actual or anticipated variations in our operatiegults;

« announcements of technological innovations, newdycts or product enhancements, strategic alliaocsgnificant agreements
by us or by our competitor

» changes in recommendations by any securities asalyat elect to follow our common stox

» the financial projections we may provide to thelpylany changes in these projections or our faikarmeet these projectior
» the loss of a key custome

» the loss of key personn

» technological advancements rendering our prodestsValuable

* lawsuits filed against u:

« changes in operating performance and stock magdeations of other companies that sell similar piaisl;

e price and volume fluctuations in the overall stot&rket;

» market conditions in our industry, the industrié®ar customers and the economy as a whole;
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» other events or factors, including those resulfingh war, incidents of terrorism or responses &s#hevents

Future sales of shares by existing stockholders cloucause our stock price to decline.

Attempts by existing stockholders to sell substdrtimounts of our common stock in the public masfttr the contractual lock-up and
other legal restrictions on resale discussed mpghdspectus lapse could cause the trading prioerodommon stock to decline significantly.
As of June 30, 2007, we had approximately 30.Zionilshares of common stock outstanding. Of theaseshonly shares of common stock
sold in our initial public offering to investorshar than those subject to a 180-day contractultlpcare currently freely tradable, without
restriction, in the public market. Merrill LynchidPce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated may, in its sheretion, permit our officers, directors,
employees and current stockholders who are sutgjecii80-day contractual lock-up to sell sharesrpga September 25, 2007, the expiration
of the lock-up agreements. The lock-up is subjeexttension under certain circumstances.

After the lock-up agreements pertaining to ouirahipublic offering expire, an additional approxitly 21.0 million shares will be
eligible for sale in the public market, includingpaoximately 11.6 million shares held by direct@secutive officers and other affiliates,
which will be subject to volume limitations undeulR 144 under the Securities Act. In addition, agpnately 12.0 million shares subject to
outstanding options and reserved for future isseiamcler our 1998 stock option plan will becomeilelggfor sale in the public market to the
extent permitted by the provisions of various vegthigreements, the lock-up agreements and Rulearidi401 under the Securities Act. If
these additional shares are sold, or if it is peegkthat they will be sold, in the public markigte trading price of our common stock could
decline.

If securities analysts do not publish research oraports about our business or if they downgrade oustock, the price of our stock could
decline.

The research and reports that industry or finarasialysts publish about us or our business likalehan effect on the trading price of
our common stock. If an industry analyst decidesm@over our company, or if an industry analystides to cease covering our company at
some point in the future, we could lose visibilitythe market, which in turn could cause our stpgke to decline. If an industry analyst
downgrades our stock, our stock price would likegline rapidly in response.

The concentration of our capital stock ownership vth insiders will likely limit your ability to influ ence corporate matters.

As of August 20, 2007, we anticipate that our exigewfficers, directors, current five percent oeater stockholders and affiliated
entities will together beneficially owned approxielg 47.8 percent of our common stock outstandikega result, these stockholders, acting
together, will have significant influence over adhtters that require approval by our stockholdarduding the election of directors and
approval of significant corporate transactions.g@oate action might be taken even if other stoaltdad, including those who purchase shares
in this offering, oppose them. This concentratibownership might also have the effect of delayamgreventing a change of control of our
company that other stockholders may view as beaéfic

Provisions of our certificate of incorporation andbylaws and Delaware law might discourage, delay gsrevent a change of control of
our company or changes in our management and, asrasult, depress the trading price of our common stek.

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws contaiovisions that could discourage, delay or prewectiange in control of our compe
or changes in our management that the stockhotderngr company may deem advantageous. These prosisi

» establish a classified board of directors so tleatati members of our board are elected at one;i
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*  require supemajority voting to amend some provisions in outtifieate of incorporation and bylaw

» authorize the issuance of “blank check” prefertedlsthat our board could issue to increase thebraurof outstanding shares and
to discourage a takeover atternr

« limit the ability of our stockholders to call spatmeetings of stockholder
« prohibit stockholder action by written consent, @hhiequires all stockholder actions to be takemrmateeting of our stockholde!
« provide that the board of directors is expressthatized to adopt, or to alter or repeal our bylaasl

» establish advance notice requirements for nominatior election to our board or for proposing nratteat can be acted upon by
stockholders at stockholder meetin

In addition, we are subject to Section 203 of tledallvare General Corporation Law, which, subjegdime exceptions, prohibits
“business combinations” between a Delaware corforand an “interested stockholder,” which is gafigrdefined as a stockholder who
becomes a beneficial owner of 15% or more of a Wata corporation’s voting stock for a three-yeaiquefollowing the date that the
stockholder became an interested stockholder.@e203 could have the effect of delaying, deferongreventing a change in control that
our stockholders might consider to be in their liggtrests. See “Description of Capital Stock.”

These anti-takeover defenses could discouragey delarevent a transaction involving a change intcd of our company. These
provisions could also discourage proxy contestsraakle it more difficult for you and other stockhetd to elect directors of your choosing
and cause us to take corporate actions other tuee tyou desire.

We do not expect to pay any cash dividends for thifereseeable future.

We do not anticipate that we will pay any cashdtvids to holders of our common stock in the foraisieefuture. Accordingly,
investors must rely on sales of their common stdtéer price appreciation, which may never occuthasonly way to realize any future gains
on their investment. Investors seeking cash divdden the foreseeable future should not purchasea@umon stock.

ltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen
Not applicable.

Item 2. Properties

Our principal executive offices, research and dgwelent center and production operations are lodat8an Jose, California where we
own approximately 262,000 square feet of office ar@hufacturing space subject to existing mortgagdsapproximately $11.6 million
remaining outstanding as of June 30, 2007. Our fi@an headquarters for sales and customer suppocgigd in Denbosch, Netherlands
where we lease approximately 21,000 square feeffiok space under a lease that expires in 201Asla, our research and development
operations are located in an approximately 23,00@ue feet facility in Taipei County, Taiwan un@eease that expires in 2008. On June 28,
2007, we entered into an agreement to purchasepenty located at 880 Fox Lane, San Jose, Cald@pounsisting of approximately 90,000
square feet of space. The purchase price for thisepty is approximately $11.3 million. Escrow bist property is expected to close on or
about October 15, 2007.
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Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

On September 2, 2005, Rackable Systems, Inc.dileatent infringed lawsuit against us in federairtéor the Northern District of
California. On May 3, 2007, we settled the claimgerms which had no adverse effect on our busirfi@ssicial condition and result of
operations.

In 2004, we received subpoenas from the Bureandfdtry and Security of the Department of Commesc®|S, with respect to our
relationship with a distributor and transactiongoilring the sale and resale of products to IrateAfeceiving the first subpoena, we retained
special export control counsel, conducted an iafenvestigation into these matters and terminat@drelationship with the distributor in
guestion. We also instituted a new export compigmogram, which program we continue to developiemmdement. The U.S. Department
Justice and Office of Foreign Assets Control of Brepartment of Treasury, or OFAC, also initiatedeistigations regarding these matters. In
September 2006, we entered into an agreement ath/tS. Department of Justice pursuant to whictagreed to plead guilty to one count
violating federal export regulations by shippin@d3@otherboards to Dubai, UAE, with knowledge tlatytwould be transshipped to Iran."
agreed to pay a $150,000 fine. The plea agreenaasnbéen approved by the U.S. District Court. Weeksdso entered into a settlement
agreement with BIS with respect to alleged violasiof the Export Administration Regulations purduarwhich we agreed to pay a fine of
approximately $125,000. We were charged by BIS wittlve violations of the Export Administration Regtions. Six of these violations
involved the shipment of server systems and compsneithout required government authorization tigtoa distributor to end customers in
Iran. Three of these violations involved allegasidhat shipments took place when we knew or hagbreto know that the transactions would
constitute a violation of the applicable regulasiomhree involved claims that we made false detitars.on shipping documents, stating that
no license was required for the export of the patglwhen in fact a government license was requBé&s.has also issued a proposed charging
letter to one of our employees who served as &nriational sales team leader at the time of theséetions in question. This individual
continues to be employed by us; however, the iddiai no longer works in an international sales fiomc Finally, we have a settlement
agreement with OFAC relating to 21 alleged violasi@f U.S. sanctions laws. Pursuant to this agraeme have paid a fine of $179,000.
believe that all issues with respect to the matieder investigation have been resolved as to tmepgany. We believe we are currently in
compliance in all material respects with applicabtport related laws and regulations. Howeveruif @xport compliance program is not
effective, or if we are subject to any future claimgarding violation of export control laws andmamic sanctions, we could be subject to
civil or criminal penalties, which could lead tareaterial fine or other sanctions, including los&rport privileges, that may have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial conditiesults of operation and future prospects. Iritamid these plea and settlement agreements
and any future violations could have an adverseghpn our ability to sell our products to U.S.deal, state and local government and
related entities.

We are subject to a suit brought by Digitechnié,.Svhich was filed in the Bobigny Commercial CoimrtParis, France in 1999. The
claims involve allegations of damages stemming fedlegedly defective products. In September 2003 Bobigny Commercial Court
awarded damages of approximately $1.2 million agfais. In February 2005, the Paris Court of Appealersed the trial court’s ruling,
dismissed all of Digitechnic’s claims and awardedts to us. Digitechnic appealed the decisionadRtench Supreme Court and asked for
$2,416,000 for damages. On February 13, 2007, tvech Supreme Court reversed the decision of the Baurt of Appeals, ordering a new
hearing before a different panel of the Paris CofiAppeals. Pending a new hearing, the trial caulihg is reinstated. Although we cannot
predict with certainty the final outcome of thigdation, we believe the claim to be without merid intend to continue to defend it
vigorously.

In addition to the above, from time to time, we nt@yinvolved in various legal proceedings arisirogf the normal course of business
activities. In our opinion, resolution of the abawatters is not expected to have a material adwensact on our consolidated results of
operations, cash flows or our financial positiomwéver, depending on the amount and timing, anvamnédle resolution of a matter could
materially affect our future results of operatiocash flows or financial position in a particulariod.
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Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holde
No matters were submitted to a vote of our sectgtgers during the quarter ended June 30, 2007.

PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registran’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters arsblier Purchases of Equity Securities

Market Information

Our common stock is traded on The Nasdaq Globakdtamder the symbol “SMCI.” On March 28, 2007 egistration statement on
Form S-1 was declared effective for our initial paloffering. The following table sets forth theghi and low selling prices of our common
stock for the period March 29, 2007 through June2B07, as reported by The Nasdaq Global Market.

High Low
Fiscal Year 2007:
Third Quartel $ 8.9¢ $8.7¢
Fourth Quarte $11.4: $9.54

Dividend Policy
We have never declared or paid cash dividends peanital stock and do not expect to pay any divitiein the foreseeable future.

Holders
There were approximately 110 registered stockheldérecord of our common stock on August 20, 2007.

Equity Compensation Plan

Please see Part Ill, Item 12 of this report focldisure relating to our equity compensation pl&uch information is incorporated by
reference from our proxy statement.
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Stock Performance Graph

The following graph compares our cumulative totatkholder return on our common stock between M@&H2007 (the date of our
initial public offering) and June 30, 2007 with tbiemulative return of the Nasdaq Computer IndextaedNasdaq Composite Index, which
both include our common stock, for the comparaleliéogl.

The graph reflects an investment of $100 in ourroom stock, the Nasdaq Computer Index and the NaSdatposite Index, on
March 29, 2007, and a reinvestment of dividendanif. The stockholder return shown on the grapbvbé not necessarily indicative of
future performance, and we do not make or endarggeedictions as to future stockholder returns.

Comparison of March 29, 2007 to June 30, 2007 Cunatlve Total Return Among Super Micro Computer, Naséqg Computer Index
and Nasdaq Composite

i1}

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

On April 3, 2007, we completed the initial publifesing of shares of our common stock. On MarchZ&)7, the SEC declared our
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 3383I/®) effective. The Registration Statement reggst¢he sale of an aggregate of
9,200,000 shares of our common stock, of which ale 6,400,000 shares, and the selling stockholsigis 2,800,000 shares (including
1,200,000 shares sold pursuant to the underwribeer’-allotment option). The underwriters exercitteglover-allotment option in full on
April 3, 2007. At a public offering price of $8.@@r share, the aggregate price of the shares gald tvas $51,200,000, and the aggregate
price of the shares sold by the selling stockhaladeas $22,400,000. We did not receive any procedsthe sale of shares by the selling
stockholders. The managing underwriters for theroffy were Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smitttémporated, UBS Securities LLC and
Needham & Company, LLC. The aggregate underwritiisgounts and commissions for shares sold by b®#nd the selling stockholde
were $5,152,000.

The net proceeds to us from the offering, afterudédg $3,584,000 in underwriting discounts and oossions and $4,635,000 of
offering expenses payable by us, were $42,981\We0had used approximately $7.2 million of the metcpeds to pay off one of the building
loans, and we intend to use approximately $11.6amibf the net proceeds to repay the outstandinlgling loans as of June 30, 2007. We
have invested $15.0 million of the net proceedthefoffering in short-term investment consist oftan rate securities. The goal with respect
to the investment of the net proceeds is capiedgmvation and liquidity so that such funds arditgavailable to fund our operations. We
intend to use approximately $11.3 million of the peceeds to purchase a property at 880 Fox L%ave Jose, California to provide
additional office space. Escrow of this propertgxpected to close on or about October 15, 2007h&Ve no present intention to acquire any
businesses, products or technologies. No net pdsdeeus, or expenses incurred for our accounbimmection with the offering, were paid to
any of our directors, officers, 10% or greater ktadders or affiliates.
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The intended use of the net proceeds representuia@nt intentions based upon our current plansbarsiness condition. The amounts
and timing of our expenditures will depend uporuanber of factors, including cash flows from opera$i and anticipated growth of our
business. Our management will have broad discréatidime use of our net proceeds.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
None.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Dat:

The following selected consolidated financial datqualified by reference to, and should be reacbimjunction with, our Consolidated
Financial Statements and notes thereto in Pdte 8 and “Management’s Discussion and AnalysiBinéncial Condition and Results of
Operations” in Part Il, Item 7, of this report oarfh 10-K. Our historical results are not necesganiflicative of the results to be expected in
any future period.

Fiscal Years Ended June 30,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(in thousands, except per share data)

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data:(1)

Net sales $420,39: $302,54: $211,76: $167,06! $137,16:
Cost of sales 345,38 242,23! 178,29: 138,23 113,85:
Gross profit 75,00¢ 60,30¢ 33,47( 28,83 23,30¢
Operating expenses:

Research and development 21,171 15,81« 10,60¢ 8,51 6,85¢

Sales and marketir 12,58¢ 9,36: 7,197 8,43¢ 5,907

General and administrative 11,467 6,931 5,38( 5,07¢ 3,31¢

Provision for (reversal of) litigation loss (120) 57& (1,17¢) — 1,17¢
Total operating expenses 45,10 32,68 22,00¢ 22,02¢ 17,25¢
Income from operations 29,90t 27,62 11,46: 6,807 6,05(
Interest incom 76E 254 117 27 28
Interest expense (1,332 (1,257%) (867) 77)) (800)
Other income, net 0 2 17 20 95
Interest and other income, net (567) (1,007) (739) (724) (677)
Income before income tax provision 29,33¢ 26,62: 10,72¢ 6,08 5,37
Income tax provisiol 9,99¢ 9,67¢ 3,63¢ 1,22¢ 1,85¢
Net income $ 19,33¢ $ 16,947 $ 7,09( $ 4,85¢ $ 3,517
Net income per shal

Basic $ 0.8C $ 071 $ 0.3: $ 0.2z $ 0.1€

Diluted $ 0.57 $ 0.5¢ $ 0.2¢ $ 0.17 $ 0.14
Shares used in per share calculation

Basic 24,15% 22,01( 21,91« 21,89¢ 21,71«

Diluted 33,94¢ 31,84¢ 29,44. 28,06: 25,72¢

(1) Includes charges for stock-based compensatio

Cost of sale: $ 30C $ 10z % 4 3% 7 $ —
Research and development 1,05¢ 441 18C 81 —
Sales and marketing 362 23€ 63 48 —
General and administrati\ 71C 317 14z 56 —

As of June 30,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(in thousands)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and cash equivalel $ 50,86+ $ 16,50¢ $ 11,17( $ 7,35¢ $ 6,357
Working capital 95,08¢ 37,02¢ 22,92: 14,04( 12,57¢
Total assets 205,58: 131,00: 89,66 72,347 50,79¢
Long-term obligations, net of current portion(2) 11,29 18,68¢ 12,57 13,06: 9,10¢

Total stockholder equity 115,87: 47,767 29,12% 21,56¢ 16,41¢

(2) As of June 30, 2007, $11.3 million of our lotegm obligations, net of current portion were bintgloans.
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Item 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition drResults of Operation

The following discussion should be read in conjiomctith the consolidated financial statements agldted notes which appear
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Hiésussion contains forward-looking statements iimadlve risks and uncertainties. Our
actual results could differ materially from thosatigipated in these forward-looking statements assalt of various factors, including those
discussed below and elsewhere in this Annual RepoRorm 10-K, particularly under the heading “RiBkctors.”

Overview

We design, develop, manufacture and sell applioaijmimized, high performance server solutions asean innovative, modular and
open-standard x86 architecture. Our solutions dela range of complete server systems, as wetirapanents which can be used by
distributors, OEMs and end customers to assemblerssystems. To date, we have generated the myagdrour net sales from components.
Since 2000, we have gradually shifted our focusrasdurces to designing, developing, manufactuximgjselling application optimized
server systems. In recent years our growth ina@essas been driven by the growth in the markeaplication optimized server systems.
For fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, net saleptiized servers were $152.5 million, $104.5 oilliand $66.6 million, respectively, and
net sales of serverboards and components were$8a6ifion, $198.1 million, and $145.2 million, resgtively.

We commenced operations in 1993 and have beertghiafievery year since inception. For fiscal y@&@7, 2006 and 2005, our net
sales were $420.4 million, $302.5 million and $8rillion, respectively, and our net income was.81illion, $16.9 million and $7.1
million, respectively.

We sell our server systems and components primidwibugh distributors and to a lesser extent to @EsIwell as through our direct
sales force. For fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2@@5jerived approximately 67%, 73% and 83%, respelgti of our net sales from products
sold to distributors, and we derived approxima8396, 27% and 17%, respectively, from sales to OBMto end customers. None of our
customers accounted for 10% or more of our netsaléiscal years 2007, 2006, or 2005. For fisarng 2007, 2006 and 2005, we derived
approximately 59%, 59% and 56%, respectively, afrmt sales from customers in the United Statesfigcal years 2007, 2006 and 2005,
derived approximately 41%, 41% and 44%, respectj\aflour net sales from customers outside theddn8tates.

We perform the majority of our research and devalept efforts in-house. For fiscal years 2007, 2806 2005, research and
development expenses represented approximately, 5.2% and 5.0% of our net sales, respectively.

We use several suppliers and contract manufacttoetssign and manufacture components in accordaitieeur specifications, with
most final assembly and testing performed at ounufecturing facility in San Jose, California. Thisangement enables us to maintain our
cost structure and to benefit from our suppliersl aontract manufacturers’ research and developar@hteconomies of scale.

One of our key suppliers is Ablecom, which supplisswith contract design and manufacturing suppat.fiscal years 2007, 2006 and
2005, our purchases from Ablecom represented appately 27.7%, 31.3% and 32.2% of our cost of sakespectively. Ablecom’s sales to
us constitute a substantial majority of Ablecomeés sales. We plan to expand our warehousing capactt our manufacturing relationship
with Ablecom in China in an effort to reduce ouoguct costs. Ablecom is expanding operations fr@wan to a larger facility in China. In
addition to providing a larger volume of contracmafacturing services for us, Ablecom will warehofsr us an increasing number of
components and subassemblies manufactured by fewtippliers prior to shipment to our facilitiestire U.S. and Europe. We typically
negotiate the price of products that we purchasma fAblecom on a quarterly basis; however, eithetypaay re-negotiate the price of
products with each order. As a result of our retathip with Ablecom, it is possible that Ablecomymiathe future sell products to us at a
price lower than we could obtain from an unreldatedd party supplier. This may result in our refrogtfor one or
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more periods gross profit as a percentage of et gaexcess of what we might have obtained almemntelationship with Ablecom.

In order to continue to increase our net salespaiafits, we believe that we must continue to depdlexible and customizable server
solutions and be among the first to market with features and products. We measure our financtaless based on various indicators,
including growth in revenues, gross profit as apatage of net sales, operating income as a pagenf net sales, levels of inventory, and
days sales outstanding, or DSOs. In connection thiéke efforts, we monitor daily and weekly sales shipment reports. Among the key
non-financial indicators of our success is ourigbib rapidly introduce new products and delivie tatest application optimized server
solutions. In this regard, we work closely with nejgrocessor and other component vendors to takenséage of new technologies as they are
introduced. We also solicit input from our custosmr understand their future needs as we desigalevelop our products.

Fiscal Year
Our fiscal year ends on June 30. References tal figar 2007, for example, refer to the fiscal yeated June 30, 2007.

Revenues and Expenses

Net sales.Net sales consist of sales of our server solutimicfyding server systems and components. The faators which impact ol
net sales are unit volumes shipped and averagegsplices. The prices for server systems rangehyidepending upon the configuration,
and the prices for our components vary based otypgeeof component. As with most electronics-bgsediucts, average selling prices
typically are highest at the time of introductidmew products which utilize the latest technol@gy tend to decrease over time as such
products mature in the market and are replacectkigeneration products.

Cost of salesCost of sales primarily consists of the costs toufacture our products, including the costs of mal® contract
manufacturing, shipping, personnel and related es@& equipment and facility expenses, warrantis@w inventory write-offs. The
primary factors that impact our cost of sales heerhix of products sold and cost of materials, Whinclude raw material costs, shipping c¢
and salary and benefits related to production. Weet cost of sales to increase in absolute daltattse future from an expected increase in
net sales. Costs of sales as a percentage oflastrsay increase over time if decreases in avesalfiag prices are not offset by
corresponding decreases in our costs. Our cosled,sas a percentage of net sales, is generalfrlon server systems than on components.
Because we do not have long-term fixed supply agess, our cost of sales is subject to change basedarket conditions.

Research and development expeng&ssearch and development expenses consist of thenpel and related expenses of our research
and development teams, and materials and supptiasulting services, third party testing serviced equipment and facility expenses rel:
to our research and development activities. Akaesh and development costs are expensed as idcWeeoccasionally receive non-
recurring engineering (NRE) funding from certaipgliers and customers towards our developmenttsffoinder these programs, we are
reimbursed for certain research and developmens tioat we incur as part of the joint developmédriw products and those of our suppliers
and customers. These amounts offset a portioneofetfated research and development expenses aadh@effect of reducing our reported
research and development expenses. We expecette#trch and development expenses will continugctease in absolute dollars in the
future as we increase our investment in developawg products and adding new features in currerduynts, but such expenditures may
fluctuate as a percentage of net sales.

Sales and marketing expens&ales and marketing expenses consist primarilglafies and commissions for our sales and marketing
personnel, costs for tradeshows, independent sgiessentative fees and marketing programs. Fno tih time, we receive cooperative
marketing funding from certain suppliers. Understhe
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programs, we are reimbursed for certain marketozxgscthat we incur as part of the joint promotidowr products and those of our suppliers.
These amounts offset a portion of the related esgeand have the effect of reducing our reportles sand marketing expenses. Similarly,
from time to time offer our distributors cooperatimarketing funding which has the effect of incheg®ur expenses. The timing, magnitude
and estimated usage of our programs and thoser afugpliers can result in significant variationgéported sales and marketing expenses
from period to period. Spending on cooperative retinkj, either by us or our suppliers, typicallyregses in connection with significant
product releases by us or our suppliers. We exgaes and marketing expenses to continue to ineieabsolute dollars, but that such
expenditures will decline as a percentage of riessa

General and administrative expenséseneral and administrative expenses consist piliynafrgeneral corporate costs, including
personnel expenses, financial reporting, corpaaternance and compliance and outside legal, anditax fees. We expect general and
administrative expenses to continue to increagafgigntly on an absolute dollar basis to suppartanticipated growth and cover additional
costs associated with being a public company, agalegulatory reporting requirements, Sarbanesy@depliance, higher insurance
premiums and investor relations, but such expemsgsfluctuate as a percentage of net sales.

Provision for (reversal of) litigation losd.oss from litigation relates to an action filedirance by Digitechnic, S.A., a former
customer, alleging that certain products purch&sed us were defective. In September 2003, thetdound in favor of Digitechnic and
awarded damages totaling $1.2 million. We accroedhifese damages in our consolidated financiatistants as of June 30, 2003. In
February 2005, the court of appeals dismissedItims and, as a result, we reversed the expengéeElinic appealed the decision to the
French supreme court and asked for $2,416,0004imades. On February 13, 2007, the French Suprenne @wersed the decision of the
Paris Court of Appeals, ordering a new hearing feefodifferent panel of the Paris Court of AppeRknding a new hearing, the trial court
ruling is reinstated. Although we cannot predicthwgertainty the final outcome of this litigatiomg believe the claims to be without merit
intend to continue to defend against them vigorouAle believe that the ultimate resolution of tmatter will not result in a material adverse
impact on our results of operations, cash flowSr@ancial position. In addition, we accrued $57® 00 fiscal year 2006 for the payment of
estimated fines related to export control matteisray in prior years. In August, September and &ober 2006, we entered into settlement
agreements regarding certain claims relating tes#e of its products in violation of export comtews. In August 2006, we entered into a
plea agreement with the U.S. Department of Justieeprincipal terms of which included enteringuéity plea to one charge of violating
federal export regulations and payment of approtetye$150,000 in fines. The plea agreement has bpproved by the U.S. District Court.
We have also entered into a settlement agreemdimtiva Bureau of Industry and Security of the Dapant of Commerce pursuant to which
we have acknowledged violations of the Export Adstmtion Regulations and agreed to pay a fingppfeximately $125,000. Finally, on
November 10, 2006, we entered into a settlememesmgent with the Office of Foreign Assets Contraofhaf Department of the Treast
(“OFAC™), pursuant to which we made a payment @iha of $179,000. We believe that all issues wébpect to the matters under
investigation have been resolved as to the Company.

Interest expense and other, nétterest expense and other, net represents the pat interest expense on the building loans for o
owned facilities and a Small Business Administratiman offset by interest earned on our cash bakn¥e expect to use a portion of the net
proceeds from our initial public offering to repaly of these obligations.

Income tax provisionOur income tax provision is based on our taxabterime generated in the jurisdictions in which werafe
currently primarily the United States and the Ndtireds and to a lesser extent, Taiwan. Our effedtx rate differs from the statutory rate
primarily due to the tax benefit of research andettgpment tax credits and the extraterritorial imeoexclusion. A reconciliation of the fede
statutory income tax rate to our effective tax iatget forth in Note 10 of Notes to Consolidaté&ubRcial Statements. In future years, we
anticipate our effective tax rate will increase du¢he phase out of the extraterritorial incomelesion.
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Critical Accounting Policies

Our discussion and analysis of our financial caaditand results of operations are based upon panéial statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principkrgegally accepted in the United States. The préparaf these financial statements
requires us to make estimates and judgments tfeait difie reported amount of assets, liabilitieseneies and expenses. We evaluate our
estimates on an on-going basis, including thosgeaeélto inventory valuations, income taxes, wayrabligations and stock-based
compensation. We base our estimates on histoxgeriz=nce and on various other assumptions thdtelieve to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the bfsisnaking the judgments we make about the carryalges of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Becaussethstimates can vary depending on the situatinal results may differ from the
estimates.

We believe the following are our most critical agoting policies as they require our more signifigadgments in the preparation of «
financial statements.

Revenue recognitionWe account for revenue under the provisions off zcounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 104Revenue Recognition in
Financial Statemeni. Under the provisions of SAB No. 104, we recogmeeenue from sales of products, when persuasideeee of an
arrangement exists, shipment has occurred andétidransferred, the sales price is fixed or datexble, collection of the resulting
receivable is reasonably assured, and all sigmifiohligations have been met. Generally this ocatitbe time of shipment when risk of loss
and title has passed to the customer. Our starateadgement with our customers includes a signechpse order or contract, free-on-board
shipping point terms, except for a few customers Wave free-on-board destination terms and reveswezognized when the products arrive
at the destination, 30 to 60 days payment terntsnarcustomer acceptance provisions. We generaltyod provide for non-warranty rights
of return except for products which have “Out-ofbtailure, where customers could return these potsl for credit within 30 days of
receiving the items. Certain distributors and OEvks also permitted to return products in unopemea@, limited to purchases over a
specified period of time, generally within 60 to @ys of the purchase, or to products in the tistor's or OEM’s inventory at certain times
(such as the termination of the agreement or proolgolescence). In addition, we have a sale agrapgt with an OEM that has limited
product return rights. To estimate reserves farrkisales returns, we regularly review our histifrgictual returns for each major product li
We also communicate regularly with our distributtrgiather information about end customer satigfacand to determine the volume of
inventory in the channel. Reserves for future reflare adjusted as necessary, based on returmiesxge returns expectations and
communication with our distributors.

Probability of collection is assessed on a custelyecustomer basis. Customers are subjected teditceview process that evaluates
the customers’ financial position and ability toypH it is determined from the outset of an arramgnt that collection is not probable based
upon the review process, the customers are reqtgrpdy cash in advance of shipment. We provid@fime protection to certain distributors.
We assess the market competition and product témgmobsolescence, and make price adjustments lmsedr judgment. Upon each
announcement of price reductions, the accrual ficeprotection is calculated based on our distalsl inventory on hand. Such reserves are
recorded as a reduction to revenue at the timeedce the product prices in accordance with Emgrigisues Task Force Issue No. 01-9,
Accounting for Consideration Given by a Vendor ©wstomer (including a Reseller of the Ver's Products). Credits that we issued
pursuant to these provisions were $182,000, $750005203,000 for fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 268#pectively. We do not commit to
future price reductions with any of our customers.

We have an immaterial amount of service revenuwsingl to non-warranty repairs, which is recogniapdn shipment of the repaired
units to customers. Service revenue has beenhanssl0% of net sales for all periods presentedsindt separately disclosed.

Cooperative marketing accrual$Ve follow Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issde. 01-9,Accounting for Consideration Given
by a Vendor to a Customer (including a ResellghefVendor’s Products).
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We have arrangements with resellers of our prodeatsimburse the resellers for cooperative manmketiosts meeting specified criteria. In
accordance with EITF Issue No. 01-9, we record dibieg costs meeting such specified criteria witbales and marketing expenses in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operatimrsthose advertising costs that do not meet iteria set forth in EITF Issue No. 01-9,
the amounts are recorded as a reduction to sathe imccompanying consolidated statements of apasat

Prior to fiscal year 2007, we had recognized th&imam potential amount of the reimbursement forchtthe resellers were entitled
(that is, no reduction for breakage was made) akmeked sufficient historical experience to makeasonably reliable estimate. Beginning in
fiscal year 2007, we determined that we had seffichistory of unclaimed cooperative marketing sitmmake reasonably reliable estima
Accordingly, we determined an estimate of unclairnedperative marketing funds breakage of approxaa@7% for our cooperative
marketing accruals. This change in accounting edérhad a favorable impact on income before incaxes of approximately $755,000 for
the fiscal year June 30, 2007. The effect on nedrire for this period was an increase of approxim&498,000 and the effect on earnings
common share was an increase of $0.02 per bagie ahd $0.01per fully diluted share.

Product warranties.We offer product warranties ranging from 12 ton36nths against any defective product. We accruegtmated
returns of defective products at the time revesuecognized, based on historical warranty expeei@md recent trends. We monitor warr:
obligations and may make revisions to our warraeserve if actual costs of product repair and egtzent are significantly higher or lower
than estimated. Accruals for anticipated futureraatty costs are charged to cost of sales and iedlidaccrued liabilities.

Inventory valuation.Inventory is valued at the lower of cost or markiée evaluate inventory on a quarterly basis faess and
obsolescence and write-down the valuation of uh#s are unlikely to be sold based upon estimagdashd for the following twelve months.
This evaluation may take into account matters idiclg expected demand, anticipated sales price yptaibsolescence and other factors. If
actual future demand for our products is less tharently forecasted, additional inventory adjustisenay be required. Once a reserve is
established, it is maintained until the produatvtich it relates is sold or scrapped. If a unit thas been written down is subsequently sold,
the cost associated with the revenue from thisiamgéduced to the extent of the write down, résglin an increase in gross profit.

Accounting for income taxe$Ve account for income taxes under an asset abitlititaapproach. Deferred income taxes reflect the
impact of temporary differences between assetdiabifities recognized for financial reporting pwges and such amounts recognized for
income tax reporting purposes, net operating lass/€orwards and other tax credits measured byyappcurrently enacted tax laws.
Valuation allowances are provided when necessamydoce deferred tax assets to an amount thatres likely than not to be realized.

Stock-based compensatioBffective July 1, 2006, we adopted the fair vadeeognition provisions of SFAS No. 123(FBhare-Based
Paymen, using the prospective transition method, whidhldshes standards for the accounting of transastin which an entity exchanges
its equity instruments for goods or services, primdocusing on accounting for transactions whaneentity obtains employee services in
share-based payment transactions. Prior to JW906, we account for stock-based compensation awssded to our employees using the
intrinsic value measurement provisions of Accoumfrinciples Board Opinion No. 2Bccounting for Stock Issued to EmployeesOpinior
25. Accordingly, we have recorded compensation es@dor stock options granted with exercise priess than the fair value of the
underlying common stock at the option grant dalAS No. 123(R) requires enterprises to measuredbeof employee services received in
exchange for an award of equity instruments, inalgdtock options, based on the grant-date fainevalf the award. That cost will be
recognized over the period during which an emplageequired to provide services in exchange feratvard, known as the requisite service
period (usually the vesting period). SFAS No. 19X®Roersedes our previous accounting under APRBIdor periods beginning in fiscal
2007. We recorded stock compensation expense 5fifillion for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2085uiting from the adoption of SFAS
No. 123(R).
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As of June 30, 2007, the total unrecognized comgtemscost, adjusted for estimated forfeiturestesl to unvested stock options
granted since July 1, 2006 to employees and noresm directors, was $6.7 million, which is expelcte be recognized as an expense over
a weighted-average period of approximately 4 yezee. Note 1 to our consolidated financial statesfemtadditional information.

We estimated the fair value of stock options graniging a Black-Scholes option-pricing formula ansingle option award approach.
This model requires us to make estimates and agsumapvith respect to the expected term of theasptihe expected volatility of the price
our common stock and the expected forfeiture rEte. fair value is then amortized on a straight-biasis over the requisite service periods of
the awards, which is generally the vesting period.

The expected term represents the period that ook4tased awards are expected to be outstandingandetermined based on an
analysis of the relevant peer companies’ postdegstination rates and the exercise factors. Theerg volatility is based on a combination
of the implied and historical volatility of our cqrany and the relevant peer group. In addition, stenated the forfeiture rate based on our
historical experience.

Variable interest entitiesWe have analyzed our relationship with Ablecom #mgubsidiaries and we have concluded that Aloteisoe
variable interest entity as defined by FIN No. 46Bwever, the Company is not the primary benefjcadrAblecom and, therefore, we do not
consolidate Ablecom. In performing our analysis,csesidered our explicit arrangements with Ablednotuding the supplier and distributor
arrangements. Also, as a result of the substametitied party relationship between the two companie considered whether any implicit
arrangements exist that would cause us to prdtesetrelated parties’ interests in Ablecom fronfesufg losses. We determined that no
implicit arrangements exist with Ablecom or its s¥@lders. Such an arrangement would be inconsigtigmthe fiduciary duty that we have
towards our stockholders who do not own shareshiedom.

Results of Operations
The following table sets forth our financial resulis a percentage of net sales for the periodsated:

Years Ended June 30,

2007 2006 2005
Net sales 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of sale: 82.2 80.1 84.2
Gross profit _17.8 19.¢ 15.¢
Operating expense
Research and developmt 5.C 5.2 5.C
Sales and marketir 3.C 3.1 34
General and administratiy 2.7 2.3 2.6
Provision for (reversal of) litigation lo: 0.C 0.2 (0.6)
Total operating expens _10.7 10.¢ 10.4
Income from operatior 7.1 9.1 5.4
Interest incom 0.2 0.1 0.1
Interest expens 0.3 (0.9 (0.9
Other income, ne _0.C 0.C 0.C
Income before income taxes provisi 7.C 8.8 5.1
Income tax provisiol _ 24 3.2 1.8
Net income 4% 5.6% 3.2%
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Comparison of Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2007 ar206

Net sales.Net sales increased by $117.9 million, or 39.0%420.4 million from $302.5 million, for fiscal yea2007 and 2006,
respectively. This was due primarily to an increi@senit volumes and average selling prices. Feryihar ended June 30, 2007, the
approximate number of units sold increased 23.5%%anillion compared to 1.7 million for the yearded June 30, 2006. Growth in unit
volumes was primarily due to the introduction anovgh of X7, H8 and PD series motherboards andharease in sales of chassis and
accessories such as memory and disk drives offgert by lower sales of X5 and X6 motherboards.tke year ended June 30, 2007, the
approximate number of server system units solceerd 15.7% to 133,000 compared to 115,000 foreheended June 30, 2006. The
average selling price of server system units swdeiased 22.2% to approximately $1,100 in fiscal @07 compared to approximately $900
in fiscal year 2006. Growth in the average selpniges of our server systems was principally dribgran increase in sales of 6000 Series and
AMD series of server systems, offset in part bylides in average selling prices of more mature pot&l Sales of server systems increas¢
$48.0 million or 46.0% from fiscal year 2006 tocks year 2007, primarily due to increase in shiptmef 6000 Series configurations of
servers, OEM servers and AMD series of server pystSales of server systems represented 36.3% ofebvgales for fiscal year 2007 as
compared to 34.5% of our net sales for fiscal Y&H6. For fiscal years 2007 and 2006, we derivguiagmately 67% and 73%, respective
of our net sales from products sold to distributmmd we derived approximately 33% and 27%, respalgtifrom sales to OEMs and to end
customers. For fiscal year 2007, customers in thiged States, Asia, Germany and rest of Europeuatted for approximately 59.2%, 15.4%,
6.9% and 16.4%, of our net sales, respectivelgpagpared to 58.5%, 11.0%, 8.9% and 19.3%, respygtifor fiscal year 2006.

Cost of salesCost of sales increased by $103.1 million, or %2.® $345.4 million from $242.2 million, for fiskgears 2007 and 20C
respectively. Cost of sales as a percentage afates was 82.2% and 80.1% for fiscal years 20072808, respectively. The increase in
absolute dollars of cost of sales was primarilyitaitable to the increase in net sales and highamtory valuation changes of $2.8 million.
The higher cost of sales as a percentage of rest sals driven by an increase in our sales of X7Rihderies motherboards which have
higher than average cost of sales as a percentagg sales and a decrease in average sellingspofamore mature products. In fiscal year
2007, we recorded a $5.6 million expense, or 1.8#ebsales, related to the write down of exceskabsolete inventory as compared to $2.9
million, or 0.9% of net sales, in fiscal year 2006e increase in the inventory write down was prilpdor the Company’s AMD DDR
inventory.

Research and development expeng&ssearch and development expenses increased byni#iof, or 33.9%, to $21.2 million from
$15.8 million for fiscal years 2007 and 2006, resipely. Research and development expenses wetg &f@et sales for fiscal year 2007 and
5.2% of net sales for fiscal year 2006. The inaéasabsolute dollars was primarily due to an iaseeof $4.0 million in compensation and
benefits resulting from growth in research and tmyaent personnel, including higher stock-basedpmamsation expense resulting from the
adoption of FAS 123R, and an increase of $1.4 onillh development costs associated with new predftset in part by an increase of $0.7
million in non-recurring engineering funding frorartain suppliers and customers. The increase sopeel was primarily related to
expanded product development initiatives.

We incurred stock-based compensation expense assevith research and development personnel @fréillion in fiscal year 2007
and $0.4 million in fiscal year 2006, respectivalye expect research and development expensesltdénstock-based compensation expense
of $129,000, $671,000, $1,120,000 and $1,252,008cal years 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respégtibased on the continued vesting of
outstanding options as of June 30, 2007.

Sales and marketing expens&ales and marketing expenses increased by $3idmitir 34.4%, to $12.6 million from $9.4 milliofgr
fiscal years 2007 and 2006, respectively. Salegwantteting expenses were 3.0% and 3.1% of net Baldiscal years 2007 and 2006,
respectively. The increase in absolute dollars pvasarily due to an increase of $2.4 million in geensation and benefits resulting from
growth in sales and marketing personnel, includiigher stock-based compensation expense resulbngthe adoption of FAS 123R and an
increase of $0.5 million in trade show and traethted expenses.
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We incurred stock-based compensation expense atstevith sales and marketing personnel of $0.Bamiin fiscal year 2007 and
$0.2 million in fiscal year 2006, respectively. \Wepect sales and marketing expenses to includk-bsed compensation expense of
$54,000, $242,000, $424,000 and $452,000 in figeals 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively dhas¢he continued vesting of
outstanding options as of June 30, 2007.

General and administrative expensé&aeneral and administrative expenses increased Bynilion, or 65.4%, to $11.5 million from
$6.9 million, for fiscal years 2007 and 2006, retpely. General and administrative expenses wetg2and 2.3% of net sales for fiscal ye
2007 and 2006, respectively. The increase in abesdioilars was primarily due to an increase of $iilion in compensation and benefits,
including higher stock-based compensation expesmdting from the adoption of FAS 123R, an increasgl.2 million in legal expenses
primarily associated with our defense of certaigdition matters and an increase of $0.6 milliopriofessional fees to support being a public
company.

We incurred stock-based compensation expense asswevith general and administrative personnel0of nillion in fiscal year 2007
and $0.3 million in fiscal year 2006, respectivélye expect general and administrative expensextode stockhased compensation expe
of $113,000, $701,000, $932,000 and $1,005,00Bdaffyears 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectfibaled on the continued vesting of
outstanding options as of June 30, 2007.

Provision for (reversal of) litigation loss.oss from litigation decreased by $0.7 million {®.4) million from $0.6 million for fiscal
years 2007 and 2006, respectively. The decreasgrivaarily due to the final settlement of importext litigation at less than the estima
loss amount. See “Notes to Consolidated Finant&kSents—Note 12.”

Interest and other expense, nétterest and other expense, decreased by $0.4mibr 43.4%, to $0.6 million from $1.0 million,rfo
fiscal years 2007 and 2006, respectively, of wiitt8 million was interest expenses in both fisesrg. The decrease was due to higher
interest income of $0.5 million from higher cashsle equivalent and short-term investment balandeggly as a result of our initial public
offering. We expect the interest expenses will dase in the future as we intend to repay our cudgtg building loans in fiscal year 2008.

Provision for income taxesrovision for income taxes increased by $0.3 nrillior 3.3%, to $10.0 million from $9.7 million, féiscal
years 2007 and 2006, respectively. The effectivadte was 34.1% and 36.3% for fiscal years 20@i72006, respectively. The decreast
the effective tax rate was the result of the inseglbenefit of research and development tax craddoreign income deductions relative to
our higher taxable income.

Comparison of Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2006 ar205

Net sales.Net sales increased by $90.8 million, or 42.9%%362.5 million from $211.8 million, for fiscal yea2006 and 2005,
respectively. This was due to an increase in bothwolumes and average selling prices. For the gaded June 30, 2006, the approximate
number of units sold increased 30.8% to 1.7 militompared to 1.3 million for the year ended June2805. Growth in unit volumes was
primarily due to the increasing sales of our 5080es of server systems, our X6 series of servedsaand other server components, primg
accessaories, including microprocessors. For thegmraed June 30, 2006, the approximate numbemeéissystem units sold increased 30.
to 115,000 compared to 88,000 for the year ended 30, 2005. The average selling price of servetesy units sold increased 12.5% to
approximately $900 in fiscal year 2006 comparedpproximately $800 in fiscal year 2005. Growthhr tiverage selling prices of our server
systems was principally driven by an increase lessaf server systems to OEM customers and systtrgrators, offset in part by declines in
average selling prices in more mature products teottistributors. Sales of server systems represiedit.4% of our net sales for fiscal year
2005 as compared to 34.5% of our net sales foalfigear 2006. For fiscal years 2006 and 2005, wivel approximately 73% and 83%,
respectively, of our net sales from products soldistributors and we derived approximately 27% an%, respectively, from sales to OEMs
and to end customers. The increase in sales to @ttMo end customers was principally the resulhafased
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sales to OEMs. For fiscal year 2006, customerbérnited States, Asia, Germany and rest of Euagpeunted for approximately 58.5%,
11.0%, 8.9% and 19.3%, of our net sales, respégtiae compared to 56.3%, 12.7%, 9.3% and 18.48pewaively, for fiscal year 2005.

Cost of salesCost of sales increased by $63.9 million, or 35.894242.2 million from $178.3 million, for fiscgkars 2006 and 2005,
respectively. Cost of sales as a percentage cfahes was 80.1% and 84.2% for fiscal years 20062808, respectively. The increase in
absolute dollars of cost of sales was primarilyilautable to the increase in net sales. The lowst of sales as a percentage of net sales was
driven by the increasing percentage of our salgesented by server systems, which generally lawerlcosts of sales as a percentage of ne
sales than components.

Research and development expeng&ssearch and development expenses increased byn#ioR, or 49.1%, to $15.8 million from
$10.6 million for fiscal years 2006 and 2005, restpely. Research and development expenses wete &f 2et sales for fiscal year 2006 and
5.0% of net sales for fiscal year 2005. The inaemas primarily due to an increase of $3.9 milliocompensation and benefits resulting
from growth in research and development persorii.increase in personnel was primarily relateeioanded product development
initiatives.

Sales and marketing expens&ales and marketing expenses increased by $2idmitir 30.1%, to $9.4 million to $7.2 million, for
fiscal years 2006 and 2005, respectively. Salesaantteting expenses were 3.1% and 3.4% of net &aldiscal years 2006 and 2005,
respectively. The increase in absolute dollars pvasarily due to an increase of $1.2 million in qeemsation and benefits resulting from
growth in sales and marketing personnel, an inere&$0.5 million in total advertising and promet# expenses, an increase of $0.2 million
in trade show expenses, and an increase of $0ldmiih international sales consulting fees, offisgpart by an increase of $0.4 million in
cooperative funding from vendors.

General and administrative expenséseneral and administrative expenses increased Byriillion, or 28.8%, to $6.9 million from
$5.4 million, for fiscal years 2006 and 2005, redpely. General and administrative expenses wed&2and 2.6% of net sales for fiscal ye
2006 and 2005, respectively. The increase in atesdioilars was primarily due to an increase of $0illon in compensation and benefits
an increase of $0.8 million in legal expenses pripassociated with our defense of certain litigatmatters.

Provision for (reversal of) litigation loss.oss from litigation increased by $1.8 million t0.6 million from $(1.2) million for fiscal
years 2006 and 2005, respectively. The increasevitmsirily due to the reversal in fiscal 2005 of fbss accrued in fiscal 2003 as a resu
the dismissal of the Digitechnic claims in the d¢afrappeal in France (For more information, seetés to Consolidated Financial
Statements—Note 11.”).

Interest and other expense, nétterest and other expense, increased by $0.3omjltr 36.6%, to $1.0 million from $0.7 million,rfo
fiscal years 2006 and 2005, respectively, of wi$ig® million and $1.3 million were interest expes)gespectively. The increase was due to
higher interest expenses of $0.3 million associatéld a mortgage obtained in connection with a mending that we purchased.

Provision for income taxesrovision for income taxes increased by $6.0 nillior 165.9%, to $9.7 million to $3.6 million, féscal
years 2006 and 2005, respectively. The effectivedte was 36.3% and 33.9% for fiscal years 20@b2005, respectively. The increase
the effective tax rate was the result of the redumnefitof research and development tax credits and forieigwme deductions relative to
higher taxable income.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Since our inception, we have financed our growtmarily with funds generated from operations andemecently from the proceeds
our initial public offerings. Our cash and cashigglents and short term investments were $65.9aniks of June 30, 2007, $16.6 million as
of June 30, 2006 and $12.9 million as of June 8052
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Operating ActivitiesNet cash provided by operating activities was $hillon, $8.2 million and $4.7 million for fiscalears 2007,
2006 and 2005, respectively. Net cash provideduryoperating activities for fiscal year 2007 wasrarily due to our net income of $19.3
million, an increase in accounts payable of $9.lioni an increase in the allowance for sales retwof $4.4 million and an increase in
accrued liabilities of $5.2 million which was sulnstially offset by an increase in accounts recdevab$15.8 million and an increase in
inventory of $9.2 million. Net cash provided by aperating activities for fiscal year 2006 was miity due to our net income of $16.9
million, an increase in the allowance for salesnet of $2.5 million and an increase in accounsapke of $14.2 million which was
substantially offset by an increase in accountsivable of $11.2 million and an increase in inveytof $17.1 million. Net cash provided by
operating activities for fiscal year 2005 was duengrily to our net income of $7.1 million, an ieerse in the allowance for sales returns of
$4.1 million and an increase in accounts payablg6dd million. These increases were partially dffseincreases in inventory of $8.9 million
and accounts receivable of $9.6 million. The insesdfor fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005 in aceawteivable, sales returns inventory and
accounts payable were primarily due to growth ingaées during the periods as a result of new groidtroductions, increased sales of
existing server systems and components and inatgagehases from our suppliers. We anticipateahatunts receivable, sales returns
inventory and accounts payable will continue to@ase to the extent we continue to grow our prolilves and our business.

Investing activities Net cash used in our investing activities was.$18illion, $9.8 million and $0.9 million for fistgears 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively. Of these amounts, $15.0omih fiscal year 2007 was related to the purehafsa short-term investments in auction
rate securities. In fiscal year 2006, $9.8 milliwas related to the purchase of new building to etuphe Company growth in warehouse a
assembly capacity. In fiscal year 2005, $1.7 millio restricted funds associated with the linerefld facility were released. The released
funds were subsequently utilized to purchase dleomt-investments in fiscal year 2005. We have histitly owned our manufacturing
facilities and have leased off-shore offices. Thgagmsion of our manufacturing capability has tedait been capital intensive as our internal
manufacturing is limited to assembly and test. Wexpect to make significant capital investmenthanfuture as we expand our assembly
and test capabilities and invest in our infrastitein order to improve our controls and procedumemnticipation of growing our business ¢
meeting regulatory requirements associated withdoaipublic company.

Financing activities Net cash provided by our financing activities &§.5 million, $6.9 million and $(0.1) million fdiscal years
2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. In fiscal yed¥72 $43.4 million was related to the proceeds feaninitial public offering of our common
stock, net of offering costs. In fiscal year 20$8,9 million was related to proceeds from buildiogns associated with the purchase of land
and building for assembly and warehouse spacegpastithe growth of the company in fiscal year 208& repaid $7.7 million, $2.7 million
and $0.4 million in loans for fiscal years 200708@&nd 2005, respectively.

We have historically generated cash from our opagatctivities as we have grown. We expect to egpee continued growth in our
working capital requirements as we continue to egpaur business. We intend to fund this continugshasion though cash generated by
operations and the proceeds of our initial publfering. We anticipate that working capital will mstitute a material use of our cash resou

Other factors affecting liquidity and capital resoas

We have entered into four building loans to purehthsee facilities located in San Jose, Califormi@al balance outstanding on these
loans was $11.6 million as of June 30, 2007. Tist ldan was entered into in March 2001 under wkiehborrowed $8.7 million. The second
loan was entered into in April 2004 under whichlveerowed $4.3 million. The third and fourth loansres entered into in September 2005
under which we borrowed a total of $7.9 million.efirst loan was paid off on May 15, 2007 for $m#lion including a pre-payment penalty
of $69,000. These four loans require us to mairgastomary covenants related to business and fimlecandition. They also have customary
restrictions on business and financial activityimch we
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cannot engage without the prior written conserthefbank. For example, under the terms of the imgjltbans, we generally may not, without
the lenders’ prior written consent, incur certaidébtedness and liens, engage in business adisitlestantially different from our present
business, liquidate or dissolve our business, leaséspose of all or a substantial part of ourihess or assets, sell assets for less than fair
market price, enter into any consolidation, memgesther business combination, or make certaindpaoquisitions and guaranties.

In addition, we have historically paid a majoritiyour vendors within 25 to 100 days of invoice akldlecom between 45 and 170 days
of invoice. Ablecom, a Taiwan corporation, is orfi@or major contract manufacturers and a relatetypAs of June 30, 2007 and 2006
amounts owed to Ablecom by us were approximatet;Btillion and $23.5 million, respectively.

We have entered into arrangements with certaiméimg companies that have committed to pay ussipezified period after shipment
to customers for sales transactions that have &ggroved by these financing companies prior torabift. We remain obligated to re-
purchase the customer obligations if the custoreaudts. See, “Note 6 to the Notes to Consolid&tiedncial Statements.”

Our longterm future capital requirements will depend on ynfaetors, including our level of revenues, theitignand extent of spendi
to support our product development efforts, theaegon of sales and marketing activities, the tgrohour introductions of new products,
costs to ensure access to adequate manufactupagitaand the continuing market acceptance opooducts. We could be required, or
could elect, to seek additional funding throughljmudr private equity or debt financing and addit@bfunds may not be available on terms

acceptable to us or at all.

We intend to use approximately $11.6 million of tre¢ proceeds to repay outstanding building loansfdune 30, 2007 and use
approximately $11.3 million of the net proceedptiochase a new building located at 880 Fox Lane,J®ae, California to support our

growth in warehouse and assembly capacity.

Contractual Obligations
The following table describes our contractual adigns as of June 30, 2007:

Payments Due by Period

Less Thar 1to3 3to5 More Than
1 Year Years Years 5 Years Total
(in thousands)
Operating lease $ 674 $ 60€ $ 35¢ $ 421 $ 2,06(
Capital lease 12t 41 — — 16€
Building loans 1,07t 2,151 2,14¢ 15,79: 21,16¢
Purchase commitmen 5,40z — — — 5,402
Total $ 7,27¢ $2,79¢ $2,50i $ 16,21 $28,79:

We expect to fund these obligations from our ongaiperations and the proceeds of our initial pubffering.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards
FASB Interpretation No. 4

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretatiam K8, “Accounting for Income Tax Uncertainties'INF48). FIN 48 defines the
threshold for recognizing the benefits of tax retpositions in the financial statements as “mokeHi-than-not” to be sustained by the taxing
authority. FIN 48 also provides guidance on theedegnition, measurement and classification of inedax uncertainties, along with any
related interest and penalties. FIN 48 also induglédance concerning accounting for income taxetamties in interim periods and

increases the level of disclosures associatedamiytrecorded income tax uncertainties.
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FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning afiiecember 15, 2006. The differences between thmiata recognized in the stateme
of financial position prior to the adoption of F#8 and the amounts reported after adoption wikkdeounted for as a cumulative-effect
adjustment recorded to the beginning balance afrred earnings. We are currently evaluating theachpf any, of adopting the provisions of
FIN 48 on our consolidated financial position, fesof operations or cash flows.

SAB No. 108

In September 2006, the United States SecuritieEandange Commission (“SEC”") issued Staff Accoumtiulletin No. 108
(“SAB 108"), “ Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatemeaviten Quantifying Misstatements in Current YeamaRtial Statements
SAB 108 provides guidance on the consideratiomefeffects of prior year misstatements in quamigyéurrent year misstatements for the
purpose of a materiality assessment. SAB 108 ésitelsl an approach that requires quantificatiofmnainicial statement errors based on the
effects of each of the company’s balance sheestatdment of operations financial statements agdetated financial statement disclosures.
SAB 108 permits existing public companies to reabilcumulative effect of initially applying thigproach in the first year ending after
November 15, 2006 by recording the necessary dimgeadjustments to the carrying values of asseddiabilities as of the beginning of tr
year with the offsetting adjustment recorded todpening balance of retained earnings. Additiondlig use of the cumulative effe
transition method requires detailed disclosuréhefriature and amount of each individual error beorgected through the cumulative
adjustment and how and when it arose. We appliedtidance in SAB 108 as of July 1, 2006. The apfitin of SAB 108 did not have a
significant effect on our consolidated financiakjtion, results of operations or cash flows.

SFAS No. 157

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. =iy Value Measurements.SFAS No. 157 establishes a framework for meast
fair value and expands disclosures about fair valaasurements. The statement does not requireeamyair value measurements, but
provides guidance on how to measure fair valuerbyigding a fair value hierarchy used to classifg #ource of the information. This
statement is effective for financial statementaéstfor fiscal years beginning after November 7 and interim periods within those fis
years. We are currently evaluating the effect thatadoption of SFAS No. 157 will have on our cdidsded financial position, results
operations or cash flows.

SFAS No. 159

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 15mé Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fioel Liabilities”. SFAS
No. 159 allows entities to choose, at specifiedt@a dates, to measure eligible financial assedsliabilities at fair value in situations
which they are not otherwise required to be meakatdair value. If a company elects the fair vabpgion for an eligible item, changes in t
item’s fair value in subsequent reporting periodsstibe recognized in current earnings. SFAS No.al&® establishes presentation and
disclosure requirements designed to draw compalisbmeen entities that elect different measurerattributes for similar assets and
liabilities. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscabgrs beginning after November 15, 2007. Early adop$ permitted subject to specific
requirements outlined in SFAS No. 159. We are culyeevaluating the effect that the adoption of S¥o. 159 will have on our
consolidated financial position, results of opemasi or cash flows.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.
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ltem 7A.  Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosure About MarkRisks
Interest Rate Risk

The primary objectives of our investment activitg # preserve principal, provide liquidity and rimaize income without significantly
increasing the risk. Some of the securities weshireare subject to market risk. This means thatange in prevailing interest rates may
cause the principal amount of the investment tetdiate. To minimize this risk, we maintain our palib of cash equivalents and short-term
investments in money market funds, certificatedeyosit and auction rate securities which theyeassonably expected to be realized in cash
or sold during the normal operating cycle of theibass. Since our results of operations are natrtignt on investments, the risk associated
with fluctuating interest rates is limited to onawestment portfolio, and we believe that a 10% gean interest rates would not have a
significant impact on our results from operatiofss.of June 30, 2007, our investments were in managket funds, certificates of deposit ¢
auction rate securities.

We had $11.6 million of indebtedness under ouritfedilities as of June 30, 2007, $19.2 millionindebtedness under our credit
facilities as of June 30, 2006 and $13.0 millionnafebtedness under our credit facility as of J8@e2005. The annual interest rate on our
credit facilities is based on various indexes dgdd in the loan agreements. At June 30, 2007intieeest rates ranged from 5.77% to 7.23%.
An immediate 10% increase in the index rates woolchave a material effect on our interest expense.

Foreign Currency Risk

To date, our international customer agreements haea denominated solely in U.S. dollars, and aliogly, we have not been expo:
to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations farstomer agreements, and do not currently engeafpeaign currency hedging
transactions. However, the functional currencywfaperations in Netherlands and Taiwan is the daBar and our local accounts are
maintained in the local currency in the Netherlaandd Taiwan, respectively, and thus we are subjeftireign currency exchange rate
fluctuations associated with re-measurement to db8ars. Such fluctuations have not been signifidastorically. For example, foreign
exchange gain or (loss) for fiscal years 2007, 2262005 were ($1,000), ($190,000) and $178,e8Meactively.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Super Micro Computer, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Super Micro Computer, Irand subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of
June 30, 2007 and 2006, and the related consdlidtédéements of operations, stockholders’ equity, @ash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended June 30, 2007. These finartagments are the responsibility of the Compamdaagement. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the financial statementsthaseur audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindmecial statements are free of material
misstatement. The Company is not required to hawewere we engaged to perform, an audit of itsrivel control over financial
reporting. Our audits included consideration oéinal control over financial reporting as a basisdesigning audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for tingpse of expressing an opinion on the effectiveiéshe Company’s internal control over
financial reporting. Accordingly, we express nolsopinion. An audit also includes examining, omst basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statemastessing the accounting principles used andfisamt estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statehpgesentation. We believe that our audits progideasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetag@resent fairly, in all material respects, timaricial position of Super Micro
Computer, Inc and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2007 and 200&hanesults of their operations and their cashdléev each of the three
years in the period ended June 30, 2007, in corifprmith accounting principles generally acceptedtie United States of Americ

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated findrst&ements, effective July 1, 2006, the Compdmanged its method of accounting
for stock-based compensation in accordance wittiagge provided in Statement of Financial Accoun8tandards No. 123 (revised 2004),
Shared-Based Payment

As discussed in Note 8 to the consolidated findrst&ements, the Company has significant purchfasesand sales to a related party.

/sl Deloitte & Touche LLP
San Jose, California
August 24, 2007
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SUPER MICRO COMPUTER, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share amounts)

June 30, June 30,
2007 2006
ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 50,86¢ $ 16,50¢
Shor-term investment 15,05¢ 53
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $770$Bf®ll at June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively (et
amounts receivable from a related party of $853%81D at June 30, 2007 and 2006, respecti 33,42¢ 22,25;
Inventories, ne 66,77 57,61:
Deferred income tax-current 5,63( 3,44(
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 1,75¢ 1,311
Total current asse 173,50¢ 101,17°
Property, plant and equipment, | 31,08¢ 29,60¢
Deferred income tax-noncurren 624 —
Other asset 364 21¢
Total asset $205,58: $131,00:
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable (including amounts due to a rdlptaty of $26,094 and $23,492 at June 30, 2007 and
2006, respectively $ 61,45: $ 52,01¢
Accrued liabilities 14,07+ 8,891
Income tax payabl 1,48¢ 1,08t
Accrued litigation los! — 57¢
Advances from receivable financing arrangem: 982 80C
Current portion of capital lease obligatic 11¢ 16&
Current portion of lon-term debt 304 61€
Total current liabilities 78,42( 64,15!
Deferred income tax-noncurren — 39¢
Long-term capital lease obligatic-net of current portiol 40 64
Long-term dek-net of current portiol 11,25: 18,62:
Total liabilities 89,71 83,23
Commitments and contingenci
Stockholder' equity:
Common stock and additional p-in capital, $0.001 par valt
Authorized shares: 100,000,0
Issued and outstanding shares: 30,205,264 and£2847at June 30, 2007 and 2006, respecti 58,23¢ 10,53¢
Deferred stoc-based compensatic (2,500 (2,569
Retained earning 59,13 39,79
Total stockholdel' equity 115,87. 47,767
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $205,58: $131,00:

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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SUPER MICRO COMPUTER, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Years Ended June 30,

2007
Net sales (including related party sales of $7,%30881 and $4,064 in fisc

years 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectiv $ 420,39
Cost of sales (including related party purchasek96{673, $75,718 and
$57,342 in fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, remdy) 345,38
Gross profit 75,00¢
Operating expense
Research and developmt 21,17:
Sales and marketir 12,58¢
General and administratiy 11,467
Provision for (reversal of ) litigation lo: (120
Total operating expens 45,10¢
Income from operatior 29,90¢

Interest incomt 76E

Interest expens (1,339
Other income, ne —
Income before income tax provisi 29,33¢
Income tax provisiol 9,99¢
Net income $ 19,33¢
Net income per shar

Basic $ 0.8C

Diluted $ 0.57
Shares used in per share calculat

Basic 24,152,76

Diluted 33,946,07

See accompanying notes to consolidated financitdsients.
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2006
$ 302,54:

242,23t
60,30t

15,81+
9,36:
6,931
57¢
32,68:
27,62:
254
(1,257
2

26,62:
9,67¢
$ 16,94

$ 0.717
$ 0.5¢

22,010,58
31,846,86

2005

$ 211,76:

178,29:

33,47(

10,60¢
7,197
5,38(

(1,179
22,00¢

11,46:
117

(867)
17

10,72¢

$

$
$

3,63¢

7,09(

0.32
0.24

21,914,69
29,442,42
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SUPER MICRO COMPUTER, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(in thousands, except share amounts)

Balance at July 1, 20C
Exercise of stock optior
Non-employee stoc-based compensatic
Deferred stoc-based compensatic
Amortization of deferred compensati
Forfeitures of stoc-based compensatic
Net income

Balance at June 30, 20
Exercise of stock optior
Non-employee stoc-based compensatic
Deferred stoc-based compensatic
Amortization of deferred compensati
Forfeitures of stoc-based compensatic
Tax benefit resulting from stock option transacsi
Net income

Balance at June 30, 20
Exercise of stock optior
Issuance of common stock in connection with initial

public offering, net of issuance costs of $4,

Stocl-based compensatic
Amortization of deferred compensati
Forfeitures of stoc-based compensatic
Tax benefit resulting from stock option transacsi
Net income

Balance at June 30, 20

Common Stock

Deferred

Total

Stock-based Retained Stockholders’
Shares Amount Compensatior Earnings Equity

21,903,64 $ 6,30¢ $ (499 $15,757 $ 21,56¢
35,00( 44 — — 44
— 79 — — 79

— 1,05¢ (1,05¢) — —
— — 34¢€ — 34¢

— (24) 24 — —
— — — 7,09(C 7,09(
21,938,64 7,462 (1,182 22,84 29,125
235,61¢ 377 — — 377
— 20¢ — — 20¢

— 2,34¢ (2,34 — —
— — 887 — 887

— (77) 77 — —
— 22C — — 22C
— — — 16,94, 16,94’
22,174,26 10,53¢ (2,569 39,79« 47,767
1,631,00! 1,82: — — 1,82:
6,400,001 42,98! — — 42,98!
— 1,531 — — 1,531
— — 89¢ — 89¢

— (164) 164 — —
— 1,532 — — 1,532
— — — 19,33¢ 19,33¢
30,205,26 $58,23¢ $ (1,500 $59,13: $ 115,87.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financitdsients.
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SUPER MICRO COMPUTER, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Years Ended June 30,

2007 2006 2005
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $19,33¢ $ 16,94° $ 7,09(C
Reconciliation of net income to net cash providgdperating activities:
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,64( 1,21¢ 922
Stock-based compensation expense 2,43( 1,09¢ 42t
Allowance for doubtful accounts 24C 18 88
Allowance for sales returr 4,40¢ 2,497 4,14¢
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 16 13 2
Deferred income taxes (3,212 (81¢ 132
Gain on short-term investments (93) 9) —
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivable, net (including changes inteelparty balances of $(543), $(109), and $(193istral years 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively) (15,827 (11,249 (9,607)
Inventories, ne (9,160 (17,087 (8,909
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (86€) (529) 53C
Accounts payable (including changes in relatedypaatances of $2,602, $1,861, and $3,543 in figeats 2007, 2006 and
2005, respectively 9,481 14,22 6,58¢
Income tax payable 1,93¢ (1,019 2,328
Accrued litigation loss (575) 57E (2,17¢)
Accrued liabilities 5,221 2,322 2,17¢
Net cash provided by operating activit 14,98¢ 8,20¢ 4,742
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Restricted cash-decrease — — 1,73¢
Proceeds from short-term investments 14& 1,82¢ 20C
Purchases of property, plant and equipn (3,047 (11,457 (2,050
Purchases of short-term investments (15,059 a0z (1,769
Other assets (157) (63) 19
Net cash used in investing activiti (18,109 (9,799 (864)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from lor-term debi — 8,93¢ —
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 1,822 377 44
Repayment of long-term debt (7,682 (2,66¢) (403)
Payment of obligations under capital leases (210 97) ()]
Advances under receivable financing arrangem 182 437 362
Payment of deferred offering costs — (63) —
Proceeds from initial offering of common stock, nébffering costs 43,36! — —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 37,47¢ 6,92f (67)
Net increase in cash and cash equival 34,35t 5,33¢ 3,811
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 16,50¢ 11,17( 7,35¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 50,86+ $ 16,50¢ $11,17(
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for intere: $ 1,332 $ 1,25¢ $ 90¢
Cash paid for taxes $11,27¢ $11,51C $ 49z
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Equipment purchased under capital lez $ 13¢ $ 21€ $ 16
Deferred stock-based compensation related to siptkn grants $ — $ 2,34t $ 1,05¢
Reversal of deferred stock-based compensatiorafecedlation of stock options $ 164 $ 77 $ 24
Accrued costs for property and equipment purchases $ 78 $ 131 $ 84
Accrued offering cost $ 317 $ 35E $ —

See accompanying notes to consolidated financitdsients.
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SUPER MICRO COMPUTER, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting

Organization—Super Micro Computer, Inc. was incorporated inifoatia on September 28, 1993 and reincorporatddelaware on
March 19, 2007. Super Micro Computer develops angiges high performance server solutions based apannovative, modular and
open-standard architecture. Super Micro Computemifelly owned subsidiaries in the Netherlands Baigvan.

On April 3, 2007, the Company completed its inipablic offering (IPO) in which the Company sold®),000 shares of its common
stock and selling stockholders sold 2,800,000 sh@neluding 1,200,000 shares sold pursuant tautiterwriters’ over-allotment option) at a
public offering price of $8.00 per share. The umdéers exercised the over-allotment option in fal April 3, 2007. The net proceeds of the
IPO to the Company were approximately $43.0 millioet of underwriters’ discounts and offering exgenof approximately $8.2 million.

Principles of Consolidation—The consolidated financial statements reflectciesolidated balance sheets, results of operatiods
cash flows of Super Micro Computer, Inc. and itoishowned subsidiaries (collectively, the “CompdnAll intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates—The preparation of financial statements in confrwith accounting principles generally acceptedhie United
States of America requires management to make &®imand assumptions that affect the reported aimofiassets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiethatdate of the financial statements and the reda@imounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting periods. Such estimates includeabeinot limited to: allowances for doubtful accauand sales returns, cooperative adverti
accruals, inventory valuation, product warrantyraats, depreciation and amortization, income taescontingencies. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents-The Company considers all highly liquid instrungewith an original maturity of three months or less
from the date of purchase to be cash and cashaquotg. Cash equivalents consist primarily of momeyket funds.

Short-term Investments—Short-term investments consist of certificate @padsits with maturities of more than three montiisidss
than a year and auction rate securities. The watifs of deposits are carried at amortized cogthwdpproximates fair value. The Company
classifies the auction rate securities with a aaritral maturities in excess of ten years as avaif@-sale in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 1A&counting for Certain Investments in Debt and BgSiecurities Even though the stated
maturity dates of these auction rate securities beagne year or more beyond the balance sheettdat€ompany has classified all auction
rate securities as short-term investments in aerme with Accounting Research Bulletin No. 43, GbaaA, Working Capital—Current
Assets and Current Liabilitie, as they are reasonably expected to be realizegsim or sold during the normal operating cyclthef
Company. Auction rate securities are reportediavfdue with unrealized gains and losses, netlated tax, as a component of other
comprehensive income. There are no unrealized gailtsses in relation to auction rate securit@stie years ended June 30, 2007, 200¢
2005 because of the frequent interest rate regettiture of auction rate securities.

Inventory —Inventory is stated at the lower of cost (first{inst-out method) or market. Inventory consistsaw materials (principally
components), work in process (principally produmsg assembled) and finished goods. Market vapeesents net realizable value for
finished goods and work in process and replacenadne of raw materials and parts. The Company’slyets are subject to rapid
technological obsolescence and severe price cotigoetShould the Company experience a substantiahticipated decline in the selling
price
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SUPER MICRO COMPUTER, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

or demand of its products, a significant chargegerations could result. During 2007, 2006 and 2@@5 Company recorded inventory write-
downs charged to cost of sales of $5,629,000, $2086 and $1,429,000, respectively, for excesso@sdlete inventory.

Property and Equipmeri—Property and equipment are recorded at cost apiiedi@ated using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the related assets el

Machinery and equipme 1.5t0 7 year.

Furniture and fixture 5 years

Software 3 years

Building 39 years

Building improvement: 20 years

Leasehold improvemen shorter of lease term or estimated useful

For assets acquired and financed under capitadde#fse present value of the future minimum leasenents is recorded at the date of
acquisition as property and equipment with theesponding amount recorded as a capital lease tibligand the amortization is computed
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of ldasa or estimated useful life.

Long-Lived Assets—The Company evaluates its long-lived assets f@ainment whenever events or changes in circumssandé&ate
that the carrying amount of an asset may not baverable. When the sum of the undiscounted futeteash flows expected to result from
the use of the asset and its eventual dispos#i¢ess than its carrying amount, an impairmentvessld be measured based on the fair value
of the asset compared to the carrying amount. Nmirment charge has been recorded in any of thedsepresented.

Revenue Recognitior~The Company accounts for its revenue under theigioms of Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 104,
Revenue Recognition in Financial Statem. Under the provisions of SAB No. 104, the Compeagognizes revenue from sales of products,
when persuasive evidence of an arrangement esfgfsnent has occurred and title has transferredsdles price is fixed or determinable,
collection of the resulting receivable is reasopassured, and all significant obligations havenbmet. Generally this occurs at the time of
shipment when risk of loss and title has passeldeaustomer. The Company’s standard arrangemémtit&icustomers includes a signed
purchase order or contract, free-on-board shippoigt terms, 30 to 60 days payment terms, and stomer acceptance provisions. Certain
customers have free-on-board destination termsearehue is recognized when the products arriveeatiestination. The Company generally
does not provide for non-warranty rights of retareept for products which have “Out-of-box” failuie which case customers may return
these products for credit within 30 days of reaaivihe items. Certain distributors and OEMs are pErmitted to return products in unope
boxes, limited to purchases over a specified pesfddne, generally within 60 to 90 days of the ghase, or to products in the distributor’s or
OEM'’s inventory at certain times (such as the teation of the agreement or product obsolescensaddlition, the Company has a sales
arrangement with an original equipment manufact(fEM”) under which the Company sells its produsith the OEM'’s brand to the
OEM. The OEM has limited product return rights. 8stimate reserves for future sales returns, thepaognregularly reviews its history of
actual returns for each major product line. The @any also communicates regularly with the reledbstributors to gather information ab
end customer satisfaction, and to determine therwelof inventory in the channel. Estimated resefoetuture returns, which are recordec
the time the related revenue is recognized, anesselj] as necessary, based on returns experiehg@srexpectations and communication \
distributors.
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SUPER MICRO COMPUTER, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

In addition, certain customers have acceptanceigioms and revenue is deferred until the custorpergide the necessary acceptance.
At June 30, 2007, the Company had deferred revandeelated deferred product costs of $175,000644d,000, respectively, related to
shipments to customers pending acceptances. Tharedeferred revenue and related deferred pratsts at June 30, 2006.

Probability of collection is assessed on a custelyecustomer basis. Customers are subjected teditceview process that evaluates
the customers’ financial position and ultimatelgithability to pay. If it is determined from thetsat of an arrangement that collection is not
probable based upon the review process, the custane required to pay cash in advance of shipriiér.Company provides for price
protection to certain distributors. Management ssse the market competition and product technabbgplescence, and makes price
adjustments based on their judgment. Upon eachusnzement of price reductions, the accrual for ppicgection is calculated based on the
distributors’ inventory on hand. Such reservesracerded as a reduction to revenue at the time gement reduces the product prices in
accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force Issu@N8,Accounting for Consideration Given by a Vendor Bustomer (including a
Reseller of the Vend's Products). Credits issued by the Company pursuant to thesasions were $182,000, $75,000 and $203,00¢hfor
years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, resglgciihe Company does not commit to future prickiotions with any of its custome

Cost of Sales—Cost of sales primarily consists of the costs aferials, contract manufacturing, shipping, persband related
expenses, equipment and facility expenses, warcgts and inventory write-offs.

Product Warranties—The Company’s product warranties range from 12&ononths. At the time product revenue is recoghittee
Company provides for estimated warranty costs.Jompany has established accruals for anticipatiedegwarranty costs which are
included in accrued liabilities in the accompanyaagsolidated balance sheets. The following taldsents for the years ended June 30, :
2006 and 2005, the reconciliation of the changexarued warranty costs (in thousands):

June 30,
2007 2006 2005
Balance as of beginning of peri $ 1,462 $ 1,59 $ 1,36
Provision for warrant 4,20z 1,59C 1,61¢
Costs charged to accrt (3,42)) (1,729 (1,389
Balance as of end of perit $ 2,24 $ 1,462 $ 1,59¢

Software Development CostsSoftware development costs are included in rebesnd development and are expensed as incurred.
Software development costs are capitalized begiwimen technological feasibility has been estabtishnd ending when a product is
available for general release to customers. To, tladeperiod between achieving technological fakisitand the issuing of such software has
been short and software development costs qualifigncapitalization have been insignificant.

Research and DevelopmertResearch and development costs are expenseduaeithand consists primarily of salaries, consgltin
services, other direct expenses and other engimeexipenses. The Company occasionally receivesrgriicom certain suppliers and
customers towards its development efforts. Suchumtisarecorded as a reduction of research and dawelat expenses were $1,104,000,
$403,000 and $255,000 for the years ended Junz0Bd, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Cooperative Marketing Arrangements-The Company follows Emerging Issues Task ForcéTFB) Issue No. 01-9Accounting for
Consideration Given by a Vendor to a Customer (iditlg a Reseller of the Vendor’s
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SUPER MICRO COMPUTER, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

Products). The Company has arrangements with resellers @ir@ducts to reimburse the resellers for cooperatiarketing costs meeting
specified criteria. In accordance with EITF Issuz N1-9, the Company records advertising costsimgstich specified criteria within sales
and marketing expenses in the accompanying comgeticstatements of operations. For those adveytisiats that do not meet the criteria set
forth in EITF Issue No. 01-9, the amounts are réedras a reduction to sales in the accompanyingotidated statements of operations.

Prior to fiscal year 2007, the Company had recaghihe maximum potential amount of the reimburseérf@rwhich the resellers were
entitled as the Company lacked sufficient histdricgerience to make a reasonably reliable estiwfatiee amount that might expire
unclaimed. Beginning in fiscal year 2007, the Comypdetermined that it had sufficient history of laimed cooperative marketing funds to
make reasonably reliable estimates. Accordinglgjrioeng in fiscal year 2007 the Company began raduits accrual for cooperative
marketing funds for its estimate of amounts thdltmat be claimed. This change in accounting estiinfead a favorable impact on income
before income taxes for the fiscal year ended 30n2007 of approximately $755,000. The effect enincome for this period was an
increase of approximately $498,000 and the effa@arnings per common share was an increase d@ $ertbasic share and $0.01 per fully
diluted share.

Total cooperative marketing costs charged to satelsmarketing expenses for the years ended Jurg®8d, 2006 and 2005, were
$1,699,000, $1,326,000 and $1,069,000, respectiVelpl amounts recorded as reductions to salethéoyears ended June 30, 2007, 2006
and 2005, were $622,000, $665,000 and $720,000ectsely.

Advertising Costs—Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Eateértising and promotional expenses, includingeoative
marketing payments, were $2,426,000, $2,050,0005&r&D5,000 for the years ended June 30, 2007, @00&@005, respectively.

Stock-Based CompensationEffective July 1, 2006, the Company adopted thevalue recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123(R),
Share-Based Paymentising the prospective transition method, whidalgshes standards for the accounting of transastin which an
entity exchanges its equity instruments for goadseovices, primarily focusing on accounting farsactions where an entity obtains
employee services in share-based payment transac8¢AS No. 123(R) requires enterprises to medkareost of employee services
received in exchange for an award of equity ins&ots, including stock options, based on the gdaté-fair value of the award. That cost
be recognized over the period during which an egg#ds required to provide services in exchangéhferaward, known as the requisite
service period (usually the vesting period). SFAS N2 3(R) supersedes the Company’s previous adogumhder APB No. 25 for periods
beginning in fiscal 2007.

Prior to July 1, 2006, the Company elected to fellccounting Principles Board Opinion No. 2Z&;counting for Stock Issued to
Employee(APB 25), and related interpretations in accountorgts employee stock options rather than theratitive fair value accounting
provided for under Statement of Financial Accougt8tandards (“SFAS”) No. 123ccounting for Stock-Based Compensafi®RAS
No. 123), as amended by SFAS No. 148. Under APBvBBN the exercise price of the Comg’s employee and director stock options is
equal to or greater than the market price of thieudging stock on the date of grant, no compensatikpense is recognized.

The Company accounts for equity instruments grattewnemployees under SFAS No. 123, EITF Issue9fdl8,Accounting for
Equity Instruments That Are Issued to Other Thamplagees for Acquiring, or In Conjunction with SefjiGoods or Serviceand Financial
Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. (“BIRB, Accounting for Stock Appreciation Rights and Otfiariable Stock Option or
Award Plans. The
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options are recorded at fair value under SFAS 128.dnd are measured and recognized in accordatit&WiF Issue No. 96-18 and FIN 28.

Shipping and Handling Fees—In accordance with EITF Issue No. 00-2@counting for Shipping and Handling Fees and Cptte
Company incurred shipping costs of $458,000, $31B4hd $465,000 for the years ended June 30, 20086, and 2005, respectively, that
were included in sales and marketing expenses.

Income Taxes—The Company accounts for income taxes under an aisddiability approach. Deferred income taxesefthe impac
of temporary differences between assets and liedsilfecognized for financial reporting purposed smch amounts recognized for income
reporting purposes, net operating loss carryforgart other tax credits measured by applying ctiyrenacted tax laws. Valuation
allowances are provided when necessary to redufeeree tax assets to an amount that is more litkedy not to be realized.

Comprehensive Income-Comprehensive income, as defined, includes alhgbsa in equity during a period from non-owner sesrc
Comprehensive income was the same as net incontiefgears ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Foreign Currency Translation—The functional currency of the Company’s foreigibsidiaries is the U.S. dollar. Accordingly,
remeasurement of foreign currency accounts andgfoexchange transaction gains and losses, whieh hat been material, are reflected in
the consolidated statements of operations.

Net Income Per Share—Basic net income per share is computed by dividieigincome by the weighted average number of cammo
shares outstanding for the period.

Diluted net income per share is computed by digjdhre net income for the period by the weightedaye number of common and
common equivalent shares outstanding during thiegePotentially dilutive securities, comprisedimiremental common shares, issuable
upon the exercise of stock options are includedilined net income per share, using the treaswgksnethod, to the extent such shares are
dilutive.

A reconciliation of shares used in the calculatiéibasic and diluted net income per share is dsvisl (in thousands, except for per
share amounts):

Years Ended June 30,

2007 2006 2005
Numerator:
Net income $19,33¢  $16,947 $ 7,09(
Denominator
Basic weighte-average number of common shares outstar 24,15 22,01( 21,91«
Dilutive common stock optior 9,79: 9,83¢ 7,52¢
Diluted weighte-average number of common shares outstar 33,94¢ 31,84¢ 29,44.
Basic net income per she $ 08 $ 077 $ 0.32
Diluted net income per sha $ 057 $ 052 $ 0.2¢

Certain Significant Risks and Uncertainties-The Company operates in the high technology inglustd is subject to a number of
risks, some of which are beyond the Company’s oyrtnat could have a material adverse effect e@x@bmpany’s business, operating
results, and financial condition. These risks idelwariability and uncertainty of revenues and apieg results; product obsolescence;
geographic concentration;
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international operations; dependence on key peedpoompetition; intellectual property/litigatiomanagement of growth; and limited
sources of supply.

Concentration of Supplier Risk—Certain of the raw materials used by the Comparthé manufacture of its products are available
from a limited number of suppliers. Shortages caddur in these essential materials due to anruggon of supply or increased demand in
the industry. Two suppliers accounted for 30.8% 20:@%, 32.2% and 20.8%, and 29.2% and 26.7% talf parchases for years ended
June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. (S¢e 8o

Fair Value of Financial Instruments—Cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accpagtble are carried at cost, which
approximates fair value due to the short maturitthese instruments. Long- term debt is carriegnadrtized cost, which approximates its fair
value based on borrowing rates currently availakae Company for loans with similar terms.

Concentration of Credit Risk—Financial instruments which potentially subjea thompany to concentration of credit risk consist
primarily of cash and cash equivalents, stienta investments and accounts receivable. Deposijsexceed the amount of insurance prov
on such deposits. No single customer accountetidfer or more of net sales in fiscal years 2007, 20662005. Accounts receivable from
one customer accounted for 12.0% of total accowusivable at June 30, 2007. No single customerwated for 10% or more of accounts
receivable as of June 30, 2006.

Note 2. Recently Issued Accounting Standard
FASB Interpretation No. 4

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretatiam K8, “Accounting for Income Tax Uncertainties'INF48). FIN 48 defines the
threshold for recognizing the benefits of tax retpositions in the financial statements as “mokeHi-than-not” to be sustained by the taxing
authority. FIN 48 also provides guidance on theedegnition, measurement and classification of inedax uncertainties, along with any
related interest and penalties. FIN 48 also induglédance concerning accounting for income taxettamties in interim periods and
increases the level of disclosures associatedamiytrecorded income tax uncertainties.

FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning afiiecember 15, 2006. The differences between thmiata recognized in the stateme
of financial position prior to the adoption of F®8 and the amounts reported after adoption wikkdeounted for as a cumulative-effect
adjustment recorded to the beginning balance afiretl earnings. The Company is currently evaluatiegmpact, if any, of adopting the
provisions of FIN 48 on its consolidated finang@akition, results of operations or cash flows.

SAB No. 108

In September 2006, the United States SecuritieEandange Commission (“SEC”) issued Staff Accoumntulletin No. 108
(“SAB 108"), “ Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatemeaviten Quantifying Misstatements in Current YeamaRtial Statements
SAB 108 provides guidance on the consideratiomefeffects of prior year misstatements in quamigyéurrent year misstatements for the
purpose of a materiality assessment. SAB 108 ésitelsl an approach that requires quantificatiomnainicial statement errors based on the
effects of each of the Company’s balance sheestidment of operations financial statements amddlated financial statement disclosures.
SAB 108 permits existing public companies to reabilcumulative effect of initially applying thigproach in the first year ending after
November 15, 2006 by recording the necessary dimgeadjustments to the carrying values of assaddiabilities as of the beginnir
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of that year with the offsetting adjustment recartiethe opening balance of retained earnings. thafdilly, the use of the cumulative effect
transition method requires detailed disclosuréhefriature and amount of each individual error beorgected through the cumulative
adjustment and how and when it arose. The Compppljea the guidance in SAB 108 as of July 1, 200& application of SAB 108 did not
have a significant effect on the Company’s constéd financial position, results of operations astcflows.

SFAS No. 157

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. =iy Value Measurements.SFAS No. 157 establishes a framework for meast
fair value and expands disclosures about fair valeasurements. The statement does not requireeamyair value measurements, but
provides guidance on how to measure fair valuerbyigding a fair value hierarchy used to classifg #ource of the information. This
statement is effective for financial statementaéstfor fiscal years beginning after November TH7 and interim periods within those fis
years. The Company is currently evaluating thecetteat the adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have ndonsolidated financial positic
results of operations or cash flows.

SFAS No. 159

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 15Bé Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fioel Liabilities”. SFAS
No. 159 allows entities to choose, at specifiedt@a dates, to measure eligible financial assedsliabilities at fair value in situations
which they are not otherwise required to be meakatdair value. If a company elects the fair vadption for an eligible item, changes in t
item’s fair value in subsequent reporting periodstibe recognized in current earnings. SFAS No.al&® establishes presentation and
disclosure requirements designed to draw compalisbmeen entities that elect different measurerattributes for similar assets and
liabilities. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscatgrs beginning after November 15, 2007. Early adops$ permitted subject to specific
requirements outlined in SFAS No. 159. The Comparyrrently evaluating the effect that the adaptd SFAS No. 159 will have on its
consolidated financial position, results of opemasi or cash flows.

Note 3. Accounts Receivable Allowance

The Company establishes an allowance for doubtitbants and an allowance for sales returns. Toevalice for doubtful accounts is
based upon the credit risk of specific customestphical trends related to past losses and otflevant factors. The Company also provides
its customers with product returns rights. A pramisfor such returns is provided for in the samequkthat the related sales are recorded
based upon contractual return rights and histotiealds. Accounts receivable allowances as of 30n2007, 2006 and 2005, consisted of the
following (in thousands):

Beginning Charged tc
Cost and Ending
Balance Expenses Deductions Balance
Allowance for doubtful account
Year ended June 30, 20 243 88 (99 237
Year ended June 30, 20 237 18 47 20¢
Year ended June 30, 20 20¢ 24C (14 30C
Allowance for sales returr
Year ended June 30, 20 822 4,14¢ (3,819 1,152
Year ended June 30, 20 1,152 2,49 (3,32¢) 328
Year ended June 30, 20 328 4,40¢ (4,267 47C
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Note 4.  Inventories
Inventories as of June 30, 2007 and 2006 consistdte following (in thousands):

June 30,
2007 2006
Finished good $44,80¢  $39,37:
Work in proces: 441 387
Purchased parts and raw mater 21,525 17,85¢
Total inventories, ne $66,77:  $57,61:
Note 5.  Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment as of June 30, 28872806 consisted of the following (in thousands):
June 30,
2007 2006
Land $13,85¢ $13,85¢
Buildings 13,16: 13,16:
Building and leasehold improvemel 2,94 2,10¢
Machinery and equipme 4,06z 2,67:
Furniture and fixture 1,39( 722
Software 941 84C
36,36! 33,36¢
Accumulated depreciatic (5,272) (3,760
Property, plant and equipment, | $31,08¢  $29,60¢

The costs of assets under capital leases were(8Z®4and $402,000 as of June 30, 2007 and 2006 ctegly, and accumulated
amortization was $57,000 and $46,000, respectively.

On June 28, 2007, the Company entered into an mgmreeo purchase a property located at 880 Fox L9ae Jose, California,
consisting of approximately 90,000 square feefpate. The purchase price for this property is apprately $11.3 million. Escrow of this
property is expected to close on or about OctobeRQ07.

Note 6. Advances from Receivable Financing Arrangement

The Company has accounts receivable financing aggees with certain financing companies wherebyfitiencing companies pay the
Company for sales transactions that have beenggeseed by these financing companies. The financargpany then collects the receivable
from the customer. For the years ended June 3@, 2006 and 2005, such sales transactions totglem@mately $15,595,000, $15,286,000
and $9,960,000, respectively. At June 30, 20072806, approximately $982,000 and $800,000 respagtivemained uncollected from
customers subject to these arrangements. Such &rfane been recorded as advances from receivablecing arrangements as the
Company has obligations to repurchase inventoga®d by the financing companies from defaultingtemers. Historically, the Company
has not been required to repurchase inventories fhe financing companies. These financing arramggsbear interest at rates ranging f
13.65% to 21.48% and 12.24% to 19.56% per annuperding on the customers’ credit ratings, for yesded June 30, 2007 and 2006,
respectively.
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Note 7. Long-term Obligations
Long-term obligations as of June 30, 2007 and Z&isted of the following (in thousands):

June 30,
2007 2006
Building loans $10,58¢ $18,23]
Small Business Administration loi 97C 1,00(¢
Capital leases (Note 1 15¢ 22¢
Total 11,71 19,46¢
Current portior (422) (781)
Long-term portion $11,29.  $18,68¢

In March 2001, the Company borrowed $8,712,000 fedbank to purchase a building in San Jose, CaldoiThe loan is secured by 1
property purchased and principal and interest ayalple monthly through April 1, 2021. In May 2087 Company paid off the remaining
outstanding balance of $7,200,000 with a pre-paymenalty of $69,000.

In April 2004, the Company borrowed $4,275,000 fratmank to purchase a building in San Jose, CaldoiThe loan is secured by the
property purchased and principal and interest ayalgle monthly through May 1, 2029. As of JuneZiIl7 and 2006, the total outstanding
borrowings were $3,990,000 and $4,085,000, respegtiwith interest at 5.28% per annum through N897 and 8.125% per annum
through June 2007. The interest rate from July 28€3ugh July 2012 is 7.23% per annum and theésteate from August 2012 through
May 2029 is adjusted every five years to equalrdex of 5-Year Treasury Notes as publish in thdl\®eet Journal plus 2.75% per annum.

In September 2005, the Company obtained two loatasinig $7,920,000 from a bank to purchase a mglé San Jose, California. Bt
loans are secured by the property purchased araktignment of all rent on the property purchased.first loan of $6,930,000 is repayable
in equal monthly installments through Septembei02@& of June 30, 2007 and 2006, the total outatgnidorrowings were $6,595,000 and
$6,792,000, respectively, with interest at 5.77%agyeum through September 2010, and then it isssejuevery five years to equal the index
of 5-Year Treasury Notes plus 1.65% per annum.sewend loan of $990,000 was paid off using a SBuiness Administration loan of
$1,019,000 on November 16, 2005. The second losecisred by the property purchased and guaraniesudotofficers/shareholders of the
Company. As of June 30, 2007 and 2006, the totatanding borrowings were $970,000 and $1,000,6&pectively, with interest at
6.6% per annum through November 16, 2010, andithemdjusted every five years based on the iradedefined in the loan agreement. The
Small Business Administration loan is repayablegnal monthly installments through November 1, 2025

As of June 30, 2007, the gross cost and net bolie o the land, building and related improvemearai$ateralizing the borrowings we
approximately $29,797,000 and $27,756,000, respygtiAs of June 30, 2006, the gross cost and oek value of the land, building and
related improvements collateralizing the borrowingse approximately $28,992,000 and $27,450,0GQpeattively.
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The following table as of June 30, 2007, summaria&ge minimum principal payments on the Compargbts excluding capital
leases (in thousands):

Fiscal Years Ending June 30,

2008 $ 304
2009 324
2010 34k&
2011 36¢
2012 392
Thereaftel 9,827
Total 11,55¢

As of June 30, 2007, the Company had an unusediiegdine of credit totaling $5,000,000 that mataon November 1, 2007 and the
interest rate on this credit line is equal to #veder’s established prime rate of 8.25% per annum.

Note 8.  Related-party and Other Transactions

Ablecom Technology Inc—Ablecom, a Taiwan corporation, together with itbsidiaries (Ablecom”), is one of the Company’s onaj
contract manufacturers. Ablecom’s chief executiffecer, Steve Liang, is the brother of Charles Igathe Company’s President, Chief
Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Bioes, and owns approximately 2.6% of the Compaogiamon stock. Charles Liang
served as a Director of Ablecom during the Compafigcal 2006, but is no longer serving in suchacity. In addition, Charles Liang and
wife, also an officer of the Company, collectivelwn approximately 30.7% of Ablecom and Yih-Shyara{l) Liaw, an officer and director
of the Company, and his spouse collectively owrraximately 5.2% of Ablecom, while Steve Liang artdey family matters own
approximately 46.3% of Ablecom at June 30, 2007.

The Company has product design and manufacturivices agreements (“product design and manufagjigreements”) and a
distribution agreement (“distribution agreementihnwAblecom.

Under the product design and manufacturing agretsptiie Company outsources a portion of its deaaivities and a significant part
of its manufacturing of components such as servassis to Ablecom, beginning in 1997 for the saigpse of providing design and
manufacturing services. Ablecom agrees to desigdymts according to the Company’s specificatiorddifionally, Ablecom agrees to build
the tools needed to manufacture the products. Wheegproduct design and manufacturing agreemdrm@sCompany commits to purchase a
minimum quantity over a set period. The purchagsef the products manufactured by Ablecom is tiaged on a purchase order by
purchase order basis at each purchase date. Hgoveefieed charge is added to the price of eachpumithased until the agreed minimum
number of units is purchased.

Under the distribution agreement, Ablecom purché&ses the Company server products for distribufioaiwan. The pricing and
terms under the distribution agreement are sindld@ine pricing and terms of distribution arrangetagehe Company has with similar, third
party distributors.

Ablecom’s net sales to the Company and its ness#léhe Company’s products to others comprisebatantial majority of Ablecom’s
net sales. The Company purchased products fromcAbidotaling approximately $95,673,000, $75,718,800 $57,342,000, and sold
products to Ablecom totaling approximately $7,320,063,881,000 and $4,064,000, for the years edded 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.
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Amounts owed to the Company by Ablecom as of Juh€807 and 2006, were approximately $853,000 &1 800, respectively. Amour
owed to Ablecom by the Company as of June 30, 20@72006, were approximately $26,094,000 and $23)09, respectively. Historicall
the Company has paid Ablecom the majority of inediclollars between 45 and 170 days of invoicetlf®@years ended June 30, 2007, 2006
and 2005, the Company received $89,000, $90,00684@00, respectively, from Ablecom for penaltaides, and paid approximately
$412,000, $104,000 and $61,000, respectively, statlaneous costs to Ablecom. Penalty chargessaessments relating to delayed
deliveries or quality issues.

The Companys exposure to loss as a result of its involvemetit Ablecom is limited to (a) potential losses tspurchase orders in t
event of an unforeseen decline in the market @iador demand of the Compasyroducts such that the Company incurs a losh®sale c
cannot sell the products and (b) potential losgesutstanding accounts receivable from Ablecont@nevent of an unforeseen deterioratic
the financial condition of Ablecom such that Abletdefaults on its payable to the Company. Outstandurchase orders with Ablecom
were $2.2 million and $1.6 million at June 30, 2@®id 2006, respectively, representing the maximxposure to loss relating to (a) above.
The Company does not have any direct or indireatantees of losses, if any, of Ablecom.

Tatung—Tatung is a significant contract manufacturertf@ Company and a less than 10% stockholder dEtmepany.
The Company has a product manufacturing agreerfyaatduct manufacturing agreement”) with Tatung.

Under the product manufacturing agreement, the @Gmyputsources a significant portion of its desigd manufacturing of
components such as motherboards to Tatung. Tagnegsito design products according to the Compapgsifications.

The Company purchased contract manufacturing ss\aad products from Tatung totaling approxima$2$,312,000, $13,561,000
and $12,224,000 and sold products to Tatung tgapproximately $5,739,000, $6,000 and $1,000tHeryears ended June 30, 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively. The amounts owed to thegaomby Tatung as of June 30, 2007 and 2006, wgm®aimately $886,000 and
$83,000, respectively. The amounts owed to Tatynigné Company as of June 30, 2007 and 2006, wegmn@simately $5,616,000 and
$4,988,000, respectively. Historically, the Compaag paid Tatung the majority of invoiced dollaetvieen 50 and 130 days of invoice. For
the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 oitmgp&hy received no penalty charges from Tatung.

Note 9.  Stock-based Compensation and Stockholde’ Equity
Stocl-Split

On January 10, 2007, the Company’s Board of Dirscpproved a two-for-one common stock split antharease in the number of
authorized common shares to 100,000,000, $0.00¢gbae per share. All share and per share infoonati the consolidated financial
statements has been adjusted to give retroactigeted the split.

Initial Public Offering of Common Stock

On April 3, 2007, the Company completed the initiablic offering of shares of its common stock. arch 28, 2007, the SEC
declared the Company’s Registration Statement omF1 (File No. 333:38370) effective. The Registration Statement teggsl the sale «
an aggregate of 9,200,000 shares of the Company’s

70



Table of Contents

SUPER MICRO COMPUTER, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

common stock, of which the Company sold 6,400,0G0es, and the selling stockholders sold 2,800sb@@es (including 1,200,000 shares
sold pursuant to the underwriters’ over-allotmeptian). The underwriters exercised the over-allattraption in full on April 3, 2007. At a
public offering price of $8.00 per share, the aggte price of the shares sold by the Company wa2$8,000, and the aggregate price of the
shares sold by the selling stockholders was $220000 The Company did not receive any proceeds fhansale of shares by the selling
stockholders. However, the Company received $80i@00 certain members of the Company’s managenmsepagment of the exercise price
of their options to purchase an aggregate of 4@0sb@res of common stock, which they sold in ther@llotment. The aggregate
underwriting discounts and commissions for shaoé Isy both the Company and the selling stockhaldesre $5,152,000. The net proceeds
to the Company from the offering, after deductiBgs84,000 in underwriting discounts and commissams $4,635,000 of offering expenses
payable by the Company, were $42,981,000.

Stock Option Plan:

The 1998 Stock Option Plan (the “1998 Plan”) auttes the Board of Directors to grant options to yges, directors and consultants
to purchase shares of the Company’s common stddilaf#ich 31, 2007, 13,000,000 shares of the Comgacgrnmon stock have been
reserved for issuance under the 1998 Plan and 288 thares of common stock originally reserveddsuance under the 1998 Plan were
cancelled upon the completion of the Company’s IPi@ exercise price per share for options grargeshiployees and consultants owning
shares representing more than 10% of the Compathig dime of grant cannot be less than 110% ofahevalue. Incentive and nonqualified
stock options granted to all other persons shafirbated at a price not less than 100% and 85%ectisely, of the fair value. Options
generally expire ten years after the date of grEime. vesting of stock options is determined byBbard of Directors and may not exceed five
years. Generally, options vest over four years; 25%e end of one year and one sixteenth pereyureafter. In fiscal year 2007, 1
Company granted 1,656,330 options under the 1988. PI

In August 2006, the Board of Directors approved26@6 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2006 Plan”) ardarved for issuance 4,000,000
shares of common stock for the granting of stodioop, stock appreciation rights, restricted staakards, restricted stock units and other
equity-based awards. The number of shares resemllelitomatically increase on July 1, 2007 andresgbsequent anniversary through
2016, by an amount equal to the smaller of (a)etipercent of the number of shares of stock issnddatstanding on the immediately
preceding June 30, or (b) a lesser amount detedntipéhe Board of Directors. The 2006 Plan was aypgut by the stockholders of the
Company on January 8, 2007. The exercise pricshme for options granted to employees and comgsltavning shares representing more
than 10% of the Company at the time of grant cabedess than 110% of the fair value. Incentive ramdqualified stock options granted to
all other persons shall be granted at a priceesst than 100% of the fair value. Options generdpyire ten years after the date of grant and
options vest over four years; 25% at the end ofy@ae and one sixteenth per quarter thereaftdisdal year 2007, the Company granted
230,525 options under the 2006 Plan.

Outside the Stock Option Plans

In fiscal year 1999, the Company granted 5,944} statutory stock options to key employees ofGbempany and external
consultants outside of the 1998 Stock Option Pléwese options, which the Company has reserved:frarately, were granted at exercise
prices ranging from $0.08 to $0.63 per share (weidjlaverage exercise price of $0.22), which weeeeitimated fair values at the dates of
grant and are now fully vested.

In fiscal year 2001, the Company granted 1,480rf¥fstatutory stock options to key officers of the Camyp outside of the 1998 Stc
Option Plan. These options, which the Company éssrved for separately,
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were granted at an exercise price of $1.25 peeshdrich was the estimated fair value at the daggant and are now fully vested.

In fiscal year 2003, the Company granted 200,000statutory stock options to an officer of the Camy outside the 1998 Stock
Option Plan. This option, which the Company hasmesd for separately, was granted at an exercise pf $1.25 per share.

In fiscal year 2006, the Company granted 64,800statutory stock options to an officer of the Comypautside the 1998 Stock Option
Plan. This option, which the Company has resereeddparately, was granted at an exercise pri§8.60 per share.

Options to Nonemployees

Prior to July 1, 2007, the Company issued optionsanemployees. The options generally vest over fourg/aad expire ten years frc
the date of issuance. For the years ended JurR08@, 2006 and 2005, the Company recorded compenspense of $(6,570), $209,000
and $79,000, respectively, associated with theserap The fair value of the options issued wagdeined based on fair value of the
consideration received, where such amount wadtgliaeasurable, or the fair value of the equityrin®ents issued, in which case the fair
value was estimated at the vesting date using ldekBEScholes model with the following assumptiomsk-free interest rate, 4.56% to 5.10%
for 2007, 4.16% to 5.20% for 2006 and 4.09% to %88r 2005, contractual life of ten years, expedwidend yield of zero, and expected
volatility of 43% to 81% for 2007, 81% for 2006 and% for 2005. Unrecognized compensation costaélad non-vested, non-employee
options was $4,000 and $50,000 at June 30, 2002@0| respectively. The fair value and compenaatipense included in the unvested
portion of such award is subject to adjustmenthadair value of the Company’s common stock charmgeer the vesting period.

Stock-Based Compensation

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated findrst&ements, the Company adopted SFAS 123(R)teféeduly 1, 2006 using the
prospective transition method. Prior to the adaptbSFAS 123(R), the Company accounted for itskstiptions issued to employees in
accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinlim 25,Accounting for Stock Issued to Employ@&BB 25), and related interpretations
in accounting for its employee stock options rathan the alternative fair value accounting prodlitr under Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 128¢counting for Stock-Based Compensaf8RAS No. 123), as amended by SFAS No. 148. Under
APB 25, when the exercise price of the Company’pleyee and director stock options is equal to eatgr than the market price of the
underlying stock on the date of grant, no compémsaxpense is recognized.

Determining Fair Value

Valuation and amortization method—The Company estéimthe fair value of stock options granted usiregBlack-Scholes-option-
pricing formula and a single option award approddtis fair value is then amortized ratably over tbguisite service periods of the awards,
which is generally the vesting period.

Expected Term—The Company’s expected term represieatperiod that the Company’s stock-based avarlexpected to be
outstanding and was determined based on an anafytsie relevant peer companies’ post-vest terranatates and the exercise factors.

72



Table of Contents

SUPER MICRO COMPUTER, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

Expected Volatility—Expected volatility is based arrombination of the implied and historical vdlgtifor both the Company and its
peer group.

Expected Dividend—The Black-Scholes valuation maxddls for a single expected dividend yield asrgrut and the Company has no
plans to pay dividends.

Risk-Free Interest Rate—The risk-free interest uated in the Black-Scholes valuation method is dasethe U.S. Treasury zero
coupon issues in effect at the time of grant foiqus corresponding with the expected term of aptio

Estimated Forfeitures—The estimated forfeiture imteased on the Company’s historical forfeitutesand the estimate is revised in
subsequent periods if actual forfeitures diffenfrthe estimate.

The fair value of stock option grants for the yeaded June 30, 2007 under SFAS 123(R) was estimat#te date of grant using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model with the follawgi assumptions:

Year Ended June 30, 200

Risk-free interest rat 4.50%— 4.60%
Expected life 4.04-4.38 year
Dividend yield —

Volatility 42.65-50.51%
Estimated forfeiture 3.30%-15.16¥%
Weightec-average fair valu $4.8¢

The total intrinsic value of options exercised dgrthe years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 200$182814,000, $1,739,000 and
$87,000, respectively. The fair value of optionscamted for in accordance with SFAS No. 123(R) eested for the year ended June 30,
2007 was $1,538,000. As of June 30, 2007, the Coyp#otal unrecognized compensation cost relatetbn-vested stock-based awards

granted since July 1, 2006 to employees and noresm directors was $6,715,000, which will be retpgd over a weighted-average
vesting period of approximately 4 years.

The following tables shows total stock-based corspan expense included in the consolidated stattesyeé operations for the years
ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 (in thousands).

Years Ended June 30,

2007 2006 2005
Cost of sale: $ 30C $ 10z $ 40
Research and developmt 1,05¢ 441 18C
Sales and marketir 362 23€ 63
General and administratiy 71C 317 14z
Stocl-based compensation expense before t 2,43( 1,09¢ 42E
Income tax benef (365) (399 (49)
Stocl-based compensation expense, $2,06¢ $ 697 $37€

SFAS No. 123(R) requires the cash flows resultmognfthe tax benefits for tax deductions resultirggyf the exercise of stock options in
excess of the compensation expense recorded fee thytions (excess tax benefits) to be classiechah from financing activities. The
Company had no excess tax benefits in the yeardehatee 30, 2007.
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Stock Option Activity

The following table summaries stock option actiyvitycluding stock options granted outside the plaosing the years ended June 30,
2007, 2006 and 2005 under all stock option plamsh@usands, except share and per share amounts):

Weighted Weighted
Options Average Average Aggregate
Available Options Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
for Grant Outstanding Price Term (Years) Value
Balance as of June 30, 2004 (10,284,900 sharesisxieie at weighte
average exercise price of 0.87 per sh 2,000,80: 12,680,19 $ 1.0€
Granted (weighted average fair value of $1 (1,414,98)) 1,414,98 2.9C
Exercisec — (35,000 1.2t
Cancelec 159,34t (159,349 1.31
Balance as of June 30, 2005 (11,429,052 sharesisxieie at weighte
average exercise price of $0.96 per sh 745,16: 13,900,83 1.24
Authorized 4,000,001 —
Granted (weighted average fair value of $3 (879,73 944,53t 4.04
Exercisec — (235,619 1.8C
Cancelec 258,59: (258,599 1.9¢
Balance as of June 30, 2006 (12,133,060 sharesisxieie at weighte
average exercise price of $1.07 per sh 4,124,02. 14,351,16 1.4C
Authorized 4,000,001 —
Granted (weighted average fair value of $4 (1,886,85) 1,886,85! 11.1¢€
Exercisec — (1,631,00i) 1.12
Cancelec 199,18: (256,959 7.217
Canceled 1998 Plan shai (2,661,98) —
Balance as of June 30, 2007 (11,756,367 sharesigxiele at weighte
average exercise price of $1.49 per sh: 3,774,361 14,350,06 $ 2.61 4.8¢ $109,72
Options vested and expected to vest at June 30, 13,890,07 $ 241 0.17  $108,56:
Options vested at June 30, 2( 11,756,36 $ 1.4¢ 3.9¢  $101,02(
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Additional information regarding options outstarglas of June 30, 2007, is as follows:

Options Outstanding

Weighted-

Average Weighted-
Remaining Average
Range of Number Contractual Exercise

Exercise Prices Qutstanding Term (Years) Price
$0.08- $0.20 1,989,00! 1.4¢ $ 0.1c
0.38 1,500,00! 1.4t 0.3¢
0.63 100,00( 1.4F 0.63
1.25 5,656,601 4.07 1.2t
1.55-2.60 1,510,04 6.6< 2.2¢
2.80- 3.25 1,518,05 7.84 3.1C
3.50- 8.00 948,15¢ 9.4% 6.8¢
10.19 225,64( 9.82 10.1¢
13.70 68,00( 8.7t 13.7C
13.89 834,56( 9.3¢ 13.8¢
$0.08-$13.89 14,350,06 4.8¢ $ 2.61

Options Vested and Exercisable

During each of the quarters in fiscal years 200¥ 2006, the Company granted stock options withegerprices as follows:

Number of
Grants Made During Options
Quarter Ended Granted
September 30, 20( 593,09¢
December 31, 20C 283,44(
March 31, 200t 68,00(
June 30, 200 —
September 30, 20( —
December 31, 20C 925,66(
March 31, 200° 730,67(
June 30, 200 230,52!

Weighted-

Average

Number Exercise
Exercisable Price

1,989,00I $ 0.1

1,500,001 0.3¢

100,00( 0.65

5,656,60! 1.2t

1,252,35! 2.2¢

857,08! 3.0¢

175,39: 5.57

18,12t 13.7(C

207,80¢ 13.8¢

11,756,36 $ 1.4¢
Weighted-

Weighted- Weighted- Average
Average Average Intrinsic
Exercise Fair Value Value per
Price per Share Share

$ 3.2t $ 4.8 $ 1.62

$ 3.5C $ 8.5¢ $ 5.0¢
$ 13.7( $ 13.7( $ —
$ — $ — $ —
$ — $ — $ —
$ 13.8¢ $ 13.8¢ $ —
$ 8.0C $ 8.0C $ —
$ 10.1¢ $ 10.1¢ $ —

The intrinsic value per share for stock optionsggd prior to fiscal year 2007 is being recogniasdcompensation expense over the

applicable vesting period (which equals the serpeeod).

Note 10.
The components of income before income taxes af@law/s (in thousands):

IncomTaxes

United State:
Foreign

Income before income tax
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Years Ended June 30,

2007 2006 2005
$27,01( $2561,  $11,14

1,42¢ 1,00¢ (414
$29,33¢  $26,62.  $10,72¢
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The income tax provision for the years ended JinB07, 2006 and 2005, consists of the followinglfousands):

June 30,
2007 2006 2005
Current:
Federal $11,00: $ 8,82 $3,20:
State 1,744 1,19¢ 308
Foreign 464 47€ —
13,211 10,49 3,50¢
Deferred:
Federal (3,009) (682) 122
State (2949) 47 11
Foreign 90 (90) —
(3,212) (819 13¢
Income tax provisiol $ 9,99¢ $ 9,67¢ $3,63¢

The Company has established tax reserves whialiéves are adequate in relation to the potensiséssments. Once established,
reserves are adjusted when an event occurs nediegsi change to the reserves or the statue ghtions for the relevant taxing authority to
examine the tax position has expired.

The Company’s net deferred tax assets as of Jur208@ and 2006, consist of the following (in thauds):

June 30,

2007 2006
Warranty accrue $ 841 $ 57¢
Marketing fund accrue 625 37¢
Inventory valuatior 3,324 1,66¢
Tax benefit on foreign los — a0
Amortization 657 25€
Allowance for doubtful accoun 85 69
Accrued liability 151 59
Inventory cost differenc 54 26

Foreign tax credi 397 —
Other accrual 55C 31¢
Total deferred income tax ass 6,684 3,44(
Deferred tax liabilitie-depreciation and othi (430 (39§
Deferred income tax ass-net $6,25¢4 $3,04:

As of June 30, 2006, the Company has modifiechtercompany transfer pricing arrangements witlfoiteign subsidiaries. As a result,
the Company utilized a substantial portion of @gefgn net operating loss carryforward in fiscay2006 and now believes it is more likely
than not the deferred tax assets relating to thnairing net operating loss carryforwards will balized. Therefore, the Company released the
valuation allowance relating to these deferredatssets in fiscal year 2006.
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Undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidianéapproximately $190,000 at June 30, 2007 areidered to be indefinitely
reinvested and accordingly, no provisions for fatland state income taxes have been provided thelgmon distribution of those earnings

the form of dividends or otherwise, the Company ldde subject to both U.S. income taxes (subjeantadjustment for foreign tax credits)
and withholding taxes payable to various foreignntaes.

Income tax benefits resulting from the exerciseptfons of $1,532,000, $220,000 and $0 were créddetockholders’ equity in the
years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, resplgc

The following is a reconciliation for the years eddJune 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, of the statutdeyto the Company'’s effective
federal tax rate:

Years Ended June 30,

2007 2006 2005
Tax at statutory rat 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
State income te-net of federal benef 2.6 3.4 2.€
Foreign rate differential losses not deduct (0.5 1.€ (3.2
Change in valuation allowan: — (1.8 1.1
Foreign sales corporation tax ben (1.2) (1.9 (1.9
Research and development tax cr (2.2) (1.0 (0.9
Other (01 0f 0%
Effective tax rate 34.1% 36.2%  33.9%

Note 11. Commitmentand Contingencies

Litigation and Claims—The Company has been a defendant in a lawsuitiNgtechnic, S.A., a former customer, before tlabigny
Commercial Court in Paris, France, in which Digdliteic alleged that certain products purchased flenGompany were defective. In
September 2003, the Bobigny Commercial Court faarfdvor of Digitechnic and awarded damages togp#ith, 178,000. The Company
accrued for these damages in its consolidated dinhstatements as of June 30, 2004, as the h@stads of its loss in this situation. In
February 2005, the Paris Court of Appeals revetisedrial court’s ruling, dismissed all of Digiteuh’s claims and awarded $11,000 to the
Company for legal expenses. Accordingly, the Corgpanmersed the $1,178,000 accrued in fiscal 200§itézhnic has appealed the Paris
Court of Appeals decision to the French SupremertGmnd asked for $2,416,000 for damages. On Fepti&r2007, the French Supreme
Court reversed the decision of the Paris Courtgheals, ordering a new hearing before a differanepof the Paris Court of Appeals.
Pending a new hearing, the trial court ruling isstated. Although the Company cannot predict wéttainty the final outcome of this
litigation, it believes the claim to be without ritemd intend to continue to defend it vigorouslanagement believes that the ultimate
resolution of this matter will not result in a midd adverse impact on the Company’s results ofaipens, cash flows or financial position.

In August, September and November 2006, the Compatered into settlement agreements regardingicetms relating to the sale
of its products in violation of export control lawa August 2006, the Company entered into a pigaement with the U.S. Department of
Justice, the principal terms of which included entga guilty plea to one charge of violating fealezxport regulations and payment of
approximately $150,000 in fines. The plea agreerhastbeen approved by the U.S. District Court. Company has also entered into a
settlement agreement with the Bureau of Industdy@ecurity of the Department of Commerce pursuanattich the Company has
acknowledged violations of the Export AdministratiBegulations and agreed to pay a fine of appraein&125,000. Finally, on
November 10, 200¢

77



Table of Contents

SUPER MICRO COMPUTER, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

the Company entered into a settlement agreemehttiagt Office of Foreign Assets Control of the Dépemt of the Treasury (“OFAC”),
pursuant to which the Company made a payment ioeaof $179,000.

On September 2, 2005, Rackable Systems, Inc.dilegvsuit against the Company in federal courttierNorthern District of
California, alleging causes of action for patefiilgement. On May 3, 2007, the Company settledcthins on terms which had no adverse
effect on the Company’s business, financial cooditind result of operations.

In addition to the above, the Company is involuvedarious legal proceedings arising from the norooairse of business activities. In
management’s opinion, resolution of these mattermt expected to have a material adverse impattteo@ompany’s consolidated results of
operations, cash flows or our financial positiomwgver, depending on the amount and timing, anwanédble resolution of a matter could
materially affect the Company’s future results pémtions, cash flows or financial position in aticalar period.

Lease Commitments-The Company leases equipment under noncancelpblating leases which expire at various dates tirou
2016. In addition, the Company leases certainsoéduipment under capital leases. The future mimiaase commitments under all leases
are as follows (in thousands):

As of June 30, 2007

Capital Operating

Leases Leases

Year ending June 30, 20! $ 12t $ 674

Year ending June 30, 20! 30 33C

Year ending June 30, 20. 11 27€

Year ending June 30, 20. — 252

Year ending June 30, 20. — 107

Thereafte — 421

Total minimum operating lease payme $ 16€ $ 2,06(
Less amounts representing intel 8
Present value of minimum lease payme 15¢
Less loni-term portion 40
Current portior $ 11€

Rent expense for the years ended June 30, 2008,8@02005, were approximately $598,000, $468,0@0$431,000, respectively.

Note 12. RetiremerPlan
The Company sponsors a 401(k) savings plan foib&digmployees and their beneficiaries. Contrimgiby the Company are
discretionary, and no contributions have been nigdhe Company for the years ended June 30, 2@WA and 2005.

Beginning in March 2003, employees of Super Micam@uter, B.V. have the option to deduct a portibtheir gross wages and invest
the amount in a pension plan. The Company has dgoematch 10% of the amount that is deducted nipfithm employees’ wages. For the
years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the @y’'s matching contribution was approximately $3,088,300 and $4,100, respectively.
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Note 13. SegmeiReporting

The Company operates in one operating segmentiévaiops and provides high performance serverisakibased upon an innovati
modular and open-standard architecture. The Compahief operating decision maker is the Chief Bxe Officer.

International net sales are based on the countmhtch the products were shipped. The following Bummary for the years ended
June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, of net sales by gpbigrregion (in thousands):

Years Ended June 30,

2007 2006 2005
Net sales

United State: $248,85: $177,02: $119,24¢
United Kingdom 20,091 16,04 9,06¢
Germany 28,82¢ 27,06: 19,67:
Rest of Europ 48,64¢ 42,22 29,83:
Asia 64,87t 33,21¢ 26,79¢
Other 9,101 6,97¢ 7,15C

$420,39: $302,54: $211,76!

The Company'’s long-lived assets located outsideUthieed States are not significant.
The following is a summary of net sales by prodype (in thousands):

Years Ended June 30,

2007 2006 2005
Percent o Percent o Percent o
Amount Net Sales Amount Net Sales Amount Net Sales
Server system $152,47: 36.2%  $104,46( 34.5% $ 66,57 31.4%
Serverboards and other
component: 267,92, 63.7% 198,08: 65.5% 145,18 68.6%
Total $420,39: 100.(% $302,54: 100.(% $211,76: 100.(%

Serverboards and other components are comprissghwérboards, chassis and accessories. Servemsystastitute an assembly of
components done by the Company.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéunting and Financial Disclosure
None.
ltem 9A. Controls and Procedure

Management’s Evaluation of Disclosure Controls aftocedures.

As of June 30, 2007, an evaluation was performeluthe supervision and with the participation of management, including our
chief executive officer and chief financial officgogether, our “certifying officers”), of the effiveness of the design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures (as definediiedRl3a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securitiebdhge Act of 1934, as amended).
Disclosure controls and procedures are controlsosimel procedures designed to ensure that infoomagiquired to be disclosed by us in our
periodic reports filed with the Securities and Exete Commission (SEC) is recorded, processed, stimadand reported within the time
periods specified by the SEC’s rules and instristifor Form 10-K, and that the information is acalated and communicated to our
management, including the chief executive offiaed ahief financial officer, as appropriate to alltmely decisions regarding required
disclosure. Based on their evaluation, our cengyofficers concluded that these disclosure com@iad procedures were effective as of the
end of the period covered by this report.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportm

Our management, including our Chief Executive @ifiand Chief Financial Officer, believes that atools system, no matter how well
designed and operated, is based in part upon etaumptions about the likelihood of future evesmsl therefore can only provide
reasonable, not absolute assurance that the algedf the control system are met, and no evalati@ontrols can provide absolute
assurance that all control issues and instanciaudd, if any, within a company have been detected.

There were no changes in our internal control dwancial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15¢fdar the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended) during the year ended June G0, &tat our certifying officers concluded matdyialffected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over finaaareporting.

This annual report on Form 10-K does not includepmrt of management’s assessment regarding intson#ol over financial
reporting or an attestation report of the Compaytependent registered public accounting firm tduee transition period established by r
of the Securities and Exchange Commission for nguilglic companies. At the end of the fiscal yeadd@Bection 404 of the Sarbar@sley
Act will require our management to provide an assest of the effectiveness of our internal condradr financial reporting, and our
independent registered public accounting firm Wélrequired to report on the effectiveness of imgkecontrol over financial reporting. We ¢
in the process of performing the system and prodessmentation, and evaluation and testing reqdoethanagement to make this
assessment and for the Company’s independent asittitprovide their attestation report. We haveawshpleted this process or the
assessment, and this process will require sigmifiaenounts of management time and resources. lootiese of evaluation and testing,
management may identify deficiencies that will neetle addressed and remediated.

Iltem 9B. Other Information
None.
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PART 1lI

We have omitted certain information from this regbat is required by Part 1ll. We intend to fil@efinitive proxy statement pursuant
to Regulation 14A with the Securities and Excha@genmission relating to our annual meeting of stadttérs not later than 120 days after
the end of the fiscal year covered by this reprt such information is incorporated by referenereim.

Iltem 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registra

Certain information regarding our executive offcand directors is included in Part | of this réporder the caption “Executive
Officers and Directors” and is incorporated by refee into this Item.

Other information required by this Item will be lnded in our proxy statement and is incorporateddgrence herein.

ltem 11.  Executive Compensatio
The information required by this Item will be indled in our proxy statement and is incorporatedetigrence herein.

ltem 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners ainagement and Related Stockholder Mattt
The information required by this Item will be indied in our proxy statement and is incorporatedeigrence herein.

Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactio
The information required by this Item will be indled in our proxy statement and is incorporatedetigrence herein.

ltem 14.  Principal Accounting Fees and Service
The information required by this Item will be indied in our proxy statement and is incorporatedeigrence herein.
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PART IV

ltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedul
(@) 1. Financial Statements

See Index to Consolidated Financial Statementiein B of this Annual Report on Form ¥KQ4which is incorporated herein by referer

2. Financial Statement Schedules

All other financial statement schedules have besitted because they are either not applicable@required information is shown in
the consolidated financial statements or notestber

3. Exhibits
See the Exhibit Index which follows the signatuag@ of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, which isdarporated herein by reference.

(b) Exhibits
See Item 15(a)(3) above.

(c) Financial Statement Schedules
See Item 15(a)(2) above.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amentiedregistrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the usidexed, thereunto duly authorized.

SUPER MICRO COMPUTER, INC.

Date: August 28, 2007 /s| CHARLESL IANG

Charles Liang
President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman othe Board
(Principal Executive Officer)
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each pemsbose signature appears below constitutes anurggpCharles
Liang, Howard Hideshima and Robert Aeschliman, @ach of them, with full power of substitution argubstitution and full power to act
without the other, as his or her true and lawftdraey-in-fact and agent to act in his or her naptace and stead in connection with this
Annual Report on Form 10-K and to execute in thm@and on behalf of each person, individually andach capacity stated below, and to
file, any and all documents in connection therewitlih the Securities and Exchange Commission,tgrgmunto said attorneys-in-fact and
agents, and each of them, full power and authéiyo and perform each and every act and thinidyireg and confirming all that said
attorneys-in-fact and agents or any of them orrthied his or her substitute or substitutes, mayubiyvdo or cause to be done by virtue
thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bbélpthe following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacitiesaattid and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s| CHARLESL IANG President, Chief Executive Officer and August 28, 2007
Charles Liang Chairman of the Board (Principal Executive

Officer)

/s HowARD H IDESHIMA Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and August 28, 2007

Howard Hideshima Accounting Officer)

/s/ CHIU-CHU (SARA) L IU L IANG Vice President of Operations, Treasurer and August 28, 2007
Chiu-Chu (Sara) Liu Liang Director

/sl Y1H -SHYAN (W ALLY ) L 1aw . Vice President of International Sales, Secretary ~ August 28, 2007

Yih-Shyan (Wally) Liaw and Directol
/s/ BRUCEA LEXANDER Director August 28, 2007

Bruce Alexander

/sl HwEeI-M ING (F RED) T sAI Director August 28, 2007
Hwei-Ming (Fred) Tsai

/s EDWARD J. HAYES, JR Director August 28, 2007
Edward J. Hayes, Jr

Director

Sherman Tuan
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Exhibit
Number
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4.1

10.1
10.2
10.3
104
10.5
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10.7
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10.9
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10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15
10.16

10.17

10.18
10.19

10.20
10.21
10.22
10.23

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatio8uper Micro Computer, Inc.(:

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Super Micro Comptrier(1)

Specimen stock certificate for shares of commoaokstd Super Micro Computer, Inc.(

1998 Stock Option Plan, as amende

Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement under 1888k Option Plan(1

Form of Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement und#98L.Stock Option Plan(:

Form of Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement outside1998 Stock Option Plan(

2006 Equity Incentive Plan(

Form of Option Agreement under Super Micro Computer. 2006 Equity Incentive Plan(

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under Super di@omputer, Inc. 2006 Equity Incentive Plan
Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under Sigdiero Computer, Inc. 2006 Equity Incentive Plan
Form of director’ and officer’ Indemnity Agreement(1

Promissory Note dated as of March 22, 2001, istyeSuper Micro Computer, Inc. to Bank of AmericaAN1)

Standing Loan Agreement dated March 22, 2001, lybetween Super Micro Computer, Inc. and Bank okAoa, N.A.
1)

Product Manufacturing Agreement dated as of A@Bijl2004 by and between Super Micro Compute, Ingd.Tatung
Company(1,

Promissory Note dated as of April 22, 2004, issoe&uper Micro Computer, Inc. to Wachovia Commérilartgage, Inc.
1)

Business Loan Agreement dated as of April 22, 2694nd between Super Micro Computer, Inc. and \Waeh
Commercial Mortgage, Inc.(:

Promissory Note dated September 28, 2005, issu&lipgr Micro Computer, Inc. to Citibank (West), KEE

Business Loan Agreement dated as of Septembei0R8, By and between Super Micro Computer, Inc.@itidank
(West), FSB(1,

Business Loan Agreement dated November 1, 200&ntybetween Super Micro Computer, Inc. and Far Easonal
Bank(1)

Promissory Note dated November 1, 2005, issueduipgiSMicro Computer, Inc. to Far East National B@n

Commercial Security Agreement dated November 15269 and between Super Micro Computer, Inc. andeast
National Bank(1

Offer Letter for Chi-Chu (Sara) Liu Liang(1
Offer Letter for Alex Hsu(1
Offer Letter for Howard Hideshima(:

Director Compensation Policy(
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Exhibit
Number

10.24

10.25

10.26
10.27
10.28
10.29
14.1
21.1
23.1
24.1
311
31.2
32.1
32.2

1)
()
(3)
(4)

Description

Product Manufacturing Agreement dated January 87 2@tween Super Micro Computer, Inc. and Ablec@ohfiology
Inc.(1)

First Amendment to Product Manufacturing Agreentmitveen Super Micro Computer, Inc. and Tatung Compated as
of March 7, 2007(1

Form of Notice of Grant of Stock Option under 2@Xfuity Incentive Plan(2

Form of Notice of Grant of Restricted Stock unde®& Equity Incentive Plan(:

Form of Notice of Grant of Restricted Stock Unitden 2006 Equity Incentive Plan(

Agreement of Purchase and Sale

Code of Ethics for All of the Compa’s Directors, Officers and Employe

Subsidiaries of Super Micro Computer, Inc.

Consent of Deloitte and Touche LLP, independenisteged public accounting firi

Power of Attorney (included in signature pag

Certification of Charles Liang, President and CE@sBant to Section 302 of the Sarb+Oxley Act of 200z

Certification of Howard Hideshima, CFO and Secrefursuant to Section 302 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification of Charles Liang, President and CE@sBant to Section 906 of the Sarb~Oxley Act of 2002(4

Certification of Howard Hideshima, CFO and Secrefursuant to Section 906 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 2002(4
Incorporated by reference to the same numbabiiled with the Registrant’s Registration Statent on Form S-1 (Registration
No. 33:-138370), declared effective by the Securities axcthBnge Commission on March 28, 20
Incorporated by reference to the Company’s &egfion Statement on Form S-8 (Commission File 383-142404) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on April 27,72
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 frira Company’s current report on Form 8-K (Commisstde No. 001-33383) filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on 29n2007
The certifications attached as Exhibit 32.1 8@d® accompany the Annual Report on Form 10-Kymnsto Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not be deefiled” by Super Micro Computer, Inc. for purposeisSection 18 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amen



Exhibit 14.1

CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS
Our Code has traditionally embodied policies encaging individual and peer integrity, ethical behariand our responsibilities to
our employees, customers, suppliers, stockholdeng the public, and includes:
* Prohibiting conflicts of interest (including protew corporate opportunitie:
» Protecting our confidential and proprietary infotioa and that of our customers and venc
« Treating our employees, customers, suppliers antpettors fairly
» Encouraging full, fair, accurate, timely and undsnslable disclosur
» Protecting and properly using company as
e Complying with laws, rules and regulations (inchglinsider trading laws
» Encouraging the reporting of any unlawful or uneghbehaviol

The information below are those portions of our a®@df business conduct and ethics, which addressisiseies listed above.



[Super Micro Computer, Inc. Letterhead]

A Message About the Code from the Chairman, Presiad and CEO:
To All Officers, Directors and Employees:

One of our Company’s most valuable assets is fiegiity. Protecting this asset is the job of eveg/i the Company. To that end, we
have established a Code of Business Conduct ancsETfthe Code applies to every officer, directadl amployee. We also expect that those
with whom we do business (including our agentssotiants, suppliers and customers) will also adtetee Code. Our Code is designed to
help you comply with the law and maintain the higfh@andards of ethical conduct. The Code doeso@r every issue that may arise, but it
sets out basic principles and a methodology to geigde you in the attainment of this common goal.

All of the Company’s officers, directors and emp#eg must carry out their duties in accordance thi¢tpolicies set forth in this Code
and with applicable laws and regulations. To theerixthat other Company polices and proceduredicowith this Code, you should follow
this Code. Any violation of applicable law or angvihtion from the standards embodied in this Codler@sult in disciplinary action up to
and including termination. Disciplinary action alsay apply to an employee’s supervisor who direc@pproves the employee’s improper
actions, or is aware of those actions but doescioappropriately to correct them. In additionrtgosing its own discipline, the Company
may also bring suspected violations of law to tttergion of the appropriate law enforcement persarifiyou are in a situation which you
believe may violate or lead to a violation of thisde, follow the procedures described in Sectidharid 11 of the Code.

/s/ CHARLES LIANG

Charles Liang

President, Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of the Board




SUPER MICRO COMPUTER, INC.
CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS

1. Policy Statement

The Nasdaq rules require that the Company provicieda of conduct for all of its directors, officensd employees. This Company is
committed to being a good corporate citizen. ThenGany’s policy is to conduct its business affaimadstly and in an ethical manner. That
goal cannot be achieved unless you individuallyeptgour responsibility to promote integrity andramstrate the highest level of ethical
conduct in all of your activities. Activities thatay call into question the Company’s reputatiointegrity should be avoided. The Company
understands that not every situation is black ahilewThe key to compliance with the Code is exséng good judgment. This means
following the spirit of this Code and the law, dgithe “right”thing and acting ethically even when the law isspecific. When you are fac
with a business situation where you must deterrtiegight thing to do, you should ask the followipgestions:

« Am | following the spirit, as well as the letteff,any law or Company policy
e Would | want my actions reported 60 Minutes<?
e What would my family, friends or neighbors thinkraf/ actions”
» Will there be any direct or indirect negative camsences for the Compan
Managers set an example for other employees anaftareresponsible for directing the actions ofenth Every manager and supervisor
is expected to take necessary actions to ensurpli@omee with this Code, to provide guidance andsassnployees in resolving questions

concerning the Code and to permit employees toesspany concerns regarding compliance with thiseCNG@ one has the authority to order
another employee to act contrary to this Code.

2. Compliance with Laws and Regulations
The Company seeks to comply with both the letted apirit of the laws and regulations in all counts in which it operates.

The Company is committed to full compliance witk taws and regulations of the cities, states amdbtci@s in which it operates. You
must comply with all applicable laws, rules andulagions in performing your duties for the CompaNymerous federal, state and local laws
and regulations define and establish obligatiorth which the Company, its employees and agents camsply. Under certain circumstanc
local country law may establish requirements thid¢dfrom this Code. You are expected to complytwall local country laws in conducting
the Company’s business. If you violate these law®gulations in performing your duties for the Gmamy, you not only risk individual
indictment, prosecution and penalties, and civilosxs and penalties, you also subject the Compautlyet same risks and penalties. If you

1



violate these laws in performing your duties fag @ompany, you may be subject to immediate dis@pji action, including possible
termination of your employment or affiliation withe Company.

An explanation of certain of the key laws with whnigou should be familiar can be found on the Comgjzaintranet. As explained
below, you should always consult your manager elGbmpliance Officer with any questions about ggality of you or your colleagues’
conduct.

3.  Full, Fair, Accurate, Timely and Understandable Diglosure

It is of paramount importance to the Company thiatisclosure in reports and documents that the @amy files with, or submits to, the
SEC, and in other public communications made byGbmpany is full, fair, accurate, timely and undanslable. You must take all steps
available to assist the Company in these respditisibiconsistent with your role within the Compathy particular, you are required to
provide prompt and accurate answers to all ingsiim@de to you in connection with the Company'’s araton of its public reports and
disclosure.

The Company’s Chief Executive Officer CEO ") and Chief Financial Officer (CFO ") are responsible for designing, establishing,
maintaining, reviewing and evaluating on a quaytbdsis the effectiveness of the Compargisclosure controls and procedures (as such
is defined by applicable SEC rules). The Compa@E®, CFO, controller and such other Company offickrsignated from time to time by
the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors shmdldeemed the “Senior Officers” of the Companyi@eOfficers shall take all steps
necessary or advisable to ensure that all disaosureports and documents filed with or submittethe SEC, and all disclosure in other
public communication made by the Company is falir,faccurate, timely and understandable.

Senior Officers are also responsible for estabiglaind maintaining adequate internal control oienrfcial reporting to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitynadiicial reporting and the preparation of finansiatements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipieee The Senior Officers will take all necessstgps to ensure compliance with
established accounting procedures, the Compangtsmsyof internal controls and generally acceptedacting principles. Senior Officers
will ensure that the Company makes and keeps boe&srds, and accounts, which, in reasonable datzilirately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets o€tmpany. Senior Officers will also ensure that@wnpany devises and maintains a system
of internal accounting controls sufficient to prd@ireasonable assurances that:

» transactions are executed in accordance with mama's general or specific authorizatic

» transactions are recorded as necessary (a) totpenepiaration of financial statements in conformifth generally accepted
accounting principles or any other criteria apgdleato such statements, and (b) to maintain acedility for assets
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* access to assets is permitted, and receipts amhditpres are made, only in accordance with managgsigeneral or specific
authorization; an

» the recorded accountability for assets is compatifithe existing assets at reasonable intervalsagpropriate action is taken
with respect to any differences, all to permit gnetion or timely detection of unauthorized acqiosit use or disposition of assets
that could have a material effect on the Com|'s financial statement

Any attempt to enter inaccurate or fraudulent infation into the Company’s accounting system witl @ tolerated and will result in
disciplinary action, up to and including terminatiof employment.

4.  Special Ethics Obligations For Employees With Riancial Reporting Responsibilities

Senior Officers each bear a special responsiliditypromoting integrity throughout the Company. thermore, the Senior Officers ha
a responsibility to foster a culture throughout @@mpany as a whole that ensures the fair andytineplorting of the Company’s results of
operation and financial condition and other finahaiformation.

Because of this special role, the Senior Officeesteund by the following Senior Officer Code ohies, and by accepting the Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics each agrees thatsteeowill:
» Perform his or her duties in an honest and etmzainer.
» Handle all actual or apparent conflicts of intetgstween his or her personal and professionalieaktiips in an ethical mannt

» Take all necessary actions to ensure full, faicuaate, timely, and understandable disclosureponts and documents that the
Company files with, or submits to, government ageshand in other public communicatio

« Comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulas of federal, state and local governme
» Proactively promote and be an example of ethichhbi®r in the work environmer

5. Insider Trading

You should never trade securities on the basis afifidential information acquired through your emplament or fiduciary
relationship with the Company.

You are prohibited under both federal law and Camypzolicy from purchasing or selling Company stadikectly or indirectly, on the
basis of material non-public information concernihg Company. Any person possessing material ndfiepimformation about the
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Company must not engage in transactions involviag@any securities until this information has beseased to the public. Generally,
material information is that which would be expekcte affect the investment decisions of a reas@iivlestor or the market price of the
stock. You must also refrain from trading in thecst of other publicly held companies, such as @xgsbr potential customers or suppliers, on
the basis of material confidential information obéal in the course of your employment or servica d#ector. It is also illegal to recomme

a stock to (i.e., “tip”) someone else on the baéisuch information. If you have a question conaegrappropriateness or legality of a
particular securities transaction, consult with@@mpany’s Compliance Officer. Officers, directarsl certain other employees of the
Company are subject to additional responsibilitieder the Company’s insider trading complianceqgyoli

6.  Conflicts of Interest and Corporate Opportunities

You must avoid any situation in which your personaterests conflict or even appear to conflict withe Company’s interests. You
owe a duty to the Company not to compromise the @any’s legitimate interests and to advance sucteinaists when the opportunity to do
so arises in the course of your employme

You shall perform your duties to the Company irhanest and ethical manner. You shall handle alisd@r apparent conflicts of
interest between your personal and professionafioglships in an ethical manner.

You should avoid situations in which your persoffamily or financial interests conflict or even &gp to conflict with those of the
Company. You may not engage in activities that cet@mvith the Company or compromise its interestss hould not take for your own
benefit opportunities discovered in the coursenoplyment that you have reason to know would bétiedi Company. The following are
examples of actual or potential conflicts:

e you, or a member of your family, receive impropergpnal benefits as a result of your position ex@ompany
e you use Compar's property for your personal bene

* you engage in activities that interfere with yoaydlty to the Company or your ability to performr@gany duties o
responsibilities effectively

» you work simultaneously (whether as an employes avnsultant) for a competitor, customer or supy.

» you, or a member of your family, have a financérest in a customer, supplier, or competitor Whscsignificant enough t
cause divided loyalty with the Company or the apmeee of divided loyalty (the significance of adirtial interest depends on
many factors, such as size of investment in refatioyour income, net worth and/or financial negasir potential to influence
decisions that could impact your interests, anchtitere of the business or level of competitiomieein the Company and the
supplier, customer or competito



* you, or a member of your family, acquire an intenegproperty (such as real estate, patent or dtttellectual property rights ¢
securities) in which you have reason to know thenfany has, or might have, a legitimate inter

e you, or a member of your family, receive a loam@uarantee of a loan from a customer, supplieoompetitor (other than a lo:
from a financial institution made in the ordinagucse of business and on an ’s-length basis)

e you divulge or use the Compé’'s confidential information — such as financial@atustomer information, or computer programs —
for your own personal or business purpo:

* you make gifts or payments, or provide special fayto customers, suppliers or competitors (orr tinenediate family member:
with a value significant enough to cause the custpsupplier or competitor to make a purchasegke pr forego other action,
which is beneficial to the Company and which thstemer, supplier or competitor would not otherwisge taken; o

e you are given the right to buy stock in other comes or you receive cash or other payments inmefturpromoting the service
of an advisor, such as an investment banker, t€tmpany

Neither you, nor members of your immediate famalye permitted to solicit or accept valuable gifisyments, special favors or other
consideration from customers, suppliers or competitAny gifts may be accepted only on behalf ef @ompany with the approval of your
manager and the Compliance Officer. Gifts may bemonly in compliance with the Foreign Corruptdices Act.

Conflicts are not always clear-cut. If you becomaee of a conflict described above or any othefflminpotential conflict, or have a
guestion as to a potential conflict, you shouldszdinwith your manager or the Company’s Complia@d&cer and/or follow the procedures
described in Sections 10 and 11 of the Code. Ify@mtome involved in a situation that gives risaractual conflict, you must inform your
supervisor or the Company’s Compliance Officerhaf tonflict.

7.  Confidentiality
All confidential information concerning the Compangbtained by you is the property of the Company andst be protected.

Confidential information includes all non-publidénmation that might be of use to competitors, amhful to the Company or its
customers, if disclosed. You must maintain the ictamttiality of such information entrusted to youthg Company, its customers and its
suppliers, except when disclosure is authorizethbyCompany or required by law.

Examples of confidential information include, bug aot limited to: the Company’s trade secretsjimss trends and projections;
information about financial performance; new



product or marketing plans; research and developideas or information; manufacturing processefgrination about potential acquisitions,
divestitures and investments; stock splits, pubdiprivate securities offerings or changes in divid policies or amounts; significant
personnel changes; and existing or potential n@jatracts, orders, suppliers, customers or finaoceces or the loss thereof.

Your obligation with respect to confidential infoation extends beyond the workplace. In that resjteapplies to communications wi
your family members and continues to apply eveerafbur employment or director relationship witke Bompany terminate

8. Fair Dealing
Our goal is to conduct our business with integrity.

You should endeavor to deal honestly with the Camjsacustomers, suppliers, competitors, and empsyender federal and state
laws, the Company is prohibited from engaging ifairnrmethods of competition, and unfair or decepticts and practices. You should not
take unfair advantage of anyone through manipulatoncealment, abuse of privileged informatiorgnepresentation of material facts, or
any other unfair dealing.

Examples of prohibited conduct include, but arelimoited to:

» bribery or payoffs to induce business or breacliesatracts by other:
e acquiring a competit’s trade secrets through bribery or th
* making false, deceptive or disparaging claims ongarisons about competitors or their products brices; or

* mislabeling products or service
9. Protection and Proper Use of Company Asse
You should endeavor to protect the Company’s assets$ ensure their proper use.

Company assets, both tangible and intangible,cabe tused only for legitimate business purposdseoCompany and only by
authorized employees or consultants. Intangibletasaclude intellectual property such as tradeetscpatents, trademarks and copyrights,
business, marketing and service plans, enginearidgnanufacturing ideas, designs, databases, Cympeords, salary information, and any
unpublished financial data and reports. Unauthdraéeration, destruction, use, disclosure or ittistron of Company assets violates
Company policy and this Code. Theft or waste of;arelessness in using, these assets have aatinamse impact on the Company’s
operations and profitability and will not be toltra.

The Company provides computers, voice mail, elaxtrmail (e-mail), and Internet access to certaiplyees for the purpose of
achieving the Company’s business objectives. Assalt, the Company has the right to access, regitiish, or retain any information
created, sent or contained in any of the Compatgrisputers or e-mail systems of any Company
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machine. You may not use e-mail, the Internet acevenail for any illegal purpose or in any mantdeattis contrary to the Compamypolicies
or the standards embodied in this Code.

You should not make copies of, or resell or transépyrighted publications, including software, mals, articles, books, and databases
being used in the Company, that were created bghanentity and licensed to the Company, unlessayewauthorized to do so under the
applicable license agreement. In no event shouldgad or use, on any Company computer, any sofivthird party content or database
without receiving the prior written permission bétinformation Systems Department to do so. Youtmafgain from transferring any data or
information to any Company computer other thanGompany use. You may use a handheld computing eé@vimobile phone in connection
with your work for the Company, but must not usehsdevice or phone to access, load or transfeleongoftware or data in violation of any
applicable law or regulation or without the perriiasof the owner of such content, software or déitgou should have any question as to
what is permitted in this regard, please consutwie Company’s Information Systems Director.

10. Reporting Violations of Company Policies and Recetmpf Complaints Regarding Financial Reporting or Acounting Issues

You should report any violation or suspected viadat of this Code to the appropriate Company persehar via the Company’s
anonymous and confidential reporting procedures.

The Companys efforts to ensure observance of, and adherenteetgoals and policies outlined in this Code nsa@dhat you promptl
bring to the attention of the Compliance Officery anaterial transaction, relationship, act, failtoect, occurrence or practice that you
believe, in good faith, is inconsistent with, imhtion, or reasonably could be expected to gise to a violation, of this Code. You should
report any suspected violations of the Companyiarftial reporting obligations or any complaint€oncerns about questionable accounting
or auditing practices in accordance with the procesl set forth below.

Here are some approaches to handling your repartiigations:

» Inthe event you believe a violation of the Codea @iolation of applicable laws and/or governmérggulations has occurred or
you have observed or become aware of conduct vapplears to be contrary to the Code, immediatelgrtépe situation to yot
supervisor or the Compliance Officer. Supervisomainagers who receive any report of a suspectdakioio must report the
matter to the Compliance Office

» If you have or receive notice of a complaint or @am regarding the Company’s financial disclosaogounting practices, internal
accounting controls, auditing, or questionable antiog or auditing matters, you must immediatelyisel your supervisor or the
Compliance Officer

» If you wish to report any such matters anonymouoslgonfidentially, then you may do so as follo
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Mail a description of the suspected violation drestcomplaint or concern to:

Audit Committee Chair
980 Rock Ave.
San Jose, CA 95131

» Use common sense and good judgment; Act in godid.faiou are expected to become familiar with andrtdarstand the
requirements of the Code. If you become awaresofspected violation, dartry to investigate it or resolve it on your oviRromp
disclosure to the appropriate parties is vitalrisuging a thorough and timely investigation aneig#on. The circumstances
should be reviewed by appropriate personnel as jpitgras possible, and delay may affect the resilemy investigation. A
violation of the Code, or of applicable laws andjovernmental regulations is a serious matter anttichave legal implications.
Allegations of such behavior are not taken liglahd should not be made to embarrass someone bimputr her in a false light.
Reports of suspected violations should always b@enragood faith

» Internal investigation When an alleged violation of the Code, applicdénes and/or governmental regulations is repotteel,
Company will take appropriate action in accordanith the compliance procedures outlined in Seclitrof the Code. You are
expected to cooperate in internal investigationallejed misconduct or violations of the Code oapplicable laws or regulatior

* No fear of retaliatiot. It is Company policy that there be no intentiorehliation against any person who provides tulthf
information to a Company or law enforcement officiancerning a possible violation of any law, regidn or Company policy,
including this Code. Persons who retaliate mayuiigest to civil, criminal and administrative penedt, as well as disciplinary
action, up to and including termination of employrén cases in which you report a suspected vaslah good faith and are not
engaged in the questionable conduct, the Compalhptteémpt to keep its discussions with you confiii to the extent
reasonably possible. In the course of its invetiigathe Company may find it necessary to shafi@imation with others on a
“need to knov’ basis. No retaliation shall be taken against youdporting alleged violations while acting in gofadth.
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11. Compliance Procedures

The Company has established this Code as pas oférall policies and procedures. To the extemitakher Company policies and
procedures conflict with this Code, you shoulddallthis Code. The Code applies to all Company thirscand Company employees,
including all officers, in all locations.

The Code is based on the Company’s core valuesl lgosiness practices and applicable law. The exdstef a Code, however, does
not ensure that directors, officers and employeé#semply with it or act in a legal and ethical mraer. To achieve optimal legal and ethical
behavior, the individuals subject to the Code nkastw and understand the Code as it applies to trehmas it applies to others. You must
champion the Code and assist others in knowinguadérstanding it.

« Compliance You are expected to become familiar with and ustded the requirements of the Code. Most impdstapbu must
comply with it.

» CEO Responsibility The Company’s CEO shall be responsible for engutiat the Code is established and effectively
communicated to all employees, officers and dinectalthough the day-to-day compliance issues lglithe responsibility of the
Companys managers, the CEO has ultimate accountability keispect to the overall implementation of and essful complianc
with the Code

» Corporate Compliance Managemeiithe CEO shall select an employee to act as thpaZate Compliance Officer. The Corpor
Compliance Officer is currently Howard Hideshim&eTCompliance Officer’s responsibility is to ensaoenmunication, training,
monitoring, and overall compliance with the CodeeTompliance Officer will, with the assistance andperation of the
Company’s officers, directors and managers, faamtesitmosphere where employees are comfortablenimncmicating and/or
reporting concerns and possible Code violati

» Internal Reporting of ViolationsThe Company'’s efforts to ensure observance af aaherence to, the goals and policies outlined
in this Code mandate that all employees, officasdirectors of the Company report suspected variatin accordance with
Section 9 of this Codk

» Screening of EmployeesThe Company shall exercise due diligence whandiaind promoting employees and, in particular,
conducting an employment search for a positionliriig the exercise of substantial discretionaryhatty, such as a member of
the executive team, a senior management positian @mployee with financial management respongésli The Company shall
make reasonable inquiries into the background cif éadividual who is a candidate for such a positiall such inquiries shall be
made in accordance with applicable law and gooéhlkas practice
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Access to the CodeThe Company shall ensure that employees, offi@edsdirectors may access the Code on the Company’s
website. In addition, each current employee wilpbavided with a copy of the Code. New employedtrateive a copy of the
Code as part of their new hire information. Fromdito time, the Company will sponsor employee ingiprograms in which the
Code and other Company policies and procedureswitliscusse(

Monitoring . The officers of the Company shall be respondibleview the Code with all of the Company’s manmaghn turn, the
Company’s managers with supervisory responsitsligieould review the Code with his/her direct repdvtanagers are the “go to”
persons for employee questions and concerns rgltatithe Code, especially in the event of a posértolation. Managers or
supervisors will immediately report any violatiomsallegations of violations to the Compliance ©éfi. Managers will work with
the Compliance Officer in assessing areas of congetential violations, any needs for enhanceroéttie Code or remedial
actions to effect the Co’s policies and overall compliance with the Code atiner related policie!

Auditing . An internal audit team selected by the Audit Cattea will be responsible for auditing the Compangompliance with
the Code

Internal Investigation When an alleged violation of the Code is repqrted Company shall take prompt and appropriateraat
accordance with the law and regulations and ottsrnednsistent with good business practice. If ttspacted violation appears to
involve either a possible violation of law or asug of significant corporate interest, or if thpa® involves a complaint or
concern of any person, whether employee, a shatehot other interested person regarding the Cogipéinancial disclosure,
internal accounting controls, questionable auditingccounting matters or practices or other isselasing to the Company’s
accounting or auditing, then the manager or ingastr should immediately notify the Compliance €éfi, who, in turn, shall
notify the Legal Department and/or Chairman of Aluglit Committee, as applicable. If a suspectedatioh involves any director
or executive officer or if the suspected violatmmcerns any fraud, whether or not material, inlmgynanagement or other
employees who have a significant role in the Corgfmimternal controls, any person who received sapbnt should immediate
report the alleged violation to the Compliance &4fi if appropriate, the Chief Executive Officed&r Chief Financial Officer,
and, in every such case, the Chairman of the Abolibhmittee. The Compliance Officer or the Chairmathe Audit Committee,
as applicable, shall assess the situation andrdieteithe appropriate course of action. At a pairthie process consistent with the
need not to compromise the investigation, a pevdumis suspected of a violation shall be apprideti@alleged violation and
shall have an opportunity to provide a responghdanvestigator

Disciplinary Actions. Subject to the following sentence, the Complia@éfcer, after consultation with the Legal Depagim,
shall be responsible for implementing the appraperiisciplinary action in accordance with the Cony's policies ant
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procedures for any employee who is found to haokated the Code. If a violation has been reporeti¢ Audit Committee or
another committee of the Board, that Committeel &leafesponsible for determining appropriate digegpy action. Any violation
of applicable law or any deviation from the stanidaembodied in this Code will result in discipliparction, up to and including
termination of employment. Any employee engageit@exercise of substantial discretionary authpnitgiuding any Senior
Officer, who is found to have engaged in a violatdd law or unethical conduct in connection witk frerformance of his or her
duties for the Company, shall be removed from hises position and not assigned to any other msitivolving the exercise of
substantial discretionary authority. In additioringosing discipline upon employees involved in soompliant conduct, the
Company also will impose discipline, as appropriafgn an employee’s supervisor, if any, who dgextapproves such
employees’ improper actions, or is aware of thas®as but does not act appropriately to correetrthand upon other individuals
who fail to report known non-compliant conductaldition to imposing its own discipline, the Compavill bring any violations
of law to the attention of appropriate law enforegmpersonne

» Retention of Reports and Complaintll reports and complaints made to or receivedHgyCompliance Officer or the Chair of
Audit Committee shall be logged into a record mnreiimed for this purpose by the Compliance Officedt #nis record of such report
shall be retained for five (5) yea

» Required Government ReportingVhenever conduct occurs that requires a repahe@overnment, the Compliance Officer shall
be responsible for complying with such reportinguieements

» Corrective Actions Subject to the following sentence, in the evdrat violation of the Code, the manager and the Gamgpe
Officer should assess the situation to determinetiadr the violation demonstrates a problem thatireg remedial action as to
Company policies and procedures. If a violation leesn reported to the Audit Committee or anothenrodtee of the Board, that
committee shall be responsible for determining appate remedial or corrective actions. Such caére@action may include
providing revised public disclosure, retraining Guny employees, modifying Company policies and @daces, improving
monitoring of compliance under existing procedwand other action necessary to detect similaremnpliant conduct and preve
it from occurring in the future. Such correctiveiae shall be documented, as appropri

12. Publication of the Code of Business Conduct and Eits; Amendments and Waivers of the Code of Busine§€onduct and Ethics

The most current version of this Code will be pdssaaed maintained on the Company’s website and ékdn exhibit to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K. The Company’s Annuap®&¢€on Form 10-K shall disclose that the Code émained on the website and
shall disclose that substantive amendments andewsawill also be posted on the company’s website.
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Any substantive amendment or waiver of this Code,(a material departure from the requirementngfprovision) particularly
applicable to or directed at executive officerslivectors may be made only after approval by tharBef Directors and will be disclosed
within four (4) business days of such action (a}f@Company’s website for a period of not lesa threelve (12) months and (b) in a Form 8-
K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commisstuch disclosure shall include the reasons forveaiyer. The Company shall retain the
disclosure relating to any such amendment or wdoreat least five (5) years.
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Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniReggion Statement No. 333-142404 on Form S-8uwfreport dated August 24, 2007,
relating to the consolidated financial statemeftSuper Micro Computer, Inc. (which report exprasar unqualified opinion and includes an
explanatory paragraph relating to the adoptiontafenent of Financial Accounting Standards No. {2@ised 2004)Share-Based

Paymen), appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-KSaper Micro Computer, Inc. for the year ended Rhe2007.

/sl Deloitte & Touche LLP

San Jose, California
August 24, 2007



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Charles Liang, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Super Micro Computer, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatoriny untrue statement of a material fact or donétate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(e) and 15-15(e)) for the registrant and ha

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b.  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratislosure controls and procedures and presentinisineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyédport based on such
evaluation; an

c. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegyig's internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo&) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reportir

Date: August 28, 2007 /s| CHARLESL IANG

Charles Liang
President, Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of the Board
(Principal Executive Officer)




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Howard Hideshima, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Super Micro Computer, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatoriny untrue statement of a material fact or donétate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(e) and 15-15(e)) for the registrant and ha

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b.  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratislosure controls and procedures and presentinisineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyédport based on such
evaluation; an

c. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegyig's internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo&) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reportir

Date: August 28, 2007 /s/  HOWARD H IDESHIMA
Howard Hideshima
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Charles Liang, certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C.tRec1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906eoStrbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that
the Annual Report of Super Micro Computer, IncFamm 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2007, ag ¥ilith the Securities and Exchange
Commission on the date thereof, fully complies wifite requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) ofSkeurities Exchange Act of 1934 and the

information contained in such Annual Report on FAORQ fairly presents, in all material respects, finhancial condition and results of
operations of Super Micro Computer, Inc.

Date: August 28, 2007 /s/ CHARLESL IANG

Charles Liang
President, Chief Executive Officer
and Chairman of the Board
(Principal Executive Officer)




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Howard Hideshima, certify pursuant to 18 U.SSection 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 96&darbane®xley Act of 2002
that the Annual Report of Super Micro Computer, lmt Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 200fileabwith the Securities and

Exchange Commission on the date thereof, fully d@spvith the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15ftthe Securities Exchange Act of

1934 and the information contained in such Annugpdtt on Form 10-Q fairly presents, in all mater&spects, the financial condition and
results of operations of Super Micro Computer, Inc.

Date: August 28, 2007 /s/  HOWARD H IDESHIMA
Howard Hideshima
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)




